Notice of Planning Committee
Date:

Thursday, 20 May 2021 at 1.00 pm

Venue:

Civic Centre, Poole

Membership:
Chairman:
Cllr D Kelsey
Vice Chairman:
Cllr S McCormack
Cllr S Baron
Cllr S Bartlett
Cllr S Bull
Cllr M Davies
Cllr N Decent

Cllr B Dion
Cllr G Farquhar
Cllr P R A Hall
Cllr P Hilliard
Cllr T Johnson

Cllr M Le Poidevin
Cllr T O'Neill
Cllr A M Stribley

All Members of the Planning Committee are summoned to attend this meeting to consider
the items of business set out on the agenda below.
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following
link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4690
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Democratic Services or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
12 May 2021

BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Available online and
on the Mod.gov app

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public
1.

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence from Members.

2.

Substitute Members
To receive information on any changes in the membership of the
Committee.
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the
front of this agenda should be used for notifications.

3.

Election of Chair of the Planning Committee
Councillors are asked to elect the Chair of the Planning Committee for the
2021/20 Municipal Year.

4.

Election of Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee
Councillors are asked to elect the Vice-Chair of the Planning Committee for
the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

5.

Declarations of Interests
Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.
Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

6.

Confirmation of Minutes

7 - 16

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on
22 April 2021.
7.

Protocol for Public Statements at Planning Committee
The Committee is asked to consider and agree to the use of the attached
Protocol for Public Statements at Planning Committee. The protocol is
intended to be an interim measure that takes account of on-going
limitations resulting from the Covid pandemic. It will remain in force until a
revised protocol is adopted.

8.

Public Issues
To receive any requests to speak on planning applications which the
Planning Committee is considering at this meeting.
Requests should be submitted to Democratic Services using the contact

17 - 20

details on the front of this agenda.
Further information about how public speaking is managed at virtual
meetings is contained in the Protocol for Public Speaking at Planning
Committee which is included with this agenda sheet.
Note: The public speaking procedure is separate from and is not intended
to replicate or replace the procedure for submitting a written representation
on a planning application to the Planning Offices during the consultation
period.
9.

Schedule of Planning Applications
To consider the planning applications as listed below.
See planning application reports circulated at 9a & 9b as updated by the
agenda addendum sheet to be published on Wednesday, 19 May 2021.
Councillors are requested where possible to submit any technical questions
on planning applications to the Case Officer at least 48 hours before the
meeting to ensure this information can be provided at the meeting.
The running order in which planning applications will be considered will be
as listed on this agenda sheet.
The Chairman retains discretion to propose an amendment to the running
order at the meeting if it is considered expedient to do so.
Members will appreciate that the copy drawings attached to planning
application reports are reduced from the applicants’ original and detail, in
some cases, may be difficult to read. The submitted drawings can be
viewed by using the relevant planning register for this meeting, online at:
https://planning.christchurchandeastdorset.gov.uk/search.aspx?auth=1&As
pxAutoDetectCookieSupport=1
https://www.bournemouth.gov.uk/planningbuilding/CurrentPlanningApplicati
ons/PlanningApplicationRegister.aspx
https://www.poole.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning/planningapplications/find-a-planning-application/
Councillors are advised that if they wish to refer to specific drawings or
plans which are not included in these papers, they should contact the Case
Officer at least 48 hours before the meeting to ensure that these can be
made available.
Development Plans for the BCP Council area are available to view online
at:
https://www.bournemouth.gov.uk/planningbuilding/PlanningPolicy/LocalPlan-Documents/Local-Plan-Documents.aspx

https://www.poole.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control/planning-policyand-guidance/
https://www.christchurch.gov.uk/planning-buildings-land/planningpolicy/christchurch/christchurch-borough-council-local-plan.aspx
a)

Arndale House, 243 High Street North and 1-17 Kingland Road, Poole

21 - 84

(Poole Town)
APP/18/00494/F
Demolish existing buildings and erect mixed-use development comprising
128 residential apartments (Use Class C3) together with nine ground floor
commercial units (Use Classes A1, A3 or B1a) and associated ancillary
works including car and cycle parking.
b)

Richmond Gardens car park, Richmond Gardens, Bournemouth, BH1
1JE
(Bournemouth Central)
7-2019-1179-BG
Erection of a mixed-use residential development comprising four blocks
(211 flats) on the north and east side of existing car park, ranging in height
up to 12 storeys (plus lower ground levels) and a flexible Class A1/A3/Sui
Generis (mixed A1/A3 Coffee Shop) unit at ground level. Realignment
works to existing service access road from Richmond Gardens, cycle
parking, disabled parking, associated refuse/recycling storage, public realm
improvement works and landscaping (inc. removal/works to existing trees).
Alterations to existing public car park including alteration to existing
vehicular access to car park and addition of cladding to the eastern
elevation.

85 - 148

This page is intentionally left blank

–1–

Agenda Item 6

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE
Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 April 2021 at 10.00 am
Present:Cllr D Kelsey – Chairman
Cllr S McCormack – Vice-Chairman
Present:

Cllr S Baron, Cllr S Bartlett, Cllr D Borthwick, Cllr S Bull,
Cllr M Davies, Cllr B Dion, Cllr P R A Hall, Cllr P Hilliard,
Cllr T Johnson, Cllr M Le Poidevin, Cllr T O'Neill and Cllr A M Stribley

Also in
attendance:

118.

Apologies
Apologies were received from Cllr N Decent.

119.

Substitute Members
There were no substitute members.

120.

Declarations of Interests
The following declarations were made:
Cllr S Baron declared, for transparency, that he knew the former owner of
the premises for item 6d, 10 Crichel Mount. Cllr Baron explained that he did
not know the current owners.
Cllr B Dion declared, for transparency, that in relation to item 6b, Craven
Court, 8-10 Knyveton Road, he owned a hotel in a neighboring road,
Frances Road.

121.

Confirmation of Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2021 were approved for
signing as a correct record.

122.

Public Issues
There were a number of public statements received on planning
applications considered by the Planning Committee. In accordance with the
Protocol for Public Speaking the Democratic Services Officer read out the
written statements before the Chairman invited those Ward Councillors who
had requested to speak to address the Committee.

123.

Schedule of Planning Applications
7

–2–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021

The Committee considered planning application reports, copies of which
had been circulated and which appear as Appendices A – J to these
minutes in the Minute Book. The update sheet in relation to the applications
appears as Appendix K to these minutes. The Committee considered the
planning applications as set out below:
124.

129-139 Princess Road & 8-14 Prince of Wales Road, Bournemouth
(Westbourne and Westcliff)
7-2020-14899-E
Erection of four blocks of flats (providing 119 flats and a 20 bedroom
emergency accommodation facility in buildings ranging from 6 to
9 storeys in height) with basement and surface parking, cycle stores and
amenity areas - Regulation 3.
Public Statements:
·

IN OBJECTION
None.

·

IN SUPPORT
Chris Wilkins – Pentan Architects.
Jonathan Thornton – BCP Housing Development Manager.

·

WARD COUNCILLORS:
None.

RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
accordance with the recommendation set out in the report, as
amended by the addendum sheet and subject to the following
amendment to Condition 21, requested by the Committee, to include
the following wording:
21. For a scheme for a sustainable heating source to be approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Voting:
For – 11
125.

Against – 2

Abstentions – 1

Craven Court, 8-10 Knyveton Road, Bournemouth
(East Cliff & Springbourne)
7-2020-1707-D

8

–3–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021
Demolish existing building and erection of a 3/4 storey block of 24 flats with
parking, bin and cycle storage - Regulation 3.
Public Statements:
·

IN OBJECTION
None.

·

IN SUPPORT
Pure Town Planning.
Claire Lynch – BCP Housing Development Officer.

·

WARD COUNCILLORS:
None.

RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
accordance with the recommendation set out in the report, as
amended by the addendum sheet, and subject to both the following
amendment to Condition 16 and instructional note, requested by the
Committee, in the interests of drainage and energy sustainability:
16. any new hard surfacing shall be porous or permeable.


Informative note: The Planning Committee expect 100% LED
lighting to be used throughout the building.

Voting:
For – 9
126.

Against – 4

Abstentions – 1

Duck Lane, Bournemouth, BH11 9JJ
(Kinson)
7-2020-21173-A
Erection of a 3 storey block of 12 flats with bin/cycle storage and formation
of parking spaces.
Public Statements:
·

IN OBJECTION
None.

·

IN SUPPORT
John Christopher, Trinity Architecture
Mark Sheppard – BCP Development Project Manager.

·

WARD COUNCILLORS:
None.
9

–4–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021

RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
accordance with the recommendation set out in the report.

Voting:
For – 14 (unanimous)

127.

Against – 0

Abstentions – 0

9 Avenue Road, Christchurch, BH23 2BU
(Christchurch Town)
8/20/1046/FUL
New dwelling on land adjacent of existing house - Existing garage to be
demolished.
Public Statements:
·

IN OBJECTION
Allastair McCall, 52 Hurn Way
Emily Fardell, 7 Avenue Road

·

IN SUPPORT
Jess Glover, Pure Town Planning
Ian Perkins, applicant

·

WARD COUNCILLORS:
Cllr M Phipps.

RESOLVED that the application be refused planning permission,
contrary to the recommendation in the Officer’s report, for the
following reasons:
1.
The proposed development by reason of its design, site
coverage and plot shape would result in an overdevelopment of the
site and a cramped and incongruous form of development in the
street scene, adversely affecting the visual amenities of the locality.
Therefore, the application is contrary to Policy HE2 of the
Christchurch and East Dorset Local Plan and saved Policy H12 of the
Borough of Christchurch Local Plan.
2.
The proposal is within 5Km of a Site of Special Scientific
Interest (SSSI). This SSSI is also part of the designated Dorset
Heathlands SPA (Special Protection Area) and Ramsar site and is also
part of the Dorset Heaths SAC (Special Area of Conservation). The
proximity of these European Sites (SPA and SAC) means that
determination of the application should be undertaken with regard to
10

–5–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021
the requirements of the Habitat Regulations 1994, in particular
Regulations 48 and 49. If the Council had been minded to grant
permission in all other respects it would have to carry out an
appropriate assessment in accordance with the advice and
procedures set out broadly in Circular 06/2005. The applicant has
failed to demonstrate in accordance with the Habitat Regulations that
the proposals will cause no harm to the SPA and SAC heathland. It is
clear, on the basis of advice from Natural England that, the proposed
development would in combination with other plans and projects
within close proximity to heathland and in the absence of any form of
acceptable mitigation be likely to have an adverse effect on the
heathland special features including those which are SPA and SAC
features. Having regard to the Waddenzee judgement (ECJ case C127/02) the Council is not in a position to be convinced that there is
no reasonable scientific doubt to the contrary. For these reasons, and
without needing to conclude the appropriate assessment, the
proposal is considered contrary to the recommendations of the Berne
Convention Standing Committee on urban development close to the
Dorset Heathlands and also the provisions of the Dorset Heathlands
Planning Framework 2020-2025 Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD), which took effect in November 2020. The proposal is also
contrary to policy ME2 of the Christchurch and East Dorset Local
Plan.
Voting:
For – 11

Against – 2

Abstentions – 0

Note: Cllr D Borthwick did not vote due to technical difficulties.
Note: Cllr T Johnson requested that his vote against the motion be
recorded.
128.

10 Crichel Mount Road, Poole, BH14 8LT
(Canford Cliffs)
APP/20/00370/P
Demolish the existing dwelling (No.10) and erect 2no blocks of 7 flats (14no
flats in total) with associated access and surface and lower level car
parking.
Public Statements:
·

IN OBJECTION
Mervyn Leonard
Paul Phipps

·

IN SUPPORT
West Coast Developments
11

–6–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021
Darryl Howells, Pure Town Planning
·

WARD COUNCILLORS:
Cllr M Iyengar

RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
accordance with the recommendation set out in the report.
Voting:
For – 9

Against – 4

Abstentions – 0

Note: Cllr D Borthwick did not vote due to technical difficultie.s
129.

47 Compton Avenue, Poole, BH14 8PU
(Penn Hill)
APP/21/00156/F
Demolition of the existing house and the erection of 2 detached dwellings
with associated access and parking.
Public Statements:
·

IN OBJECTION
James Cain
Mark and Anne Cunniffe & Allyson and Mark Bailey.

·

IN SUPPORT
Matt Annen, Pure Town Planning

·

WARD COUNCILLORS:
Cllr M Haines.

RESOLVED that consideration of the application be deferred to a later
date, at the Committee’s request in order for the Officer to seek
further improvement to the scheme, for the following reasons:


The scheme appeared cramped and congested within the site
and was at odds with the prevailing pattern of development in
Compton Avenue which is more spacious. In addition, the
Committee wanted greater assurance in respect of the
protection of bats, loss of the existing building and the quality
of the amenity space for future occupants; relevant to Planning
Policies PP27, PP28 & PP33.

For – 14 (unanimous)

Against – 0
12

Abstentions – 0

–7–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021

Note: A previous vote to refuse the application was defeated.
Note: A previous vote to grant to application was defeated.
130.

Trents 570-576 Ringwood Road
(Newton and Heatherlands)
APP/20/01483/F
Variation of Condition 7 of Planning Permission APP/18/01571/F as
described in that description of development In Lieu of BREEAM excellent
rating Certification, provide PV installation sufficient to cover 30% of
buildings energy consumption, together with items identified in BREEAM
assessment to obtain Very Good rating but without certification.
IN OBJECTION
David Bevan, HLF Planning.
IN SUPPORT
John Souter, architect.
WARD COUNCILLORS
Cllr M Earl
RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
line with the recommendations as set out in the report.
Voting:
For – 10

Against – 4

Abstentions – 0

Note: A previous vote to refuse the application was defeated.

Cllr P Hall left the meeting at 17:00.
131.

36 Burnham Drive, Bournemouth, BH8 9EX
(Queens Park)
7-2020-223-AW
Alterations and extensions to bungalow to include formation of new 1st floor
level with dormer windows and roof lights.

IN OBJECTION
Martin Watkins, 30 Burnham Drive
Nina Robson, local resident.
13

–8–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021
IN SUPPORT
Luke Brown, applicant.
Susan Osbourne, 27 Burnham Drive.
WARD COUNCILLORS
Cllr M Anderson
RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
line with the recommendations as set out in the report.
Voting:
For – 13
132.

Against – 0

Abstentions – 0

Park View, 3B Turks Lane, Poole, BH14 8EW
(Parkstone)
APP/21/00067/F
Front and rear extensions to the existing dwelling.
IN OBJECTION
None.
IN SUPPORT
Sam Forryan, Empery and Co.
WARD COUNCILLORS
None.
RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
line with the recommendations as set out in the report.
Voting:
For – 13 (unanimous)

133.

Against – 0

Abstentions – 0

18 Seamoor Road, Bournemouth, BH4 9AR
(Westbourne and West Cliff)
7-2020-19161-E
Alterations and use of restaurant garden storage area for outdoor seating.
IN OBJECTION
Steve Siggs, local resident
Martin Rabbets, local resident.
IN SUPPORT
14

–9–

PLANNING COMMITTEE
22 April 2021
Matt Farr, local resident.
Enoely Fernandez, proprietor of Lazy Fox Cafe.
WARD COUNCILLORS
. Cllr J Beesley.
. Cllr N Greene.
RESOLVED that the application be granted planning permission, in
line with the recommendations as set out in the report, subject to
amendments to the following conditions, as requested by the
Committee:




Condition 5, to include wording to state no more than 12
covers.
Condition 6, to remove the word ‘amplified’ so that no music at
all can be played/ performed in the rear garden.
For the Case Officer to email the local Licensing Authority to
advise them planning permission has been granted and that in
the representations received, concern was raised about how the
premises would be managed/ operated.

Voting:
For – 8

Against – 5

Abstentions – 0

Note: A previous vote to refuse the application was defeated.

The meeting ended at 6.45 pm
CHAIRMAN

15

This page is intentionally left blank

16

Agenda Item 7
PLANNING COMMITTEE
PROTOCOL FOR PUBLIC STATEMENTS AT MEETINGS
This protocol makes provision for public statements to be taken into account
in the decision-making process at meetings of the Planning Committee. It
enables objectors and applicants/supporters to submit a written statement on
planning applications for consideration at the meeting. These statements will
be read out at the meeting on their behalf.
The protocol is intended to be an interim measure that takes account of ongoing limitations resulting from the Covid pandemic. It will remain in force
until a revised protocol is adopted.
This protocol is separate from and is not intended to replicate or replace the
procedure of submitting a written representation on a planning application to
the Planning Offices during the consultation period.
1. Every meeting of the Planning Committee may be attended by any member of

the public to the extent as provided for in the Council’s adopted Access to
Information Procedure Rules as set out in the Constitution. The Council will
also aim to electronically live broadcast such meetings*. The provisions below
provide a mechanism for members of the public to submit statements to be read
out at a meeting in relation to individual planning applications. As a result,
members of the public attending a meeting will not normally be given
opportunity to speak at the meeting on such matters save as required to accord
with the provisions of the Constitution and the law.
2. Objectors and applicants/supporters, including Parish or Town Council

representatives, who wish to provide a written statement to be read out on their
behalf at the Planning Committee must submit this to Democratic Services by
12noon on the day before the meeting.
3. There will be a maximum of two statements from objectors and a maximum of

two statements from applicants/supporters on each planning application
considered by the Committee. Each statement may consist of up to 450 words.
4. Statements will be accepted on a first come, first served basis. Statements will

not be accepted once the limit has been reached. Objectors, and
applicants/supporters with similar views are encouraged to co-ordinate in
advance in the production of statements.
5. Statements will be read aloud by the Democratic Services Officer once the

Presenting Officer has completed their presentation on each planning
application.

17

6. Ward Councillors who have referred an application to the Planning Committee

for decision will be expected to attend and speak at the meeting wherever
possible, to explain their reasons for the call in. Other Ward Councillors may
also wish to attend and speak at the meeting. Ward Councillor attendance will
continue to be facilitated virtually using MS Teams.
7. Any Ward Councillor attending and speaking at the meeting must also submit a

written version of what they intend to say to Democratic Services by 12noon on
the day before the meeting. In the event of a Ward Councillor not being able to
access the meeting at the appropriate time for any reason, this statement will
be read out on their behalf to ensure their views can be taken into account.
Statements may consist of up to 900 words.
8. Any member of the Planning Committee who has referred an application to the

Committee for decision and who has a predetermined view on that application
may speak as a Ward Councillor in accordance with the provisions in this
protocol, but will not be able to participate in the discussion or vote as a member
of the Committee.
9. Written statements should refer to planning related issues as these are the only

matters the Committee can consider when making decisions on planning
applications.
Statements must direct points to reinforcing or amplifying the planning
representations already made to the Council in writing. Guidance on what
constitutes planning considerations is included at the end of this document.
Statements must not include derogatory or defamatory comments.
10. Anyone submitting a written statement who wishes to provide still photographs

or illustrations (a maximum of five) to be displayed on screen while their
statement is being read aloud must submit these to Democratic Services at
least 48 clear hours before the time specified for the start of the meeting on the
agenda.
11. Any updates on planning applications to be considered by the Committee will

be published by Democratic Services as soon as possible after 12noon on the
day before the meeting.
12. In considering each application the Committee will normally consider

contributions from people in the following order:
•
•
•
•

Presenting Officer(s)
Objectors
Applicant/Supporters
Ward Councillors (for the avoidance of doubt and for the purposes of this
protocol, the term ‘ward councillor’ means a councillor who is not a
member of the planning committee)

18

•

Questions and discussion by Members of the Planning Committee,
which may include points of clarification from Officers, leading to a
decision.

13. Exceptionally, in cases of significant major planning applications the Chairman

of the Planning Committee may exercise discretion in respect of provisions
within this protocol. Arrangements will be agreed in advance in consultation with
Planning Services and Democratic Services.
14. Please note that meetings of the Planning Committee are recorded for live and

subsequent broadcast by the Council, and will be published on the Council’s
website for a minimum of six months after the meeting date *. Agenda, reports
and broadcasts can be accessed using the following link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=290&Year=0
For further information about public statements at Planning Committee please contact
democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

The National Planning Portal provides the following guidance on material planning
considerations:
‘A material consideration is a matter that should be taken into account in deciding a
planning application or on an appeal against a planning decision. Material
considerations can include (but are not limited to):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Overlooking/loss of privacy
Loss of light or overshadowing
Parking
Highway safety
Traffic
Noise
Effect on listed building and conservation area
Layout and density of building
Design, appearance and materials
Government policy
Disabled persons' access
Proposals in the Development Plan
Previous planning decisions (including appeal decisions)
Nature conservation

However, issues such as loss of view, or negative effect on the value of properties
are not material considerations.’
https://www.planningportal.co.uk/faqs/faq/4/what_are_material_considerations

19

* The electronic broadcasting and recording of a meeting is dependent upon the
Council being reasonably practically able to do so at the time of the meeting. A
meeting may proceed even if it cannot be electronically broadcast and / or
recorded.

20

Agenda Item 9a

PLANNING COMMITTEE
Application Address
Proposal

Application Number
Applicant
Agent
Date Application Valid
Decision Due Time
Extension of Time date
(if applicable)
Ward
Meeting Date
Recommendation
Reason for Referral to
Planning Committee

Case Officer

Arndale House, 243 High Street North and 1-17 Kingland
Road, Poole.
Demolish existing buildings and erect mixed-use
development comprising 128 residential apartments (Use
Class C3) together with nine ground floor commercial
units (Use Classes A1, A3 or B1a) and associated
ancillary works including car and cycle parking
APP/18/00494/F
Poole Property Investments Limited
DPP Planning
26 April, 2018
21 December, 2018

20th May 2021
Grant Subject TO CIL Contribution
This application is brought before committee due to the
proposal is for major development where the Council has
an interest in the land.

Eleanor Godesar

Description of Development
1.

Full planning consent is sought to demolish existing buildings and erect mixeduse development comprising 128 residential apartments (Use Class C3)
together with nine ground floor commercial units (Use Classes A1, A3 or B1a)
and associated ancillary works including car and cycle parking

2.

The application site has been registered as Arndale House. Part of the site is
also known as Kingland House and this is the name which the applicant has
used on submitted drawings and reports.

3.

The proposal has been amended significantly since the application was first
submitted. The current proposal has been reduced from 225 flats down to 128
flats. The height, scale and massing have also been amended, having evolved
from two separate buildings in the upper levels with greater massing to a single
building which has an overall reduced height and progressively steps down in
height from High Street North to Seldown Lane.

21

4.

Key characteristics of the current proposal are:
 128 apartments, down from 145 in the previous submission. The original
submission comprised 225 apartments.
 The overall height of the proposal has been reduced, with the tallest
building reduced from 15 storeys down to 11 storeys
 The setting back of the top of the tallest element of the building
 A reduction in the height of the middle section of the building by two storeys
 The removal of windows on the lower element of the south side elevation to
allow for an increased future height on the phase 2 element of the site;
 Amendments to proposed balconies
 Greater activation at the ground floor has been introduced;
 9 double height retail units have been added to the ground floor fronting
Kingland Road;
 Parking spaces are now located on the ground floor rather than the first
floor.
 An increase in the parking ratio; and
 Amendments to the servicing arrangements for the ground floor commercial
units.

Description of Site and Surroundings
5.

The application site is located on the northern side of Poole town centre which
is dominated by twentieth century, generally low rise, commercial buildings
which vary in scale and massing. The site and surrounds are dominated by
their built form with limited trees and landscaping.

6.

To the north, the built form transitions to predominantly residential areas. To the
west is the primary retail frontage within the Dolphin Centre. Other notable
buildings are the Lighthouse to the east and the Barclays building to the north
west. The north west of the site adjoins the George roundabout which is a key
circulation point for vehicles traveling in the town centre. To the south is a large
area of public car parking, including a multi-storey car park.

7.

The George Hotel is the closest heritage asset to the north of the application
site and is locally listed.

Relevant Planning History
8.

No previous planning applications of relevance.

9.

Pre-application – mixed use proposal for ground floor commercial units and
upper floor residential, retirement living and hotel uses. Whilst no overall formal
written response was provided, pre-application discussions on the original 14
storey building focused upon design and highways issues. Urban design
comments considered existing height of buildings and whilst a tall building was
feasible adjacent to the George roundabout, the height along Kingland Road
would need to be significantly reduced to compliment buildings of 4/5 storeys in
height. The discussions related to design helped evolve the proposal in terms
of height, mass and the impact on the skyline. Highways issues related to

22

shortfall in residential parking, impact on the viability of the hotel if it did not
offer parking and servicing to the commercial units. Existing coach / taxi parking
would restrict manoeuvring of service vehicles. The servicing bay located to the
end of High Street North would also cause major safety and potential
congestion issues especially from drivers emerging onto the busy roundabout
or vehicles queueing to enter the service bay (PREA/16/00069).

Constraints
10. None
Biodiversity / Habitats
11. In accordance with section 40 Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006, in considering this application, regard has been had, so far as is
consistent with the proper exercise of this function, to the purpose of
conserving biodiversity.
Consultations
First round of consultation
12. Planning Policy (Urban Design/Heritage) – A taller building fronting George
roundabout has potential to define and enclose this relatively large space,
which is a key arrival point from the town centre. However, the proposed height
would be considerably higher than adjacent buildings. Of more concern is the
scale and height of the building along Kingland Road and the lack of active
frontage.
The setting of the locally listed George Hotel will be altered as the built form
proposed will be more dominant than the existing building. In combination with
Keel House, the heritage asset would become more enclosed by built form.
However, the harm does not result from any loss or damage directly to the
asset and the proposed building is separated from the heritage asset. As such,
the scale of harm does not warrant an objection to the application.
13. BCP Highways Authority – as originally submitted, the proposal failed to
provide safe and efficient servicing arrangements for the proposed commercial
and residential units and fails to provide safe and efficient car park access. The
proposal also failed to provide appropriate levels of car parking provision for the
likely needs of the development.
14. Lead Local Flood Risk Authority – permeable paving stated, but don’t know
extent; need to consider site infiltration; will there be a green roof; drainage
system indicated as being already at capacity
15. Environmental Services (Contaminated Land) – There is the potential for made
ground and the presence of a sub-station in proximity to the site. Consequently,
there is the potential for contamination to exist which could affect future users

23

of the site. No objection, subject to conditions.
16. Environmental Services (Noise) – a Construction Noise Management Plan
should be submitted.
17. Environmental Services (Open Space & Green Infrastructure) – a contribution
is required to mitigate for the impact of the new residents on the existing open
spaces. The proposal would need to provide green infrastructure, a green roof
is suggested, and biodiversity enhancements.
18. Waste Collection Authority – Bin storage would be more than 10 metres from
kerbside. Subterranean bins may be an option.
19. Place Planning and School Organisation – The proposal is likely to generate 16
early years, primary and secondary places and a monetary contribution would
be sought through CIL or s106.
20. NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group – requesting a s106 financial
contribution to provide additional primary care services.
21. Dorset Police – whilst occupants will have access to sustainable transport, the
shortfall of car parking causes concerns. The car park is not secure in terms of
protecting vehicles and bicycles. Robust internal security and
compartmentalization to prevent communal doors and corridors allowing free
access to intruders will be required. The loading bay is problematic with
vehicles entering and leaving the site from traffic flow feeding into the George
Roundabout
22. The Society for Poole – high dependency on occupants walking, cycling or
using public transport. This is acceptable for accessing the facilities in the town
but not necessarily for employment. Shortfall of parking may blight the vicinity.
23. Environment Agency – no objection
24. Natural England – objection due to lack of information to determine impacts of
internationally protected sites.
25. Theatres Trust - concerns regarding the potential impact of the development on
the operation and viability of the Lighthouse in relation to the servicing bay
which is located along its south-west corner. Servicing occurs late at night
(particularly after performances), early in the morning and at weekends to
facilitate the moving of sets and other heavy items. This inevitably results in
some noise. Concerns that having the flats too close may result in restrictions
being imposed on the Lighthouse which would compromise its ongoing viability
and role as a cultural asset for Poole.
26. Lighthouse Theatre – Suitable acoustic treatments should be provided for flats
to the rear of the Lighthouse to minimise the impact of noise from late-night
commercial activities. Lighthouse must maintain 24-hour access to the Theatre
and Concert Hall loading bays for the delivery of equipment and supplies. A

24

covenant should be considered to prevent future occupants from submitting
noise complaints relating to the commercial activities of Lighthouse.
Operational delivery of the commercial activities of Lighthouse should not be
impeded.
27. Go South Coast – Over-provision of car parking given it is close to sustainable
travel options and public car parking spaces. The proposed level of parking and
hence traffic to or from the site will affect bus access to the Bus Station and the
proposal does not allow for the reconfiguration of George Roundabout.
Second Round of Consultation
28. Planning Policy (Urban Design) – the amendments represent a positive change
to the building. The section fronting Kingland Road has been reduced in height
by two storeys, the top floor continues to be recessed. The building would nine
storey as opposed to eleven storey in this section. The reduction in height is a
positive change that creates a stronger separation between this central part of
the building and the taller part of the building that fronts onto the George
roundabout.
At nine storey, the central part of the building would be a significant building
and would be dominant in more distant views from the wider area. However,
town centre north is identified as the most suitable location to accommodate
taller buildings. Therefore, there is a balanced judgement to be made in
respecting the existing character but acknowledging the context in town centre
north is evolving and will continue to evolve.
Additional retail uses on the ground floor would provide further active frontage.
The blank wall along High Street North has been reduced.
29. BCP Highways Authority – amendments to the width of the access, bicycle
provision, servicing and arrangements for waste vehicles have been
negotiated. Supports the application, subject to conditions and s106.
30. Lead Local Flood Risk Authority – support, subject to condition relating to final
drainage design.
31. Environment Agency – no objection
32. NHS Dorset Clinical Commissioning Group – requesting a s106 financial
contribution to provide additional primary care services.
33. Theatres Trust – Support the principle of development but express concern
regarding the positioning of a number of residential units adjacent to the
Lighthouse’s servicing bay.
34. Lighthouse – lack of suitable acoustic treatments; proposed café would be
adjacent to an existing outlet in the Lighthouse; increased traffic congestion on
Seldown Lane may impede operational delivery of commercial activities.

25

35. Natural England – refer to previous consultation
36. Go South Coast – over-provision of proposed car parking proposed which is
close to sustainable travel options and public car parking; impact of additional
traffic to or from the site will affect bus access to the Bus Station.
37. Life Church – currently occupy part of the site. They are open to relocating,
however point out that their activities are focused on the town centre and would
like any relocation to be mindful of this.
38. Poole Quays Forum – No objection to the demolition of the existing building. Do
not consider that the proposed commercial units would provide a positive
contribution to the urban environment; high density proposal which
compromises on creating a high-quality living environment; lacks affordable
housing; addition of balconies and varying building heights welcomed; planting
to balconies and roof would enhance the built form.
Representations
39. In addition to letters to neighbouring properties a site notice was posted outside
the site on 1 October 2018 with an expiry date for consultation of 25 October
2018. A further letter consultation was carried out on 19 June 2019 following
amended plans.
40. Representations have been received from four separate addresses, raising
objection. The issues raised comprise the following:
 The building is too high (14 floors)
 High rise would erode the character of Poole
 Overshadowing and loss of sunlight; compatibility for future occupants with
the nearby Lighthouse
 Impact of additional traffic in vicinity of the site
Key Issues
41. The key issues involved with this proposal are:
 Provision of commercial units
 Design of the building in context of local patterns of development and
neighbouring buildings
 Heritage assets
 Affordable Housing
 Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings
 Amenity and privacy of neighbours and future occupants
 Parking, Access and Servicing
 Waste Collection
 Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
 Renewable energy
 Biodiversity enhancement
42. These issues will be considered along with other matters relevant to this

26

proposal below.
Planning Policies
43. Poole Local Plan (Adopted 2018)
PP01
PP02
PP03
PP04
PP07
PP08
PP11
PP12
PP22
PP23
PP27
PP28
PP29
PP31
PP32
PP33
PP34
PP35
PP37
PP39
PP40

Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Amount and broad location of development
Poole town centre strategy
Town Centre North regeneration area
Facilitating a step change in housing delivery
Type and mix of housing
Affordable housing
Housing for an ageing population
Retail and main town centre uses
Tourism and the evening/night time economy
Design
Flats and plot severance
Tall buildings
Poole's coast and countryside
Poole's important sites
Biodiversity and geodiversity
Transport strategy
A safe, connected and accessible transport network
Building sustainable homes and businesses
Delivering Poole's infrastructure
Viability

44. Supplementary Planning Document
SPD3
SPD4
SPD5
SPD6
SPD7

Dorset Heathlands Planning Framework (2020-2025)
Affordable Housing SPD (Adopted November 2011)
Poole Harbour Recreation SPD (2019-2024)
Nitrogen Reduction in Poole Harbour (Adopted Feb 2017)
Parking Standards SPD (adopted January 2021)

45. National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019)
Section 2 – Achieving Sustainable Development
Paragraph 11 –
“Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable
development…
For decision-taking this means:
(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or
(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date,
granting permission unless:

27

(i)

the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing
the development proposed; or
(ii) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies of this
Framework taken as a whole.”
Section 5 – Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Section 7 – Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Section 11 – Making effective use of land
Section 12 – Achieving well-designed places
Section 14 – Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change
Planning Assessment
Principle of Development
46. A strategic objective of the Poole Local Plan is to deliver a wide range and mix
of homes in the most sustainable locations as detailed in PP01. There is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development within the NPPF. Paragraph
11 of the NPPF states that where policies which are most important for
determining the application are out of date, planning permission must be
granted unless policies in the Framework provide a clear reason for refusing
the development proposals.
47. The Housing Delivery Test for the Poole Local Plan area was published in
January 2021. In high level terms, the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) compares
the net homes delivered over three years to the homes that should have been
built over the same period (the housing requirement). The HDT shows that the
total number of homes delivered in Poole compared to those required over a
defined 3 year period was 73% which is slightly below the government's
threshold of 75% - the number of homes required between 2017 and 2020 was
1,860 whereas the number of homes delivered in that time period was 1,361.
This results in a shortfall of 499 dwellings over the Local Plan target for that
period. As a reminder, the 5-year residential supply and HDT results continue
to relate to each legacy area separately until the existing legacy local plans are
superseded by a BCP Local Plan.
48. It is recognised that as the site is not designated or relates to any of the policies
as set out in footnote 6 of paragraph 11 of the NPPF (2019), the presumption in
favour of sustainable development is engaged and the ‘tilted balance’ needs to
be applied as per the NPPF below;
49. For decision-taking this means:
(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date

28

(d)

development plan without delay; or
where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date,
granting permission unless:
(i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing
the development proposed; or
(ii) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in this Framework taken as a whole.

50. Given the shortfall of number of homes delivered in the Local Plan area, the
balance is tilted in favour of sustainable development and granting planning
permission, except where the benefits are significantly and demonstrably
outweighed by the adverse impacts or where specific policies in the NPPF
provide a clear reason for refusal. The tilted balance forms a material
consideration in this case.
51. In terms of meeting housing needs, a strategic objective of the Poole Local
Plan is to deliver a wide range and mix of homes in the most sustainable
locations. Policy PP2 identifies the amount and broad locations of development
and states that the majority of new housing will be directed to the most
accessible locations within Poole, these being the town centre, district and local
centres and locations close to the sustainable transport corridors. The intention
of this policy is that within these areas the majority of higher density
development will place a greater number of people within close walking
distance of public transport and a range of services/facilities as a convenient
alternative to use of the car. The application site is located within the town
centre and complies with Policy PP2.
Commercial Units
52. The application proposes nine commercial units which would have active
frontage along Kingland Road and the George Roundabout. These units, which
range from 23 m2 to 50 m2 would replace existing units. Several of the existing
units are currently occupied by professional services and a church. There are
also a number of vacant units, including part of the site which was formerly
used by Natwest.
53. The Poole Local Plan adopts a town centre first approach. The application site
is within the town centre and is allocated as a mixed use development.
54. The proposed uses, as defined under the previous use classes order, would
include retail (A1), restaurant and café (A3) and office use (B1a). These uses
would fit into the current Class E of the use classes order and other uses under
Class E would be acceptable. Operating hours could be secured by condition
(#8) to mitigate against potential conflict with the proposed residential
properties.
55. The proposed commercial units would maintain retail and other main town

29

centre uses within a town centre location, in accordance the Policy PP22 of the
Poole Local Plan and Section 7 of the NPPF.
Design of the Building in Context of Local Patterns of Development and
Neighbouring Buildings
56. Policy PP28 of the Poole Local Plan states that flats will be permitted where the
plot can accommodate a form of development that ensures scale and massing
of the building and resultant plot coverage, including buildings, parking, cycle
and bin storage and other hard surfacing, would be in keeping with
neighbouring buildings and the established pattern of development in the street
or part of the street. The policy also requires that car parking and turning areas
do not dominate the site or materially harm neighbouring privacy and amenity.
57. Policy PP28 is reinforced by Policy PP27 of the Poole Local Plan, which also
seeks to ensure that development exhibits a high standard of design that will
complement or enhance Poole's character and local distinctiveness by
respecting the setting and character of the site, surrounding area and adjoining
buildings by virtue of function, siting, landscaping and amenity space, scale,
massing, height, design details, materials and appearance.
58. The NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that developments will
function well and add to the overall quality of the area over their lifetime; are
visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping; are welcoming and distinctive places to live and visit; and
create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible (para.127).
59. The application has been amended during its life so that it now proposes 128
flats. These would a combination of 51 x 1 bedroom, 75 x 2 bedroom and 2 x 3
bedroom flats which would be located on the upper floors of the building.
60. The area has a varied urban character and a number of well documented urban
design issues, including the dominant road layout, lack of active frontages and
large bulky buildings which lack architectural merit and contribute to a negative
perception of this part of Poole town centre. Building heights are typically three
to five storey. However, there are examples of taller buildings such as Barclays,
Merek House, Corfe House and Keel House. The site is identified in Policy PP4
of the Poole Local Plan as an allocated site (T5) in the Town Centre North
regeneration area. The local plan allocates it for approximately 150 homes and
other commercial uses. The allocation also specifies that a proposal contribute
towards the enhancement of Kingland Road and any public realm initiatives.
61. The proposal would have a stepped design with the highest part of the building
facing towards the George roundabout at eleven storeys. The proposal would
define and enclose the relatively large space of George roundabout, which is a
key arrival point from the town centre. The tower element has been designed
with strong vertical emphasis and a stepped roof profile. The massing would
articulated into three elements and, along with the triangular framed balconies,
would add interest to the building.

30

62. Along Kingland Road, the proposal steps down to eight storeys with the top
floor being recessed. This provides an acceptable height difference with the
tower element. The reduced height in this central section provides integration
with lower buildings along Kingland Road.
63. The development is proposed to be built in two phases. This is due to a long
term lease on the southern part of the site associated with the church. The
building steps down from eight storeys to three storeys and then two in the part
of the building adjacent to Seldown Lane. Depending on future agreement on
this part of the site, there is potential to increase the height of the building to
include more accommodation.
64. The streetscene in the vicinity of the application site is starting to evolve with
taller buildings being constructed. When compared to older, lower buildings, the
proposal would have a dominant appearance when viewed from the wider area,
including Holes Bay, down Wimborne Road and across Poole Park. However,
PP29 of the Local Plan and the Town Centre SPD identifies Town Centre North
as one of the most suitable locations for tall buildings and this area is identified
for regeneration and change. The beginnings of an evolving character are
apparent in the buildings coming forward at Keel House and Wimborne Road.
As other sites come forward, the proposal would become less dominant.
65. The materials could be secured by condition (#4) but show predominantly brick
walls with some concrete and render. These materials would reflect the mixed
style of individual buildings in the streetscene.
66. The application site is currently dominated by built form and hard surfacing,
with low landscaping nearby in the public realm. There are some limited
opportunities for surface level landscaping within the red line of the site. A
green roof has also been suggested and its consideration could be secured by
condition (#5).
67. In the context of an evolving streetscene where tall buildings are being
encouraged, the proposal would therefore have a height, scale, massing and
appearance which would reflect the evolving local patterns of development and
neighbouring buildings. There is some opportunity to provide more landscaping
than is currently provided on the site. The proposal is therefore in accordance
with policies PP4, PP27, PP28 and PP29 of the Poole Local Plan and Section
12 of the NPPF.
Heritage Assets
68. Paragraph 197 of the NPPF states that the effect of the proposal on
significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account. A
balanced judgement is required on the scale of any direct or indirect harm.
69. The closest heritage assets are located to the north of the application site and
are the George Hotel and, beyond this, the former bus depot at. Both sites are
non-designated locally listed buildings.

31

70. The George Hotel has architectural merit and fronts on to the roundabout. The
setting of the locally listed building would be altered as the built form would be
more dominant than the existing building. In combination with the constructed
seven storey development at Keel House, the George Hotel would become
more enclosed by built form. In this instance, however, the harm would not
result in any loss or damage directly to the asset and there would be adequate
separation distance that any harm would be less than substantial. Due to the
separation to 2 Wimborne Road and intervening buildings, the impacts to the
setting of this heritage asset are considered to be acceptable.
71. Whilst the proposal would not enhance or better reveal the significance and
value of the George Hotel, the tilted balance needs to be applied in this case.
The site is a non-designated heritage asset and the benefit of providing 128
homes would be sufficient to outweigh the indirect harm to the George Hotel, in
accordance with paragraph 197 of the NPPF.
Affordable Housing
72. Policy PP11 of the Poole Local Plan states that to meet housing needs the
Council will seek to maximise the amount of affordable housing from all housing
schemes of 11 or more homes or over 1,000 square metres in floor space. The
proposal has 128 units which triggers the requirement for the provision of
affordable housing. Due to the location of the application site, the affordable
housing target that is to be sought in relation to this current proposal is 10%
affordable housing.
73. In accordance with Policy PP40, an applicant can seek to demonstrate to the
Council that a proposal would not be viable if it were policy compliant. The
applicant has submitted a Residual Land Value (RLV) assessment which was
based upon the previous proposal for 145 units. This assessment has been
evaluated by the DVS. The DVS concluded that the proposal would have a
substantial deficit and is not capable of providing any affordable housing
contribution. The deliverability of the development has also been questioned by
the DVS. Given the significant deficit, it has been agreed that the additional
costs required to amend the RLV assessment for the current proposal for 128
units and then get it evaluated by the DVS would not be justified since the
results would be similar.
74. The proposal therefore meets the requirements of Policies PP11 and PP40 and
the acceptability of the principle of the proposed development therefore rests
with an assessment of whether it delivers a sustainable pattern of development.
Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings
75. In accordance with PP12 of the Poole Local Plan, 20% of the flats must be
designed in accordance with Building Regulations Part M4(2) for adaptable and
accessible homes. Amended plans have been received for Flat Types 04, 06
and 07. Minor changes have been made to the entrance, internal circulation,
bedrooms and bathroom of these flats to be compliant to M4(2). Seventy four of
the flats are shown as M4(2) compliant which would address the 20%

32

requirement. These provisions could be secured by condition (#6).
Amenity and Privacy of Neighbours and Future Occupants
76. The closest neighbours to the proposal are commercial properties at 245, 247249 and 251 High Street North. The closest residential neighbours with facing
windows are at Voyager House. These properties are located to the north east
of the application site. Other residential properties are at greater distance from
the application site, including Keel House to the north east.
77. 247-249 High Street North has two first floor windows which face towards the
proposal. This premises appears to be in office use. The separation distance
would be approximately 18 metres. There would be some overbearing impact
to upper floor windows which would result in some loss of outlook and
daylighting. However, there are other windows on the first floor and taking into
account the existing four storey building on the application site, daylighting and
outlook from 247-249 High Street North would not be significantly harmed.
78. Voyager House has upper floor windows which face towards the application
site. The separation distance is greater than 247-249 High Street North and is
at least 32 metres. Taking into account the existing four storey building on the
application site and the orientation of the tallest part of the building which
increases the separation distance from Voyager House, there is sufficient
separation to preserve amenity of Voyager House in terms of daylighting and
outlook.
79. There is sufficient separation distance between facing windows of at least 18
metres to the closest neighbours to preserve neighbouring privacy.
80. The majority of flats are single aspect, however, habitable accommodation
would receive sufficient daylighting and outlook. All flats would achieve the
minimum gross floor space areas specified in the nationally described space
standards.
81. Most flats would have access to private external amenity space in the form of a
balcony. Balcony screens would be required and secured by condition (#7) for
the west facing flats on Level 1 to prevent close proximity views back to
adjoining flats. The other balconies have been decreased in depth and widened
so there would be views between balconies on each level if they were to be
used at the same time, however, the balconies would not be deep enough to
result in views towards adjoining flat windows.
82. The flats on the lower floors would be in proximity to the ground floor
commercial units and vehicle movements associated with the building. The site
is a town centre location and future occupants would need to accept an
elevated level of daytime and evening activity, compared to a quieter residential
location. However, impact of the commercial units on the residential units within
the site could be mitigated by securing operating hours, noise details and fume
extraction details from future cafes/restaurants through conditions (#8, #9, #10
and #11).

33

83. The proposal is therefore in accordance with PP27 of the Poole Local Plan and
would preserve neighbouring and future occupant amenity and privacy.
Parking, Access and Servicing
84. A significant amount of work has been undertaken to result in a proposal which
is now acceptable in highway terms. Since the application was submitted, the
BCP Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document was adopted on 5
January 2021. As a result of this new SPD, zero parking in this town centre
location would be compliant. However, some disabled parking would be
provided and operational parking space would assist with servicing the
commercial units, reducing the risk of inconsiderate service vehicle parking on
major roads adjacent to the site. In addition, the applicant’s agent has
previously outlined that discussions have taken place with local Members and
they stated a desire to see some car parking. In order to reduce the reliance on
car ownership, car trips to the site and meet aims of encouraging sustainable
travel, Car Club provision and a Travel Plan with sustainable travel vouchers
have been sought. These could be secured through a s106 legal agreement.
Therefore, overall the levels of car parking proposed are accepted.
85. The cycle parking has been re-arranged to provide two larger stores rather than
various smaller stores. This is welcomed. Cycle parking would also be provided
at 1 space per bedroom, which complies in terms of number with Council’s
adopted parking standards. There is still an overprovision of stacking cycle
parking compared with standard Sheffield type hoops and some of the cycle
parking spaces appear awkward to access. However, the planning application
was submitted a significant time prior to the current SPD and a pragmatic
approach has been taken to accept the cycle stacking system which was
previously acceptable in the now superseded Borough of Poole parking SPD. In
addition, providing more Sheffield type stands would reduce the car parking.
Given the local support for some car parking to be provided, the current mix of
vehicle parking and cycle parking is acceptable and could be secured by
condition (#12).
86. Electric Vehicle Charging would need to be provided in line with the Parking
Standards SPD but could be secured by condition (#13).
87. The access to the site would be from Seldown Lane and previous issues
related to its width have been resolved and secured by conditions (#14, #15
and #16). The amended plans have removed the Seldown Lane half lay-by and
this is welcomed. A condition is suggested to deal with potential refuse
collection issues from a refuse vehicle waiting on the main road.
88. There is an existing bus stop located where the proposed new car park
entrance would be and would need to be moved further south on Seldown
Lane. This could be secured by condition (#17).
89. The plans show tables and chairs located outside the site boundary. Any such
tables or chairs that are to be located on the Highway would be subject to a

34

separate licence application process under the Highways Act. Any approval
granted as part of the planning process does not grant approval for such tables
and chairs.
90. The proposal would therefore preserve highway safety and complies with
provisions of policies PP34 and PP35 of the Poole Local Plan the BCP Parking
Standards SPD.
Waste Collection
91. The proposal has 128 flats which would require 48 x 1100 litre capacity bins.
The amended plans show two bins stores that can only accommodate 22 of the
48 bins required for the residential apartments. In addition, the collection
vehicles would be unable to enter a building to collect bins because the height
restriction would prevent the vehicle from carrying out an ejection of waste
material in the event of an emergency.
92. Using underground bins in the highway has been investigated, however, there
is not sufficient room. The applicant’s agent has suggested using a private
contractor. A private contractor would potentially have more ability to operate a
smaller, non-standard vehicle, therefore potentially avoiding undercroft building
height issues. This is not an ideal solution since the Local Waste Authority has
a statutory requirement to collect residential waste if a private contractor were
to cease. However, it is less likely in this development since it is a single block
development where there is likely to be one management company for the
residential units and residents would pay a management fee.
93. On this matter, the tilted balance needs to be taken into consideration and the
benefits of providing 128 flats significantly outweigh the adverse impact in
relation to collection of waste. A condition is suggested (#18) which would
require the submission and agreement of a servicing and refuse management
plan. This document would need to stipulate that private refuse collection must
take place with the vehicle parked within the site and prevent a private
contractor from choosing to park on Seldown Road.
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) and Flood Risk
94. A drainage plan has been submitted with the proposal. This provides enough
detail to be satisfied that the discharge from the site would be reduced and
poses a significant betterment for the public surface water network in this area
and downstream. Additional detail would need to be secured by a condition
requiring a final drainage design. Given the location and nature of the site,
soakaways would not be feasible. However, there is potential for some on-site
infiltration. It would be expected at final design stage that each type of SuDS
system be considered and reasoning for selecting/rejecting a particular option
justified.
95. There is the potential to install a green roof and this has been suggested in the
design plan. A green roof would also contribute towards biodiversity
enhancement for the site. Further consideration for this option could be secured

35

through the landscaping and SuDS conditions (#5 and #19).
96. The drainage strategy states that permeable paving is to be used on the site.
According to the SUDS mapping, the location should be suitable for SUDS, so
the use of permeable paving is welcome and further detail would be provided in
the final design.
97. The mapping available from the Environment Agency (Flood Map for Surface
Water) shows that the site is not at current day risk from flooding and is also in
future flood zone 1.
98. Subject to conditions, it can be ensured that the proposal meets with the Defra
guidance and would comply with policy PP38 of the Poole Local Plan.
Renewable Energy and BREEAM
99. No details for renewable energy sources have been submitted with the energy
and resources statement. Further detail would be required to demonstrate that
the proposal could achieve 20% of the estimated energy output through
renewable energy sources, in accordance with PP37 of the Poole Local Plan.
Being a new build, this could be achieved through details secured by condition
(#20).
100. The commercial units would be subject to BREEAM. Details for this have been
secured by condition (#21).
Protected Sites and Biodiversity Enhancement
101. The original advice from Natural England raised objection due to information
not being available to demonstrate that the proposal would be unlikely to have
an adverse impact on the integrity of Poole Harbour Special Protection Area
(SPA) and mitigation for Dorset heathlands and nitrogen offsetting to Poole
Harbour. However, this mitigation would be covered by CIL and SAMM
contributions. No bespoke measures are required and the Appropriate
Assessment concludes that, with the necessary mitigation measures secured,
there will be no adverse effect on the integrity of the designated sites.
102. A preliminary ecology appraisal has been submitted. Whilst the existing
building is capable of supporting roosting bats and nesting birds, the
emergence survey did not record any bats leaving or entering the building. The
site is therefore assessed to have low ecological value. Timing of works to
avoid the breeding bird season or checking the building for breeding birds could
be secured by condition (#22).
103. Biodiversity enhancements would be expected for the proposal, in accordance
with Policy PP33 of the Poole Local Plan. Native plant species within the
landscaping details and enhancements as recommended by an ecologist could
be secured by condition (#5 and #23) to comply with policy PP33 of the Poole
Local Plan.

36

Land Contamination
104. The application site has the potential for made ground and the presence of a
sub-station. A land contamination report and provision for unexpected
contamination is therefore secured by condition (#24).

Section 106 Agreement/CIL compliance
Contributions Required

Dorset
Heathland
SAMM

Flats

@ £269

Poole
Harbour
Recreation
SAMM
@ £96

£34,432.00

£12,288.00

Existing

0

Proposed 128
Net
increase

128

Total Contributions

£34,432.00
£12,288.00
(plus admin (plus admin
fee)
fee)

CIL

@ £60 per sq
m

Zone B (i)

105. Mitigation of the impact of the proposed development on recreational
facilities; Dorset Heathlands and Poole Harbour Special Protection Areas; and
strategic transport infrastructure is provided for by the Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule adopted by the Council in February 2019. In
accordance with CIL Regulation 28 (1) this confirms that dwellings are CIL
liable development and are required to pay CIL in accordance with the rates set
out in the Council’s Charging Schedule.
106. The site is within 5km (but not within 400m) of Heathland SSSI and the
proposed net increase in dwellings would not be acceptable without appropriate
mitigation of their impact upon the Heathland. As part of the Dorset Heathland
Planning Framework a contribution is required from all qualifying residential
development to fund Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) in
respect of the internationally important Dorset Heathlands. This proposal
requires such a contribution, without which it would not satisfy the appropriate
assessment required by the Habitat Regulations
107. In addition, the proposed net increase in dwellings would not be acceptable
without appropriate mitigation of their recreational impact upon the Poole

37

Harbour SPA and Ramsar site. A contribution is required from all qualifying
residential development in Poole to fund Strategic Access Management and
Monitoring (SAMM) in respect of the internationally important Poole Harbour.
This proposal requires such a contribution, without which it would not satisfy the
appropriate assessment required by the Habitat Regulations.
108. The relevant contributions towards Dorset Heathlands and Poole Harbour
Recreation SAMM will be secured through a s106 legal agreement.
109. An education contribution has been requested to provide for additional capacity
in schools. This would be secured through a s106.
110. The NHS has requested a contribution towards additional medical facilities in
Poole and would be secured through a s106.
Planning Balance / Conclusion
111. Given the shortfall of number of homes delivered in Poole, the balance is tilted
in favour of sustainable development and granting planning permission except
where the benefits are significantly and demonstrably outweighed by the
adverse impacts or where specific policies in the NPPF provide a clear reason
for refusal. The Council encourages sustainable development. This seeks to
strike a balance between the economic benefits of new housing with any
potential environmental impacts that result from the residential redevelopment
and the social benefits derived by the creation of much needed housing.
112. The proposal would contribute to the Council’s demand for new housing,
delivering 128 additional residential units of accommodation on site, in a
manner that would preserve the area’s evolving character.
113. The proposed commercial units would be located in the town centre and would
replace existing units which are comprised of office and retail use and a church.
Impact upon amenity of future occupants would be mitigated though conditions.
114. The proposal would have an impact on the nearby heritage asset. Whilst the
proposal would not enhance or better reveal the significance and value of the
George Hotel, it is non-designated rather than a designated heritage asset and
the harm caused by its increased enclosure would be indirect. The tilted
balance needs to be applied in this case and the public benefit of providing 128
homes would be sufficient to outweigh the less than substantial harm to the
George Hotel.
115. The proposal would have an impact on neighbouring and future occupant
amenity and waste collection arrangements. However, regard should be had to
all material planning considerations, the compliance of the proposal with the
provisions of all relevant policies of the Local Plan, as mentioned in the report,
and taking into account the ability to mitigate any identified impact on the
neighbouring amenity and waste collection arrangements through conditions.
116. The DVS have concluded that the proposal would have a substantial financial

38

deficit and the proposal is not capable of providing any affordable housing
contribution.
117. The proposal would have a shortfall of bin storage and the vehicles used by the
Waste Collection Authority would not be able to use the site safely. This could
be alleviated through use of a private contractor. Whilst not ideal, the tilted
balance needs to be taken into consideration and the benefits of providing 128
flats significantly outweigh the adverse impact in relation to collection of waste.
118. There are economic benefits and social benefits from the provision of additional
housing. The assessment of the environmental impacts concludes this to have
a neutral impact.
119. In conclusion, having regard to the above considerations and having the tilted
balance in mind, it is concluded that the proposal would achieve the economic,
social and environmental objectives of sustainable development, in line with the
adopted local policies and the provisions of the NPPF, and is therefore
recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION
120. GRANT permission with the following conditions, which are subject to
alteration/addition by the Head of Planning Services provided any
alteration/addition does not go to the core of the decision and the completion of
a Section 106 agreement with the following terms:
Details of Section 106 Agreement
1. A financial contribution of £34,432.00 (plus administration fee) towards
offsetting the recreational impact of the development on the Dorset
Heathlands SPA and SSSI in accordance with Policy PP32 of the Poole
Local Plan adopted November 2018 and the Dorset Heathlands Planning
Framework 2020-2025 Supplementary Planning Document adopted April
2020.
2. A financial contribution of £12,288.00 (plus administration fee) towards
offsetting the recreational impact of the development on Poole Harbour
SPA, in accordance with Policy PP32 of the Poole Local Plan adopted
November 2018 and the Poole Harbour Recreation Interim Scheme
Supplementary Planning Document (Adopted January 2019).
3. A financial contribution of £10,260.00 towards the cost of medical
facilities in Poole, in accordance with Policy PP39 of the Poole Local Plan
adopted November 2018.
4. A financial contribution of £187,947.00 towards education, in
accordance with Policy PP39 of the Poole Local Plan adopted November
2018.

39

5. The securing of two Car Club cars or equivalent contribution for a
minimum of 3 years and to have been implemented within 3 months of
first residential unit occupation, in accordance with PP34 and PP35 of the
Poole Local Plan adopted November 2018 and the BCP Parking Standards
Supplementary Planning Document adopted January 2021.
6. The securing of a residential Travel Plan to contain an option for each
household of either a 3 month free train or free bus travel voucher and
Beryl Bike Hire scheme vouchers per household. Vouchers to be
provided upon each household occupation, in accordance with PP34 and
PP35 of the Poole Local Plan adopted November 2018 and the BCP
Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document adopted January
2021.

Conditions
1. GN150 (Time Expiry 3 Years (Standard))
The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason This condition is required to be imposed by the provisions of Section 91 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and amended by Section 51(1) of the
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
2. PL01 (Plans Listing)
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:
0540-LDA-00-LL-DR-A-00-001 Rev P06 Existing Location Plan received 9
April 2018
0540-LDA-P2-LL-DR-A-20 115 Rev P01 Proposed Block Plan received 9 April
2018
0540-LDA-01-LL-AR-A R-A-01 001_29 04 2021 Flat Types Schedule received
30 April 2021
Internal Organisation Unit Types (extract from Design and Access Statement
June 2020) received 29 April 2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 004 Rev 1 Flat Type 04 received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 006 Rev 1 Flat Type 06 received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 007 Rev 1 Flat Type 07 received 2 October 2020
0540-Designer-DR-A-20 110a Rev 1 Phase 01 Ground Floor Plan received 30
April 2021
0540-Designer-DR-A-20 110b Rev 2 Phase 01 & 02 Ground Floor Plan
received 22 February 2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 120 Rev 1 Level 1 Plan received 30 April 2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 130 Level 2 Plan received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 140 Levels 3-6 Plan received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 150 Level 7 Plan received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 160 Level 8 Plan received 20 July 2020

40

0540-LDA-DR-A-20 170 Rev 1 Level 9 Plan received 30 April 2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 180 Level 10 Plan received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-20 190 Roof Level Plan received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-21 115 Rev 8 Section AA received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-21 116 Rev 8 Section BB received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-21 117 Rev 8 Section CC received 20 July 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 120 Rev 2 West & East Elevations received 30 April 2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 122 Rev 1 East Elevation 1/2 received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 123 Rev 2 East Elevation 2/2 received 30 April 2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 124 Rev 1 West Elevation 1/2 received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 125 Rev 1 West Elevation 2/2 received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 126 Rev 1 South Elevation received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-22 127 Rev 1 North Elevation received 2 October 2020
0540-LDA-DR-A-25 127 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 01 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 202 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 02A/B received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 203 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 03 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 204 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 04A/B received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 205 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 04C/D received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 206 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 05 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 207 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 06 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 208 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 07 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 209 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type 08 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 210 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type G1 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 211 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type G2 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 212 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type G3 received 30 April
2021
0540-LDA-DR-A-26 213 Rev 1 Façade Types – Type G4 received 30 April
2021
Reason For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
Prior to the construction of the building hereby approved, a scheme for
phasing of the development to be carried out shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with these details.
Reason -

41

To secure appropriately timed development of the site in relation to existing
occupiers and in accordance with Policy PP2 of the Poole Local Plan
(November 2018).
4. GN030 (Sample of Materials)
Details of all external facing and roofing materials to be used shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority before
any on-site works commence. The development shall thereafter be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory and in
accordance with Policy PP27 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
5. LS020 (Landscaping Scheme to be Submitted)
Prior to the construction of the development hereby approved proposals for the
landscaping of the site, including a green roof, shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The landscaping scheme
shall include provision for landscape native species planting, the retention and
protection of existing trees and other site features, walls, fencing and other
means of enclosure and any changes in levels.
Upon approval:
a) the approved scheme shall be fully implemented with new planting carried
out in the planting season October to March inclusive following first occupation
of the building or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner,
or in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority;
b) all planting shall be carried out in accordance with British Standards,
including regard for plant storage and ground conditions at the time of planting;
c) the scheme shall be properly maintained for a period of 5 years and any
plants (including those retained as part of the scheme) which die, are removed
or become damaged or diseased within this period shall be replaced in the
next planting season with others of a similar size and the same species, unless
the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation; and
d) the whole scheme shall be subsequently retained.
Reason In the interests of visual amenity, to ensure that the approved landscaping
scheme is carried out at the proper times and to ensure the establishment and
maintenance of all trees and plants in accordance with Policies PP27 and
PP33 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
6. GN180 (Accessible and adaptable dwellings)
At least 26 of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be built in accordance with
the requirements of Approved Document Part M4(2) Category 2 of the
Building Regulations (2015) (as amended).
Reason In the interests of meeting the needs of the ageing population and in
accordance with PP12 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018)

42

7. GN080 (Screening to Balcony)
Prior to the construction of the building hereby approved, details of an obscure
glazed screen of at least 1.8 metres in height to be erected along both sides of
the balcony associated with Flats 102 and 104 and the northern side of the
balcony associated with Flats 105, 116 and 121 on the approved plan shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
screens shall be erected in accordance with the approved details prior to the
first use of the balcony, hereby permitted, and shall thereafter be permanently
retained as such.
Reason In the interests of privacy and amenity of the neighbouring properties and in
accordance with Policy PP27 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
8. RC070 (Restriction on Hours of Use/Deliveries)
The use hereby permitted shall not operate and no deliveries taken at or
despatched from the site otherwise than between 08:00 and 22:00.
Reason In the interest of the amenities of adjoining and nearby residential properties
and in accordance with Policy PP27 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
9. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
Noise mitigation shall be carried out in accordance with findings of the
submitted Acoustics report, prepared by Hoare Lea, received 20 April 2018.
Prior to
Reason –
To ensure appropriate wildlife conservation and in accordance with Policy
PP33 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
10. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
No site clearance or development shall commence until a Construction Method
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The Construction Method Statement should include the
following measures:
a) arrangements for safe access to the site for deliveries, loading and
unloading of plant and materials and wheel cleansing of vehicles prior to
egress from the site onto the public highway;
b) noise reduction measures (including times of piling operations);
c) details and siting of equipment, machinery and surplus materials on the site;
d) development timetable including any road or car park closure times or
necessary periods of longer working hours.
The approved Construction Method Statement shall be implemented and
adhered to throughout the construction phase of the development.
Reason To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties

43

and in the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policies PP27, PP34
and PP35 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
11. NP080 (Fume Extraction Equipment)
For any commercial unit which involves the preparation of hot food, a scheme
for extraction of fumes, gases and odours shall be submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and then fully implemented. All
works which form part of the scheme shall be completed prior to first use of the
commercial unit and thereafter retained and maintained.
Reason To protect the amenities of occupiers of adjoining properties and in
accordance with Policy PP27 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
12. HW100 (Parking/Turning Provision)
The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the
access, turning space, vehicle parking and cycle parking shown on the
approved plan have been constructed, and these shall thereafter be retained
and kept available for those purposes at all times.
Reason In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policies PP27, PP34,
PP35 and PP36 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
13. HW240 (Electric Vehicle Charging Points)
Within 3 months of the commencement of the development details of the
provision of Electric Vehicle Charging Points and associated infrastructure
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.
Those details shall be in accordance with the BCP Council Parking Standards
SPD (adopted 5th January 2021). The approved details shall be implemented
and brought into operation prior to the occupation of any residential unit hereby
approved. Thereafter, the Electric Vehicle Charging Points shall be
permanently retained available for use at all times.
Reason In the interests of promoting sustainable development including sustainable
forms of transport in accordance with Policy PP35 of the Poole Local Plan November 2018
14. HW210 (Building Operatives Parking)
Parking for building operatives must be provided in accordance with the
agreed plans for the whole contract period, unless otherwise agreed in writing
by the Local Plan Authority.
Reason In the interests of highway safety and convenience and in accordance with
Policies PP27, PP34, PP35 and PP36 of the Poole Local Plan (November
2018).
15. HW060 (Close Other Access(es) by Physical Works)
A scheme to close the existing access (which is to be made redundant) shall

44

be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include provision to raise the existing lowered kerbs, and
reinstate the footway to the existing access and shall comply with the
standards adopted by the Local Highway Authority. All works shall be
completed in accordance with the approved scheme prior to first
occupation/use of the development.

Reason In the interests of highway safety in accordance with PP35 of the Poole Local
Plan (November 2018).
16. HW080 (First 4.5 Metres Constructed)
Concurrently with the construction of the development hereby permitted, the
first 4.5 metres of the access crossing, measured from the near side edge of
the carriageway, shall be laid out, constructed, hardened and surfaced, in
accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with Policies PP27, PP34,
PP35 and PP36 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
17. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
Prior to opening up of the proposed new car park access a scheme, including
timescale, to relocate the existing Seldown Lane bus stop (west side) located
adjacent to the site shall be agreed in writing with the LPA. The bus stop
relocation shall be carried out in accordance with that agreed scheme.
Reason In the interests of promoting sustainable development including sustainable
forms of transport in accordance with Policy PP35 of the Poole Local Plan
(November 2018).
18. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
Prior to commencement of development, a Servicing and Refuse Management
Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The plan shall include details of the building management company,
the continued employment of a private contractor to collect refuse, the
procedures for refuse collection, servicing, and deliveries associated with both
the residential and commercial units. All refuse storage and collection activities
shall take place within the site and at no time shall vehicles be parked on the
adopted highway whilst undertaking refuse collection activities associated with
any commercial or residential unit hereby approved. No refuse bins shall be
stored on the adopted highway. The approved Servicing and Refuse
Management Plan shall be implemented prior to occupation of any commercial
or residential unit hereby approved and shall remain in operation at all times
thereafter unless any variations are approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

45

Reason In the interests of providing for safe and efficient accessing and servicing
arrangements in accordance with Poole Local Plan Policy PP35.
19. DR040 (Sustainable Urban Drainage)
Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme for the provision of
sustainable urban drainage shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority. The drainage works shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved scheme and thereafter retained.
Reason To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a
satisfactory means of surface water disposal and in accordance with PP38 of
the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
20. GN162 (Renewable Energy - Residential)
Prior to first occupation of the building hereby permitted, details of measures to
provide 20% of the predicted future energy use from on-site renewable
sources of each dwelling and each commercial unit shall be submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These measures must
then be implemented before any residential occupation is brought into use,
and maintained thereafter.
ReasonIn the interests of delivering a sustainable scheme, reducing carbon emissions
and reducing reliance on centralised energy supply, and in accordance with
Policy PP37 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
21. GN161 (BREEAM)
The commercial units hereby permitted shall achieve a minimum BREEAM
'Excellent' rating (or equivalent standard). Prior to first occupation of the
building, the Post-Construction Review Certificate shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority verifying that the BREEAM rating has been met.
Reason In the interests of delivering a sustainable and energy efficient scheme and in
accordance with Policy PP37 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018).
22. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
Prior to the construction of the flats hereby permitted, details of biodiversity
enhancement to be delivered on site, prepared by suitably qualified and
experienced person/s, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority. The agreed enhancements shall be implemented
prior to occupation of any of the flats hereby approved. The details could
include but are not restricted to bat and bird boxes and bricks; bee bricks;
hedgehog ramps; native plant species.
Reason In order to deliver the biodiversity enhancement required by the NPPF and in
accordance with Policy PP33 of the Poole Local Plan adopted 2018.

46

23. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
All clearance and demolition work associated with the approved scheme shall
not be carried out during the bird nesting season (1st March - 30th August),
unless it can be sufficiently demonstrated by an ecologist that nesting birds are
not present.

Reason To ensure, before any disturbance occurs, the protection and rescue of
species protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981(as amended)
and in accordance with Policy PP33 of the Poole Local Plan.
24. AA01 (Non standard Condition)
In the event that contamination is found at any time during the approved
development that was not previously identified, it must be reported in writing
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk
assessment must be undertaken and, where remediation is necessary, a
remediation scheme must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of measures
identified in any such approved remediation scheme, a verification report must
be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority.
Prior to the commencement of any development pursuant to this permission,
the developer shall comply with the following:
1/ Desk Study
A Phase 1 Desk Study report shall be submitted for approval in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The Desk Study report should incorporate a
'conceptual model' of all the potential pollutant linkages on site based on the
proposed layout and use of the site.
2/ Site Characterisation
An intrusive site investigation, based on part 1/, and risk assessment must be
completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of
any contamination on the site. The investigation and risk assessment must be
undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.
3/ Remediation Scheme
If site characterisation identifies the need for remediation, a detailed
remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended
use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and controlled
waters must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the local
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken,
proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria. The scheme must
ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part IIA of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land

47

after remediation
4/ Implementation of approved remediation scheme
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its
terms prior to the commencement of development other than that required to
carry out remediation. Following completion of the approved scheme, a
verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation
carried out must be produced and is subject to the approval in writing of the
Local Planning Authority
5/ Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in
writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk
assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of parts
1 and 2, and where remediation is necessary, a remediation scheme must be
prepared in accordance with the requirements of part 3, which is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval
in writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with part 4/.
Reason In order to minimise the risk of contamination polluting the environment and in
accordance with Policy PP27 of the Poole Local Plan (November 2018) and
guidance given in Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural
environment in the National Planning Policy Framework (July 2018).

Informative Notes

1. IN72 (Working with applicants: Approval)
In accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 38 of the NPPF the Local
Planning Authority (LPA) takes a positive and creative approach to
development proposals focused on solutions. The LPA work with
applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by;
- offering a pre-application advice service, and
- advising applicants of any issues that may arise during the consideration of
their application and, where possible, suggesting solutions.
Also:
- in this case the applicant was advised of issues after the initial site visit
- in this case the applicant was provided with pre-application advice and this
was reflected in the proposals
- in this case the applicant was afforded an opportunity to submit amendments
to the scheme which addressed issues that had been identified

48

2. IN74 (Community Infrastructure Levy - Approval)
Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 and the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations
The proposed development referred to in this Planning Permission is a
chargeable development liable to pay Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
under Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 and the CIL Regulations (amended).
In accordance with CIL Regulation 65, the Local Planning Authority (LPA) will
issue a Liability Notice in respect of the chargeable development referred to in
this planning permission as soon as practicable after the day on which this
Planning Permission first permits development. The Liability Notice will confirm
the chargeable amount for the chargeable development referred to in this
Planning Permission and will be calculated by the LPA in accordance with CIL
Regulation 40 (amended) and in respect of the relevant CIL rates set out in the
adopted charging Schedule. Please note that the chargeable amount payable
in respect of the chargeable development referred to in this planning
permission is a local land charge.
Please be aware that failure to submit a Commencement Notice and pay CIL
in accordance with the CIL Regulations and Council’s payment procedure
upon commencement of the chargeable development referred to in this
Planning Permission will result in the Council imposing surcharges and taking
enforcement action. Further details on the Council’s CIL process including
assuming liability, withdrawing and transferring liability to pay CIL, claiming
relief, the payment procedure, consequences of not paying CIL in accordance
with the payment procedure and appeals can be found on the Poole website:
http://www.poole.gov.uk/planning-and-buildings/planning/ldf/communityinfrastructure-levycommunity-infrastructure-levy/

3. IN84 (AA passed)
This application is subject to a project level Appropriate Assessment in
accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017,
concluding that the likely significant effects arising from the development can
be mitigated and have been mitigated ensuring there would not be an adverse
effect on the identified designated sites of Nature Conservation Interest.

4. IN43 (Section 106 Agreement)
The land and premises referred to in this planning permission are the subject
of an Agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

5. IN00 (Non Standard Informative)
Water efficiency measures should be incorporated into this scheme. This
conserves water for the natural environment and allows cost savings for future
occupants. The development should include water efficient systems and
fittings such as: dual-flush toilets; water-saving taps; water butts; showers and

49

baths. Greywater recycling and rainwater harvesting should also be
considered.

6. IN00 (Non Standard Informative)
Safeguards should be implemented during the construction phase to minimise
the risks of pollution and detrimental effects to the water interests in and
around the site. Such safeguards should cover the use of plant and machinery,
oils/chemicals and materials; the use and routing of heavy plant and vehicles;
the location and form of work and storage areas and compounds and the
control and removal of spoil and wastes. We recommend the applicant refer to
our Pollution Prevention Guidelines, which can be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pollution-prevention-for-businesses.

7. IN00 (Non Standard Informative)
If any controlled waste is to be removed off site, then site operator must
ensure a registered waste carrier is used to convey the waste material off site
to a suitably authorised facility. If the applicant require more specific guidance
it is available on our website https://www.gov.uk/how-to-classify-differenttypes-of-waste.

Case officer: Eleanor Godesar

50

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

10

14

10
10

06

05

04

03

02 01

8

07

10

08

Extra 01
42000

Parapet
39000

Roof
36000

Level 10
33000

Level 9
30000

Level 8
27000

51

Level 7
24000

Level 6
21000

Level 5
18000

Level 4

1

15000

Rev. Date

28/09/2020

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

Level 3

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

12000
Client

Poole Property Investment
Level 2
Project

9000

Kingland House
Poole

Level 1

Drawing Title

6000

South Elevation

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

Level 0

28/09/20
Revision

File Identifier

0

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 126
Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

1 South Elevation
1 : 100

Project Status
1:100

0m

1m

2m

4m

6m

8m

10m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

52

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

10
10

14

10
10
8

N

M

K

I

G

Parapet
39000

Roof
36000

Level 10
33000

Level 9
30000

Level 8
27000

53

Level 7
24000

Level 6
21000

Level 5
18000

Level 4

1

15000

Rev. Date

28/09/2020

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
Level 3

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

12000

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

Poole Property Investment
Level 2
Project

9000

Kingland House
Poole

Level 1

Drawing Title

6000

East Elevation 1/2

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

Level 0

28/09/20
Revision

File Identifier

0

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 122

Elevation continues on drawing
Ref: DR-A-22 123

1 East Elevation
1 : 100

Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

Project Status

1:100

0m

1m

2m

4m

6m

8m

10m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

54

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

10
10
10
10
8

E

D

C

B

A

Parapet
39000

Roof
36000

Level 10
33000

Level 9
30000

Level 8
27000

55

Level 7
24000

Level 6
21000

Level 5
18000

Level 4

2
1

30/04/2021
28/09/2020

15000

Rev. Date

Rev A - 903 Balcony
Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW
MW

MS
MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
Level 3

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

12000

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

Poole Property Investment
Level 2
Project

9000

Kingland House
Poole

Level 1

Drawing Title

6000

East Elevation 2/2

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

Level 0
0

Checked by

MW

28/09/20

File Identifier

Elevation continues on drawing
Ref: DR-22-122

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 123
Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

1 East Elevation
1 : 100

Project Status
1:100

0m

1m

2m

4m

6m

8m

10m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

2

This page is intentionally left blank

56

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

10

14

10
10

04

05

06

07

08

8

03

10

01 02

Parapet
39000

Roof
36000

Level 10
33000

Level 9
30000

Level 8
27000

57

Level 7
24000

Level 6
21000

Level 5
18000

Level 4

1

15000

Rev. Date

28/09/2020

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
Level 3

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

12000

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

Poole Property Investment
Level 2
Project

9000

Kingland House
Poole

Level 1

Drawing Title

6000

North Elevation

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

Level 0

28/09/20
Revision

File Identifier

0

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 127
Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

1 North Elevation
1 : 100

Project Status
1:100

0m

1m

2m

4m

6m

8m

10m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

58

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

10

14

10
10
10
8

A

B

C

D

E

G

Parapet
39000

Roof
36000

Level 10
33000

Level 9
30000

Level 8
27000

59

Level 7
24000

Level 6
21000

Level 5
18000

Level 4

1

15000

Rev. Date

28/09/2020

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
Level 3

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

12000

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

Poole Property Investment
Level 2
Project

9000

Kingland House
Poole

Level 1

Drawing Title

6000

West Elevation 1/2

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

Level 0
0

Checked by

MW

28/09/20
Revision

File Identifier

Elevation continues on drawing
Ref: DR-A-22 125

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 124
Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

1 West Elevation
1 : 100

Project Status
1:100

0m

1m

2m

4m

6m

8m

10m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

60

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

10
10

14

10

M

N

8

K

10

I

Parapet
39000

Roof
36000

Level 10
33000

Level 9
30000

Level 8
27000

61

Level 7
24000

Level 6
21000

Level 5
18000

Level 4

1

15000

Rev. Date

28/09/2020

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
Level 3

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

12000

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

Poole Property Investment
Level 2
Project

9000

Kingland House
Poole

Level 1

Drawing Title

6000

West Elevation 2/2

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

Level 0

28/09/20
Revision

File Identifier

0

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 125

1 West Elevation
1 : 100

Elevation continues on drawing
Ref: DR-A-22 124

Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

Project Status
1:100

0m

1m

2m

4m

6m

8m

10m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

62

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

Parapet
Key Plan

39000
Roof

East Elevation

36000
Level 10
33000

10

Level 9

14

10
10
10
8

30000
Level 8
27000
Level 7
West Elevation

24000
Level 6
21000
Level 5
18000
Level 4
15000
Level 3
12000
Level 2
9000
Level 1
6000

Level 0
0

1 West Elevation
1 : 200

63
N

M

K

I

G

E

D

C

B

A

Parapet
39000
Roof
36000
Level 10
33000
Level 9
30000

1

Level 8

Rev. Date

28/09/2020

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects

27000

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom

Level 7
24000

t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Level 6
21000

Client

Level 5

Poole Property Investment

18000
Project

Level 4

Kingland House
Poole

15000
Level 3
12000

Drawing Title

Level 2

West & East Elevations

9000
Level 1
6000

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Level 0

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

As indicated

0

28/09/20
Revision

File Identifier

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 22 120

2 East Elevation

Purpose of Issue

FOR PLANNING

1 : 200

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

64

Vo
ya
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
Bike
Bin
Circulation
SUBSTATION

ME
Private Parking
Retail

NO
PARKING

01

01

02

02

030
ME
16 m²
173.5 SF

Bike
109 m²
1175.4 SF

96 Cycle Bays
(36 double racks & 12
sheffield bays)

03

112 Cycle Bays
(30 double racks & 26
sheffield bays)

03

001
Retail

65

04

23 m²
250.7 SF

04

027
Bin
11 m²
117.0 SF

026
Bin
28 m²
297.5 SF

05

LOBBY

028
Bin
13 m²
135.6 SF

002
Retail

05

35 m²
378.5 SF

029
COMMERCIAL Bin
BIN STORE 13 m²
134.9 SF

06

009
Retail

9 m²
102.1 SF

50 m²
535.8 SF

07

07

008
Retail
43 m²
459.3 SF

A

B

003
Retail

004
Retail

005
Retail

006
Retail

007
Retail

33 m²
356.2 SF

36 m²
390.8 SF

31 m²
329.0 SF

34 m²
368.5 SF

33 m²
352.1 SF

08

08

1

28/09/2020

2

10/02/2021

Rev. Date

Rev A - Associated
Highways Update
Rev B - Associated Highways
Update
Revision

MW

MS

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

D

E

K

M

Poole Property Investment

N

Project

KINGLAN
D
ROAD

Kingland House
Poole
Drawing Title

Phase 01 & 02 Ground Floor Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

1 : 200

10/02/21

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - Designer - DR - A - 20 110b
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

Project Status

N

C

ay
Subw

EG
EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

3.7
m

001
ME
LOBBY

06

1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

2

This page is intentionally left blank

66

Vo
ya
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
Bike
Bin
Circulation
SUBSTATION

ME
Private Parking
Retail

NO
PARKING

01
02

01

Phase 1 Temp Location
98 Cycle Bays
(30 double racks & 19 sheffield
bays)
Secured Cage
(reduction of 2 parking bays
during phase 1)

02
EXISTING CHURCH PARKING
96 Cycle Bays
(36 double racks & 12
sheffield bays)

03

03

001
Retail
23 m²
250.7 SF

67

04

04

027
Bin
11 m²
117.0 SF

026
Bin
002
Retail

28 m²
297.5 SF

35 m²
378.5 SF

05

05

06
LOBBY

3.7
m

001
ME
9 m²
102.1 SF

07

07
A

B

003
Retail

004
Retail

005
Retail

006
Retail

007
Retail

33 m²
356.2 SF

36 m²
390.8 SF

31 m²
329.0 SF

34 m²
368.5 SF

33 m²
352.1 SF

08

08

1

30/04/2021

Rev. Date

Rev A - Update
Revision

MW

MS

By Checked

leonard design architects
4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

D

E

K

M

Poole Property Investment

N

Project

KINGLAN
D
ROAD

Kingland House
Poole
Drawing Title

Phase 01 - Ground Floor Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

MW

MS

Scale @A1

Date

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - Designer - DR - A - 20 110a
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

Project Status

N

C

ay
Subw

EG
EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

06

EXISTING CHURCH

1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

1

This page is intentionally left blank

68

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
1Bed2P
2Bed3P
Circulation
SUBSTATION

01

01

02

02
117
2Bed3P
10

60 m²
641.5 SF

109
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.0 SF

108
2Bed3P

03

62 m²
666.3 SF

03

110
2Bed3P
61 m²
659.1 SF

118
1Bed2P

69

04

04

50 m²
535.2 SF

111
1Bed2P

112
1Bed2P

113
1Bed2P

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

114
1Bed2P

115
1Bed2P

116
1Bed2P

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.3 SF

107
2Bed3P

05

61 m²
657.8 SF

05

MAINTENANCE

119
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.6 SF

06

06

105
2Bed3P

104
2Bed3P

103
2Bed3P

102
2Bed3P

101
2Bed3P

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

50 m²
537.9 SF

50 m²
539.5 SF

106
2Bed3P
61 m²
656.7 SF

07

07

08

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects
4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com
Client

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

Poole Property Investment

N

Project

KINGLAN
D
ROAD

Kingland House
Poole
Drawing Title

Level 1 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 120
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

Project Status

N

B

ay
Subw

A

TH
EG

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

3.7
m

120
1Bed2P
121
1Bed2P

1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

70

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
1Bed2P
2Bed3P

SUBSTATION

Circulation

01
02
217
2Bed3P
61 m²
652.8 SF

209
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.0 SF

208
2Bed3P

03

210
2Bed3P

62 m²
666.3 SF

61 m²
659.1 SF

71

04
207
2Bed3P

211
1Bed2P

212
1Bed2P

213
1Bed2P

214
1Bed2P

215
1Bed2P

216
1Bed2P

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.3 SF

61 m²
657.8 SF

FLAT ROOF
MAINTENANCE

3.7
m

05
06
205
2Bed3P

204
2Bed3P

203
2Bed3P

202
2Bed3P

201
2Bed3P

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

219
1Bed2P

218
1Bed2P

50 m²
539.5 SF

50 m²
537.9 SF

206
2Bed3P
61 m²
656.7 SF

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Level 2 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 130
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

72

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245
SUBSTATION

01
02
309
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.0 SF

308
2Bed3P

03

62 m²
666.3 SF

310
2Bed3P
61 m²
659.1 SF

73

04
307
2Bed3P

311
1Bed2P

312
1Bed2P

313
1Bed2P

314
1Bed2P

315
1Bed2P

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

61 m²
657.8 SF

FLAT ROOF

MAINTENANCE

3.7
m

05
06
305
2Bed3P

304
2Bed3P

303
2Bed3P

302
2Bed3P

301
2Bed3P

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

61 m²
651.8 SF

306
2Bed3P
61 m²
656.7 SF

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Levels 3-6 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 140
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

74

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245
SUBSTATION

01
02
714
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.0 SF

713
2Bed3P

03

715
2Bed3P

62 m²
666.3 SF

61 m²
659.1 SF

75

04
712
2Bed3P

706
1Bed2P

707
1Bed2P

708
1Bed2P

709
1Bed2P

710
1Bed2P

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

50 m²
542.7 SF

50 m²
538.9 SF

61 m²
657.8 SF

MAINTENANCE
ROOF

3.7
m

05
06

711
2Bed3P

705
1Bed2P

704
1Bed2P

703
1Bed2P

702
1Bed2P

701
1Bed2P

50 m²
536.2 SF

50 m²
536.2 SF

50 m²
536.2 SF

50 m²
536.2 SF

50 m²
536.2 SF

61 m²
656.7 SF

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Level 7 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 150
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

76

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
2Bed3P
Circulation
SUBSTATION

01
02
804
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.0 SF

803
2Bed3P

03

805
2Bed3P

62 m²
666.3 SF

61 m²
659.1 SF

77

04
802
2Bed3P
61 m²
657.8 SF

3.7
m

05
06

FLAT ROOF

801
2Bed3P
61 m²
656.7 SF

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Level 8 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 160
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

78

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
1Bed2P
3Bed4p
Circulation

SUBSTATION

01
02
903
3Bed4p

904
3Bed4p

87 m²
936.3 SF

88 m²
945.2 SF

03

79

04
902
1Bed2P

3.7
m

05
06

50 m²
542.2 SF

901
1Bed2P
50 m²
536.0 SF

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Level 9 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 170
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

80

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245

KEY
1Bed2P
2Bed3P

SUBSTATION

Circulation

01
02
1003
2Bed3P
61 m²
653.0 SF

03

1004
2Bed3P
61 m²
658.6 SF

81

04
05

1002
1Bed2P
59 m²
630.7 SF

FLAT ROOF

3.7
m

06

1001
1Bed2P
50 m²
536.0 SF

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Level 10 Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 180
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

82

Vo
ya
g
Ho
us
e

253 to 257

H
HIGH STREET NORT

This drawing is the property of

LEONARD DESIGN ARCHITECTSLTD.

Copyright is reserved by them and the drawing is issued on the condition that it
is not copied, reproduced, retained or disclosed to any unauthorised person
without the prior consent in writing of Leonard Design Architects Ltd. All rights
reserved.

DO NOT SCALE

Orientation

Key Plan

251

247

249

A

B

C

D

E

G

I

K

M

N

245
SUBSTATION

01
02

03
FLAT ROOF

83

04
LIFT ROOM

LIFT ROOM

3.7
m

05
06

07

08

Rev. Date

Revision

By Checked

leonard design architects

EO
RG
ER
OU
ND
AB
OU
T

4th floor, Albion House
5-13 Canal Street
Nottingham. NG1 7EG. United Kingdom
t. +44 (0) 115 945 0080
e. office@leonarddesignarchitects.com

Client

Poole Property Investment
Project

KINGLAN
D

Drawing Title

ay
Subw

TH
EG

ROAD

Kingland House
Poole

Roof Level Plan

Project Number

Status

0540
Drawn by

Checked by

Author

Checker
Date

Scale @A1

1 : 200

29/05/20

File Identifier

80 to 83

Revision

0540 - LDA - DR - A - 20 190
Purpose of Issue

110

FOR PLANNING

N

Project Status
1:200

0m

2m

4m

8m

12m

16m

20m

1:1

0mm

10mm

20mm

40mm

60mm

80mm

100mm

PLANNING

This page is intentionally left blank

84

Agenda Item 9b

Planning Committee
Application Address

Richmond Gardens Multi-storey Car Park, Richmond Gardens,
Bournemouth, BH1 1JE

Proposal

Erection of a mixed-use residential development comprising four blocks
(211 flats) on the north and east side of existing car park, ranging in
height up to 12 storeys (plus lower ground levels) and a flexible Class
A1/A3/Sui Generis (mixed A1/A3 Coffee Shop) unit at ground level.
Realignment works to existing service access road from Richmond
Gardens, cycle parking, disabled parking, associated refuse/recycling
storage, public realm improvement works and landscaping (inc.
removal/works to existing trees). Alterations to existing public car park
including alteration to existing vehicular access to car park and addition
of cladding to the eastern elevation

Application Number

7-2019-1179-BG

Applicant

Summix RGB Developments Ltd. and Sheet Anchor

Agent

Pegasus Group

Date Application Valid

17 December 2019

Decision Due Date

16 March 2020

Extension of Time date
(if applicable)
Ward

09 April 2021

Report Status

Public

Meeting Date

18 March 2021

Recommendation

GRANT, in accordance with the details in the recommendation

Reason for Referral to
Planning Committee

Major development

Case Officer

TH

Bournemouth Central

Description of Development
1.

Planning consent is sought for the erection of a mixed-use residential development
comprising four blocks (211 flats) on the north and east side of existing car park, ranging in
height up to 12 storeys (plus lower ground levels) and a flexible Class A1/A3/Sui Generis
(mixed A1/A3 Coffee Shop) unit at ground level. Realignment works to existing service
access road from Richmond Gardens, cycle parking, disabled parking, associated
Page 1
85

refuse/recycling storage, public realm improvement works and landscaping (inc.
removal/works to existing trees). Alterations to existing public car park including alteration
to existing vehicular access to car park and addition of cladding to the eastern elevation.
2.

The applicant has provided the following information:


3.

The following statements and additional supporting information have also been provided:



























4.

Existing and proposed plans including site plans, floor plans, elevations, site sections
and landscaping detail.

Planning Statement
Design and Access Statement
Statement of Community Involvement
Accommodation Schedule
Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment
Tree Report and Method Statement (with Protection Plan)
Ecological Assessment
Habitats Assessment
Economic Benefits Statement
Energy and Sustainability Statement
Heritage Statement
Transport Assessment
Draft Travel Plan
External Lighting Statement
Wind Microclimate Statement
Air Quality Assessment
Car park Ventilation Statement
Geo-Engineering Statement
Contaminated Land Assessment and Ground Investigation Report
Drainage Strategy
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment
Noise Impact Assessment
Utilities Statement
Thermal Comfort Report
Waste Management Plan
Financial Viability Assessment

The application follows a recently allowed appeal for a similar development of student
accommodation, the broad differences of which are outlined below:

Residential units

Commercial floor space
Car parking spaces
Number of blocks
Maximum storey height

Extant allowed development
625 student bedrooms in 70 cluster
flats and 170 single occupancy
units
153m² (A1/A2/A3)
6 spaces (4 disabled, 2 staff)
3
15

Page 2
86

Proposed
211 flats (total 312
bedrooms)
145m² (A1/A3)
1 disabled parking bay
4
12

Key Issues
5.

The main considerations involved with this application are:













6.

The principle of development
Impact on character and appearance of the area
Impact on heritage assets
Impact on trees and landscaping
Impact on neighbouring residents
Living conditions for future occupants
Safety/security
Parking/traffic/highway safety
Energy and sustainable construction
Ecology
Contaminated Land
Drainage/flooding

These points will be discussed as well as other material considerations at paragraphs 28 to
136 below.

Planning Policies
7.

Core Strategy (2012)
Policy CS1 –Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy CS2 – Sustainable Homes and Premises
Policy CS3 – Sustainable Energy and Heat
Policy CS4 – Surface Water Flooding
Policy CS6 – Delivering Sustainable Communities
Policy CS7 – Bournemouth Town Centre
Policy CS14 – Transport Infrastructure
Policy CS15 – Green Travel Plan and Transport Assessments
Policy CS16 – Parking Standards
Policy CS18 – Increasing Opportunities for Cycling and Walking
Policy CS21 – Housing Distribution Across Bournemouth
Policy CS23 – Encouraging Lifetime Home Standards
Policy CS31 – Recreation, Play and Sports
Policy CS32 – International Sites
Policy CS33 – Heathlands
Policy CS38 – Minimising Pollution
Policy CS39 – Designated Heritage Assets
Policy CS41 – Quality Design

8.

District Wide Local Plan (2002)
Policy 4.20 – Inclusive Access
Policy 4.24 – Public Art
Policy 4.25 – Landscaping
Policy 5.26 – Retail Uses Outside the Designated Areas
Policy 6.10 – Flats Development
Policy 8.22 – Proposals Affecting Car Parking Spaces
Policy 8.39 – Improvements to Access for Mobility Impaired Persons
Policy 8.40 – Disabled car parking
Page 3
87

9.

Town Centre Area Action Plan (2013)
Policy A19 – Site Specific Policy
Development will be permitted for a mixed use scheme that primarily comprises of
residential accommodation. Proposals must:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provide in the region of 150 residential units
Provide a 969 space public car park
Ensure the car park has a positive appearance
Provide a strong active front to Richmond Gardens
Retain trees and surrounding vegetation
Respect the setting of the Old Christchurch Road Conservation Area
Ensure any supporting uses provided meet the objectives of the area in relation to
the Spatial Strategy

Other relevant policies:
Policy D2 – Combined Heat and Power
Policy D3 – Character Areas
Policy D4 – Design Quality
Policy D5 – Tall Buildings
Policy D7 – Public Realm
Policy T2 – Walking and Cycling
Policy T3 – Priority Areas for Walking and Cycling Improvements
Policy T7 – Parking Strategy
Policy T8 – Public Parking Locations
Policy U1 – Mixed Uses
Policy U2 – Housing
10.

Supplementary Planning Documents:
Affordable Housing - SPD
Dorset Heathlands Planning Framework – SPD
Public Realm Strategy: Guiding Principles - SPD
Residential Development: A Design Guide - PGN
Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) - PGN
Bournemouth Parking - SPD
Bournemouth Town Centre Development Design Guide SPD

11.

The National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
Paragraph 11 sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development. Plans and
policies should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development. For decision
taking this means:
c)
d)

approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or
where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:

Page 4
88

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or
ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a
whole.
12.

The Council is unable to demonstrate a five year housing supply, meaning that the ‘tilted
balance’ of Paragraph 11 may to this proposal. The site is not located within a conservation
area, green belt or other area of special protection outlined in footnote 6 to Paragraph 11,
so development should be granted unless “any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits”. The report will outline the merits of
the case and part of the assessment is whether the tilted balance should be disapplied.

13.

The following chapters of the NPPF are relevant to this proposal:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Chapter 2 – Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 5 – Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Chapter 7 – Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Chapter 8 – Promoting healthy and safe communities
Chapter 9 – Promoting sustainable transport
Chapter 12 – Achieving well-designed places
Chapter 16 – Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

The Equalities Act 2010
14.

The public sector Equality Duty (PSED) under s.149 of the Equalities Act requires
“public bodies to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance
equality of opportunity and foster good relations between different groups”. The
Council uphold these values very strongly and apply them in consideration of such
matters.

15.

The PSED must be considered as a relevant factor in making this decision but does
not impose a duty to achieve the outcomes in s.149. It is only one factor that needs to
be considered and may be balanced against other relevant factors. It is considered
that the Council has had due regard to the PSED in the determination of this
application.

Relevant Planning Applications and Appeals:
16.

The property was originally built as a 7 storey public car park including a 2 floor
supermarket on the lower levels in 1981. Part of the car park/retail element is sited
underground as the development was dug into the side of Richmond Hill. The complex has
been through several refurbishments including the construction of an atrium in 1999, giving
natural light to the arcade. There are retail uses including a supermarket, and a new gym
on the first floor.

17.

Significant planning history is as follows:


2010 - Erection of a mixed use development comprising an 8 storey hotel (173
bedrooms), a 7 storey office block (1201sq.m of B1 use), a 5/8/11 storey residential
Page 5
89

blocks totalling 120 flats (including 17 affordable units) with underground car parking
and an additional deck to top of existing car park – Granted (ref. 7-2009-1179-AP)

18.



2013 - Erection of a mixed use development comprising an 8 storey hotel (173
bedrooms), a 7 storey office block (1201sq.m of B1 use), a 5/8/11 storey residential
blocks totalling 120 flats (including 17 affordable units) with underground car parking
and an additional deck to top of existing car park (Time Extension) – Granted (ref. 72013-1179-AW)



2018 - EIA screening opinion for the erection of a mixed-use development comprising
up to 18 storeys of purpose built student accommodation (up to 750 bedrooms);
alongside retail / commercial floorspace (up to 200sqm) with associated vehicular
access, disabled car parking, public realm and landscaping works, cycle parking, refuse
storage and works to existing trees – EIA not required (7-2018-1179-BD)



2018 - Erection of a mixed-use development ranging in height between 8-15 storeys,
comprising purpose-built student accommodation (Sui Generis) (625 bedrooms),
alongside flexible Class A1/A2/A3/Coffee Shop unit (Sui Generis) (totalling 175sqm
GIA), with realignment works to existing access road, private car/cycle parking,
associated refuse/recycling storage, public realm improvement works and new
landscaping (inc. removal/works to existing trees). Works to existing public car park,
including installation of ventilation screening, with associated landscaping – Refused
(planning committee), Appeal allowed February 2020.

The above recent consent for student accommodation forms a strong material
consideration in this case and the Inspector’s decision is referred to in this report where
relevant. This consent also represents a realistic fallback option for the applicant.

Representations
19.

Site notices were posted in the vicinity of the site on 19/12/2019 with an expiry date for
consultation of 31/01/20. Following the receipt of amended plans, including the removal of
the car park deck, an additional period of publicity was undertaken between 29/09/2020 and
20/10/2020.

20.

A total of 10 representations have been received, 2 raising objection; 3 in support and 4
with other comments. The issues raised comprise the following:Development too tall/large/bulky
Noise and disturbance
Design lacks elegance
Loss of trees
Should have more renewable energy sources such as Solar PV
Parking Spaces and cycle storage should have electric charging points
Area needs development to create a stronger community

Page 6
90

21.

In addition, comments have been received from the Bournemouth Civic Society. These are
generally supportive of the proposal, stating it is an improvement on the appeal scheme
though a little tall, and recommending some minor design improvements.

Consultations
22.

The following consultation responses have been received:
Highways – Objection based on failure to provide 94 public parking spaces. Proposal is
acceptable on other highway grounds.
Trees/Landscaping – Concerns over scale of tree loss, concerns about shading to
proposed replacement street tree planting, supportive of green walls and green roofs.
Urban Design – No objections overall. Scale acceptable, some improvements shown over
the student scheme such as the removal of the building oversailing the car park entrance.
Design could go further with local influence and articulation. Blocky and disjointed Blocks B
and C could be improved particularly in rear views. Windows still a bit repetitive/rigid
patterns. Landscaping and public realm positive, some concerns with security and with
single aspect flats.
Waste and Recycling – No Objection now a draft Waste Management Plan has been
provided and private collection identified.
Tourism – No objection subject to car park remaining open during construction process
Flood Management – no comments
Environmental Health (contamination) – No objections subject to further review/verification
reports
Environmental Health (air quality/ventilation/noise) – No objections, subject to conditions

Constraints
23.

The site is subject to the following constraints:




Town Centre AAP Area and site specific designation
Tree Preservation Order (657/2002)
Borders Old Christchurch Road Conservation Area

Planning Assessment
Site and Surroundings
24.

The development site is the area of land around the existing Richmond Gardens multi
storey car park. The existing building has a shopping centre on the lower two floors,
accessed via a link through from Old Christchurch Road and there are five levels of car
park above. It sits in the centre of a large site with under-utilised land around the edges,
filled with mature trees and vegetation on three sides. The Old Christchurch Road
Conservation Area lies to the south. The site is within the town centre and is allocated for
development under Policy A19 of the Bournemouth Town Centre Area Action Plan.
Page 7
91

Summary of proposal
25.

Full planning consent is sought principally for a development of residential flats along the
northern side of the car park, fronting Richmond Gardens. The development is split into four
‘blocks’:
 Block A1 is located to the western side and sits adjacent to the existing car park
entrance. This will be 10-12 storeys in height.
 Block A2 is a central block, which will be 8-10 storeys in height
 Block B is located on the eastern side of the site on a corner where there is an existing
access road to a car park and loading area associated with the shopping centre. From
Richmond Gardens it will be 12 storeys in height, though levels drop to the rear with an
additional floor.
 Block C is located behind Block B to the eastern side of the existing car park. The land
on the site slopes down further to the south so this block is set at a lower level, with 8-10
storeys, but 2 floors lower than Block B and 3 floors lower than Blocks A1 and A2 with
land levels taken into account. There is a small internal car park on the ground level.

26.

There will be a total of 211 flats across these four blocks, comprised of the following
layouts:

27.

The application proposes works to the existing public car park, as well as ventilation works
and landscaping. The application originally proposed a new deck to the top of the existing
multi-storey car park, but this has now been removed from the plans following the adoption
of the new BCP Parking SPD. A small flexible Class A1/A3/Coffee Shop unit (Sui Generis)
(145sqm GIA) is proposed on the ground floor of Block A1, as well as realignment works to
the existing access road to the shopping centre on the eastern side of the site, associated
refuse/recycling storage, public realm improvement works and new landscaping (inc.
removal/works to existing trees).

Key Issues
Principle of development
28.

Policy A19 of the Town Centre Area Action Plan (TCAAP) allocates the Richmond Gardens
site for a mixed-use scheme that “primarily comprises of residential accommodation”. There
are previous consents on the site, including an expired planning permission dating from
2009 for 120 flats including 17 affordable units, as well as a hotel and B1 office space, and
consent granted on appeal for a 625 bedroom student accommodation (Sui Generis)
scheme in February 2020. This proposal is for a scheme that primarily comprises 211
residential flats, with an additional minor commercial element.

Page 8
92

29.

Policy U2 of the TCAAP permits residential accommodation in the town centre.
Development should contribute towards a mix of unit sizes, provide some external amenity
space and should provide acceptable living conditions particularly in terms of noise and
disturbance. Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy clearly states that the town centre is the
focus for additional residential intensification.

30.

Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy also states that the Bournemouth town centre excluding
the Lansdowne Employment Area will be the most appropriate location for high density
residential accommodation, tourism accommodation and student accommodation or mixeduse development consisting of these uses.

31.

The applicant states that the accommodation tenure is ‘build to rent’, which means that it
will be for the rental market and managed as a whole rather than individual flats being sold
and owned. There is no specific tenure requirement in the site specific or more general
residential policies of the Local Plan.

32.

A small commercial unit is provided on the ground floor to Richmond Gardens. This is
considered acceptable in this town centre location, subject to conditions over the use and
any extraction or plant equipment if used as a café.

33.

As per paragraphs 11 and 12, the Council is unable to demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply, so the ‘tilted balance’ of paragraph 11 of the NPPF applies, meaning that the
development should be approved unless the adverse effects of doing so would significantly
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. The development would make a significant
contribution towards local housing supply in a sustainable location on an under-used site.

Impact on character and appearance of the area
34.

The proposal is for a major development that will significantly change the appearance of the
area and the wider skyline of the conurbation. The development comprises of four main
blocks which wrap around the northern and eastern sides of the car park. The main issues
relate to:
•
•
•
•
•

the height and scale of the development and the visual impact of the proposals,
the overall massing and impact in the immediate locality including change to the
appearance (for example tree loss),
the impact on the Old Christchurch Road Conservation Area,
detailed design considerations,
intensity of use

Height/scale/massing - general
35.

Policy D3 identifies character areas and the proposal falls within the Richmond Hill
character area. Policy D3 requires development proposals to respect and take opportunities
to improve the existing character of the town centre area. Policy D4 sets out criteria for the
design quality of development proposals. The Town Centre Development Design Guide
SPD has also been adopted since the 2013 approval which is also relevant in terms of
design and materials for this strategically important town centre site.

36.

The site is located within one of two areas in the town centre which are considered suitable
for the development of ‘tall buildings’, and Policy D5 of the TCAAP sets out the criteria for
the design of any tall buildings. They are defined as buildings being substantially taller than
their neighbours, and/or significantly changing the skyline, and/or is taller than six
Page 9
93

commercial storeys or equivalent. Policy D5 requires a tall building statement with any
application for a tall building which would examine all views and impacts of the proposals.
37.

All four blocks of the proposed development would be considered tall buildings under this
definition. The proposed buildings will have a significant impact on long views from various
vantage points in the town centre. As this part of the town centre is a high point it will
dominate certain other high viewpoints and glimpses will be available from many other town
centre locations.

38.

The most significant locations and longer views where the proposed buildings would be
visible would be from:
•
•
•
•

Wessex Way heading westbound approaching Richmond Hill,
Wimborne Road approaching Richmond Hill,
Horseshoe Common
Wessex Way from County Gates

39.

The development would also be visible from many other locations around the town centre
and Richmond Hill area.

40.

The applicant has provided a number of plans and sections which illustrate the overall
height of the previously approved student accommodation development for comparison
purposes. In looking at the massing of the proposed scheme, that is the three-dimensional
form of the buildings across the site including the height, bulk and footprint, it is useful to
make comparisons to the previously approved schemes as they form a significant material
consideration here. There are strong similarities in some areas and differences in others.

41.

The proposal here is materially very similar in scale to the student accommodation scheme
allowed on appeal in February 2020 in particular. Plan numbers (415)1918-GWP-XX-00DR-A-(PA)-026, 27 and 28 illustrate the scale and massing differences between the
scheme allowed on appeal and the development proposals here. In summary Block A1 is
now around two storeys taller, and narrower (no longer spanning over the car park
entrance), Block A2 is materially very similar in height and mass, Block B is around two to
three storeys lower, and Block C is again materially very similar. Blocks B and C were
previously one single block stepping down, but they are now two distinct blocks linked only
by a raised courtyard area.

42.

In terms of the scale and massing therefore the proposals here are materially very similar to
the recent appeal scheme. The main differences are the breaking up of Blocks B and C into
two, the lower height of Block B, and the raised height of Block A, though this is now a
smaller block which does not span over the car park entrance.

43.

The Inspector’s opinion of the student accommodation scheme was that:
“It would undoubtedly form a series of large and tall buildings and would occupy much of
the site’s Richmond Gardens frontage. However, its height, scale and massing would vary
and would be articulated by the separation of the different blocks, a mixed palette of
materials, building heights and design treatments. This would take account of features
present within the site’s context and would provide a number of separate buildings along
Richmond Gardens which would not be overbearing or dominant in an area which is
already home to tall buildings.

P a g e 10
94

From further distant views such as driving down the hill eastwards on the single
carriageway section of the Wessex Way from the County Gates roundabout it would appear
as part of a distant cluster of tall buildings and would not appear harmful. Likewise, from the
Wessex Way just north of Richmond Hill the proposed development would appear taller
than other buildings adjacent, but would be seen in the context of other large buildings such
as the 8 storey Marshall Point circular office block, 7-10 storey Nationwide building, and the
13 storey Richmond Gate residential block, where it would not appear harmful”.
44.

The material similarity in terms of scale means that there is not enough difference to justify
taking a different view in the case of the buildings proposed here. The emphasis of mass is
moved slightly from Block B to Block A, which is now the tallest part of the scheme, but
there is justification for this as it is more aligned with the other tall buildings in the area such
as Marshall Point opposite and the Richmond Gate development on the other side of
Richmond Hill, and is also the part of the site furthest from the Old Christchurch Road
Conservation Area. Overall, it is considered that the scale and mass to Richmond Gardens
is acceptable in principle and would not conflict with relevant policies including D4 and D5
of the Town Centre AAP, and CS41 of the Core Strategy.
Height/scale/massing – conservation area views/heritage issues

45.

The site is close to but not within the Old Christchurch Road Conservation Area. The
existing car park is tucked away behind the Victorian terraced buildings in Old Christchurch
Road, though it is partially visible from the lower parts of Old Christchurch Road and from
further east in Old Christchurch Road looking towards the conservation area from the
Horseshoe Common area.

46.

One of the most significant views of the site is from Old Christchurch Road in the area of
Horseshoe Common, where Blocks B and C would appear taller than the foreground
development in Old Christchurch Road, and where there were concerns with the previous
scheme. However, it was an impact that was considered acceptable by the appeal
Inspector on the previous scheme, as well as the South West Design Review Panel. Block
C has a very similar location and height to the previously approved development. The siting
is adjusted a little and it is a more angular block than the earlier curved building.

47.

In considering this issue on the student accommodation scheme, the Inspector stated:
Given that the buildings in the foreground are lower in storey height and topographically,
Block C would inevitably alter the view from Horseshoe Common and Old Christchurch
Road and would obscure existing views of Marshall Point, the Nationwide building and
Richmond Gate. Given its additional height, it would appear more dominant in this view
than the existing buildings on site. However, as the Old Christchurch Road Conservation
Area (OCRCA) is varied in nature and it is already possible to view tall buildings from this
viewpoint, I find that the effect would be limited and that it would not harm the OCRCA’s
significance. As such, the proposed development would comply with TCAAP Policy D5 in
respect of tall buildings and TCAAP Policy A19 in terms of respecting the OCRCA’s setting.

48.

The South West Design Review Panel also commented on the original scheme that:
“The impact on the conservation area to the south is a factor, but for the Panel not an
overriding one... Old Christchurch Road, in our view, is informal and robust enough to cope
with larger buildings behind - it is not a terrace of regular and perfect geometry that could
easily be marred. Moreover, Bournemouth is a large town and it is not unreasonable for its
centre to develop with increasingly tall buildings”.
P a g e 11
95

49.

The scale of the proposed buildings here is comparable, with Block B being lower in overall
height than previously proposed, with a gap now between the two buildings, and Block C
also being of similar scale. It is of different design and orientation, with a more angular form,
but the combination of a reduced bulk and, articulation and materials mean in this case it is
considered that it would not be more harmful than the previously approved development.

50.

In terms of listed buildings, 83-101 Old Christchurch Road is a Victorian terrace which lies
to the south of the application site. As per the previous proposals on this site it is not
considered that the development would affect the setting of these buildings. Their primary
significance is the front elevation to Old Christchurch Road, views of which would not be
altered by the proposed development. Therefore, while the buildings will be taller than Old
Christchurch Road development in the foreground, they would not have a materially harmful
impact on the setting of the conservation area, or on listed buildings here. The cluster of
listed buildings around the lower section of Richmond Hill, such as Granville Chambers, the
Echo building and the Norfolk Royale Hotel would not be viewed in the context of the
proposed development, which is to the top of the hill and screened by other adjacent
buildings.

51.

Overall, the proposal would not be in conflict with relevant policies, including Policy 4.4 and
6.10 of the Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan, Policies CS21 and CS41 of the
Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy and A19, D4 and D5 of the Bournemouth Town
Centre Area Action Plan. The proposal would also satisfy the relevant provisions of the
NPPF, including sections 12 and 16.
Detailed design and materials

52.

The approved student accommodation development presented a similar scale of
development to Richmond Gardens. The building in the location of Block A1 to the western
end spanned over the car park entrance in the approved scheme. Reducing the width of
this block would resolve the design constraint of the wide span of the opening over the car
park entrance. It would mean that there would be less of a landmark corner feature on the
north west side of the side, but overall the benefits of stepping it back are that a more
conventional building design is possible on the lower level while still allowing the
improvements to the public realm to the front of the car park entrance and a sufficiently
landmark design. It also retains a link into the site for future development if the car park
were to ever be redeveloped in the future. The previous scheme retained the six car park
entrance and exit lanes, but they are reduced to four in this application, which allows for
public realm and highway safety improvements. The building turns the corner with an
attractive curved feature, and the side has additional windows so would be sufficiently well
articulated.

53.

The constraints of the site mean that the requirement to set the building back a sufficient
distance from Richmond Gardens to the north to provide landscaping and public realm
improvements, as well as maintaining sufficient space to the car park to the south for
ventilation, leads to a relatively narrow building, but in this case the articulation of Blocks A1
and A2 would disguise this quite well.

54.

The buildings employ a curved form, particularly in the case of Blocks A1 and A2, which
reduces a little for Block B and then Block C is more angular. The curved form combined
with the brickwork material will provide an aesthetically pleasing form with a mix of
traditional Art Deco and Streamline Moderne influences, traditional materials and modern
elements. The architect has employed a design form and features which can be found
P a g e 12
96

elsewhere in Bournemouth to provide a level of local distinctiveness. They could perhaps
have gone a little further for example in taking the cues from 1-31 St Peters Road (former
Maples department store), which is cited as an influence/precedent, but overall it is
considered that the overall concept with the curves and materials is of sufficiently high
quality.
55.

The proposed blocks have variations in materials to give the appearance of distinct and
separate buildings. For example Block A1 uses mostly buff brick while A2 uses a mid red
brick, and B uses a darker red brick, while all maintaining a similar curved form and
fenestration pattern to maintain their identity as a group of buildings. All blocks use
brickwork as the main material which is positive because it will form a more durable
material that will ensure a high-quality appearance over a longer period of time than using
render or cladding as the principal material for example. There are still areas of cladding
and it will be important in any case to require samples of materials prior to constructing the
buildings to ensure that high quality materials are used.

56.

It is considered that the proposed blocks have sufficient variation to break up the mass and
bulk, with a smaller palette of materials than the student accommodation development, but
a simpler and more elegant form

57.

The elevations of the blocks are articulated through deep window reveals to give depth to
the façade. Large buildings and regular floor plans can lead to a relatively regimented
pattern of windows. It is managed here through variations to the windows, balcony
balustrading sections and areas of sawtooth brickwork detail to add interest and diversity to
the elevations.

58.

Block C is more angular than the other blocks, and together with the rear of Block B will
appear blockier and less elegant than the buildings/elevations that front Richmond
Gardens. There was originally a reduction in detailing towards the south and east side of
the proposals, and together with the absence of curves this part of the proposal seems to
have been treated as the rear of the site. Areas of blank elevation were originally visible in
these views, especially on Block C. This has been improved a little through the application
process with the addition of fenestration improvements (additional windows), although the
adjustments are minor overall. The square edges remain on this part of the proposal, which
detracts from the overall appearance a little, though it would only be visible from the
Horseshoe common viewpoint discussed earlier. In that context it will be more distant views
of a pair of buildings stepping up away from the Conservation Area.

59.

All blocks have balconies of some kind. There are few balconies on the northern elevations
of Blocks A1, A2 and B to Richmond Gardens, except for some inset balconies to Block A1
which form a design feature between the building’s curved sections. The southern rear and
eastern side elevations have a mix of externally projecting cantilever balconies and inset
balconies to add design interest. The projection of the balconies has been reduced a little
during the application process to prevent an unbalanced appearance but now do not detract
from the overall design.

60.

There are acoustic screening louvres to screen the plant for the air source heat pumps at
the top of each building. These are likely to be visible from some perspectives, so the
appearance has been reconsidered during the application process with the provision of
evergreen climbing plants to the screens to provide some greenery and soften the
appearance. It is considered that this is an acceptable approach subject to the provision of
maintenance information to ensure that the planting is watered and maintained in an
exposed position on top of the building.
P a g e 13
97

61.

There are also a number of roof garden areas proposed. These would generally have a
limited visibility obscured behind a parapet, though the small trees and landscaping may be
partially visible, which would add some visual interest to the buildings.

62.

The private service road around to the east heads to the shopping centre loading and
servicing area. It would be moved slightly further to the east to the same location as the
approved student accommodation scheme. This section is not adopted highway. Access to
the shopping centre loading area would be retained, and most of the servicing aspects such
as cycle storage, electricity substation, water tanks and other plant, as well as disabled
parking, would be located around this side of the building at the lower level. This is
considered acceptable as although at ground floor level it will present a limited active
frontage, this side of the building is not in a prominent public location. Although there are no
ground floor windows here, windows and balconies are provided on the upper floors in any
case, which will provide natural surveillance and active uses.

63.

Overall the detailed design of the proposed buildings would satisfy the relevant provisions
of the NPPF and local policies including D4, CS41 and the Town Centre Development
Design Guide.
Public realm

64.

Richmond Gardens presently provides a poor quality public realm which is not pedestrian or
cyclist friendly, has limited active frontage and overgrown landscaping. The proposals will
provide more definition to the street scene here with high quality landscaping and surfaces
to benefit users of the development and others who visit the area. Landscaping is
considered in more detail in the relevant section of the report below
Intensity of use

65.

The occupation of the site with 211 flats will alter the level of activity in the area, which is
presently mainly daytime office-based activity and quieter at night. However, this is a town
centre location which is appropriate for such intensification and it will not have a detrimental
impact on the town centre in this regard.
Overall comparison

66.

Overall, the proposed development will lead to a significant change to the character of
Richmond Gardens, though change is not necessarily negative. The change will be
comparable to both the 2009 approved scheme, and particularly the student
accommodation development recently allowed on appeal, in terms of the scale of
development, massing, the spread of buildings across the frontage, and the building line of
development. It will provide the opportunity to improve the townscape and public realm in
Richmond Gardens, which is presently poor and uninviting. The existing car park is set
back from the street and has a poor appearance, and pedestrian and cycle routes are poor.
The proposed development is materially very similar to the consented student
accommodation scheme and would not be harmful to the character and appearance of the
area. The proposal would therefore accord with the relevant provisions of the NPPF and
local policies including Policy 4.4 and 6.10 of the Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan,
Policies CS21 and CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy and A19, D4 and
D5 of the Bournemouth Town Centre Area Action Plan.

P a g e 14
98

Impact on Trees and Landscaping
Removal of existing trees
67.

The Richmond Gardens car park has extensive planting of trees and shrubs to the western,
northern and eastern sides of the site. The western side planting wraps around the south
west corner of the building, opposite the head of Verulam Place. The southern side which
has a pedestrian access from old Christchurch Road has been previously landscaped and
planted but this is now has a drab and poorly maintained appearance. The trees are a mix
of species and age classes and although some have been planted, many appear to be selfset.

68.

Little or no maintenance or management of the planting is evident and the condition of less
than half of the tree stock can be considered to be good. A TPO was made in 2002 and is
in need of revision. It covers a selection of the trees around the site, but when it was made
it was recognised that many of the trees did not warrant TPO protection. A full tree survey
and arboricultural report is submitted with the application. Detailed tree planting and
landscape proposals are also submitted. The tree survey and report identify 81 individual
trees. There is just one high quality (A grade) tree, 35 (B grade) of moderate value, 42 (C
grade) of low quality and 3 (U grade) that are very poor and should be removed. Several
groups of smaller trees have also been identified where it is not possible to separate them
as individuals, of which only one are deemed to be B grade and provide some amenity
value. Despite the low quality of a significant proportion of the tree stock, they do in any
case serve as valuable screening to an eyesore of a building.

69.

A characteristic of the planting is that it is mostly within quite narrow strips or within raised
or contained or beds. This has meant that the footprints of the proposed buildings leave
little scope to retain any existing screen planting. The height of the buildings also means
that any landscaping only has a visual impact on the lower levels. The buildings occupy the
available depth of the narrow land around the car park with a limited amount of tree
retention possible. The arboricultural report states that 40 trees will be removed plus 12
smaller groups of trees and shrubs. Of the trees to be removed 17 are B grade trees and
the remainder are C or U category. If the principle of the development is to be accepted
then it is inevitable that the extent of tree loss that has been identified has also to be
accepted.

70.

The principal of the loss of the trees was previously accepted when the 2009 development
was approved by the Planning Committee, and then more recently in terms of the student
accommodation development which was allowed on appeal. There are very similar levels of
tree loss in all three of these development proposals. The 2009 scheme included
development to the south west corner of the site adjacent to Verulam Place, which this
proposal does not, and therefore it avoids any tree loss on that side of the site. The 2009
approval also did manage to retain a small number of trees on Richmond Gardens to the
front of where Block C is located in this proposal. That has not proven possible here
because of the site levels with trees in raised planters in this location. However, like the
student accommodation scheme the development in this proposal does not extend as far
eastwards and span over the access road so more trees are instead retained on the far
north eastern corner of the site, to the east of the re-aligned service road.

71.

In considering the issue of tree loss the Inspector stated:
“Beyond their screening function for the car park, a number of the trees are in poor
condition… The proposed landscaping would physically and visually integrate the proposed
P a g e 15
99

development with its surroundings. The site would retain sufficient tree cover to accord with
the BTCDDG’s requirements and the proposed development would not be harmful to the
area’s character and appearance in this regard. Furthermore, I consider that it would meet
the requirements of Policy 4.25 of the Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan 2002 (LP) for
planting and landscaping. In respect of TCAAP Policy A19, the proposed development
would retain some trees and landscaping and would also introduce replacement
landscaping and trees. Given the site’s constrained nature, I consider on balance that this
policy requirement is met”.
72.

The main difference to the approved student accommodation scheme is that the mature
Maritime Pine which was retained in its planter to the front of the Richmond Gardens car
park entrance is now proposed to be removed. This facilitates the narrowing of the car park
entrance from 6 lanes to 4 so it has other townscape benefits. In this proposal there are
more trees instead retained to the edge of the site to the west of the car park entrance. As
stated, the overall loss here is comparable to previously approved developments.
Proposed landscaping

73.

Replacement planting to Richmond Gardens is proposed with 9 large street trees (Scots
Pine), plus a large London Plane tree to the north west corner to replace the Maritime Pine,
and an additional 8 smaller street trees, as well as 4 trees to the raised courtyard area. The
building line is stepped back sufficiently to allow the street trees sufficient space. The space
will be fairly heavily shaded being north of the proposed buildings making it a challenging
place to establish and maintain healthy plants. The constraints of the space therefore mean
that many of the trees will not be large or tall mature specimens. However, it is considered
that the proposal would provide a good quality public realm along Richmond Gardens and a
similar level of tree cover to the approved student accommodation scheme.

74.

The northern side of the car park is to be landscaped with a ‘vertical garden system’, that is
a green wall to the façade with planting to soften its appearance. This will soften the
backdrop to the proposed buildings along Richmond Gardens, improve the visual aspect for
occupants of rooms at the rear of the building and improve the appearance of the car park.
Indicative planting proposals have been provided to supplement the tree planting along the
Richmond Gardens frontage.

75.

The overall landscaping strategy splits the areas around the car park into several zones.
The area to the front of Block B will be more formally landscaped with a variety of terraced
planters due to the different levels of the site here, which will create a multi-level planting
arrangement. The area on the south west side of the side adjacent to the pedestrian
footpath known as Dalkeith Lane will be maintained generally as existing but managed
more actively to create more of a wildflower meadow character and wildlife corridor. There
will be enhanced lighting which will improve the security of this area.

76.

The courtyard garden is positive and adds good amenity space to the occupants of the
development, as do the roof garden areas, although the landscaping in these areas would
not be prominently visible from public areas.

77.

A Landscape and Tree Officer has inspected the proposed tree planting plans. There
remains an objection that purely from a landscape and trees perspective the tree loss is
significant in terms of number, and the available planting space for the replacement trees
on Richmond Gardens is limited, so trees may not reach their full potential, although space
appears sufficient for typical street tree planting. However, the previous approvals for
development on the site have to be taken into account in determining the proposals here,
P a g e 16
100

and the level of tree loss and quality of the replacement landscaping are very similar. The
loss of trees is compensated by the benefit of using this underutilised site. This is also
reflected by the current TCAAP policy which permits development on the site. It would not
be possible to viably develop the site without notable tree loss, and the site constraints of a
narrow site mean that the proposed building cannot be pushed back any further or made
any narrower to retain or improve the tree provision on the north side of the site.
78.

The applicant has submitted a sufficient level of detail, including tree pit design, details of
the ‘vertical garden system’ to be installed on the side of the car park, and the wild flower
meadow, and the details are considered positive.

79.

The trees along the south of Richmond Gardens and Dalkeith Lane are more important as
they are visible across the town centre from the south, and many of these are to be retained
and supplemented with additional planting. If consent is to be granted the landscape
management programme for the vegetation that is to be retained can be conditioned to
ensure that it is brought up to a good standard for the benefit of the site and wider
landscape. Overall, it is considered that in respect of trees and landscaping issues the
proposals would accord with the relevant provisions of the NPPF and Policy 4.25 of the
Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan.

Impact on neighbouring residents
80.

81.

The site is surrounded by a number of other buildings of various scale, some of which are in
commercial office use, and there are also residential uses.
Marshall Point and other office buildings adjacent on Richmond Hill and Dean Park
Crescent
The submitted Daylight and Sunlight report indicates that there would be some impact to
some windows of these adjacent office blocks in terms of ‘vertical sky component’ due to
the visibly taller building, but all buildings remain acceptable in terms of daylight according
to BRE guidelines. There do not appear to be any residential properties in Dean Park
Crescent.

82.

The proposed buildings will throw a significant shadow towards the Marshall Point office
building, which is located to the north of the application site, and at certain times of the day
and year lower parts of the building will be in shadow. The long and high elevations of the
proposed development will also dominate the outlook from the southerly windows of this
building. However, this is a round office building with other outlooks, and the minimum
separation of around 22 metres would be acceptable. The relationship would be
comparable in terms of height and mass to the previous schemes, which were considered
acceptable in this regard.

83.

The other adjacent office blocks to the north of the development site will again experience
some loss of outlook and light but overall it is not considered that amenity of the occupants
of these office/commercial uses will be compromised to an extent that planning permission
ought to be refused.

84.

Mount Heatherbank
This block of 18 flats is located to the west side of the car park in Richmond Gardens. The
rear corner of Block A1 would be around 42 metres from the closest corner of this
neighbouring building, which is a significant increase over the approved student
accommodation development due to no longer spanning the building over the car park
entrance lanes. There would not be any impact in terms of overshadowing or loss of light.
P a g e 17
101

85.

86.

The site would remain well screened by mature trees along the side boundary of the car
park and the proposed development would not have a harmful visual impact. There will also
be potential benefits from opening up the overgrown space opposite the front of this block
of flats, and to provide better surveillance and lighting along Dalkeith Lane.
10 Richmond Gardens
There is a single residential dwelling in Richmond Gardens, known as number 10. It was
built as a ‘caretaker’s flat’ in the 1960s, and it contains accommodation at first floor level
with parking underneath. It is surrounded by taller office development to the north and east,
so has always existed in a slightly unusual situation. It has first floor windows facing south
to the application site and would be located to the north west of proposed Block B at a
minimum separation distance of approximately 24 metres. This neighbouring property was
not considered a significant constraint at the time of the previously approved application,
and the impact was considered acceptable. The applicants have produced an updated
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment which includes an assessment of the impact on this
property.

87.

The report concludes that the scale and height of the proposed development will lead to
some impact to this property in terms of daylight and sunlight to the south facing windows.
However, this property will retain sufficient light and sunlight levels overall to not be
materially harmful. Furthermore, the height of the development in the area of Block B is
lower than the approved student development so would have a lesser impact than the other
scheme. The proposal will have no impact on sunlight during morning hours and at times of
the year when the sun is high in the sky.

88.

There will be increased activity on and around the site, but overall this is acceptable for an
urban setting and the proposal here is lower in terms of height and intensity of use than the
student accommodation development.

89.

The level of harm in this case to the one property is not considered to create a material
conflict with relevant policies, including CS41 and D4 overall. The NPPF states that Local
Authorities should make efficient use of land, particularly where there is an anticipated
shortage of land for meeting identified housing needs. It says that “when considering
applications for housing, authorities should take a flexible approach in applying policies or
guidance relating to daylight and sunlight, where they would otherwise inhibit making
efficient use of a site”. Taking this into account, and the precedent or fall-back position of
the earlier approvals on the site, it is not considered that a minor impact to this single
residential property would justify refusal of the proposed development here.

90.

91.

Old Christchurch Road properties
The rear of Block C will be between 28-32 metres from the rear elevation of properties in
Old Christchurch Road, which contain a mix of commercial and residential properties on the
upper levels. The separation distance is slightly lower than the approved student
accommodation scheme, and includes a number of additional external balconies on the
south elevation. The overall height of the buildings is comparable. It is considered that the
separation distance is sufficient in this town centre location to protect privacy, and this is
enhanced with the mature tree screen that currently exists between these properties.
The location of the proposed building to north of the existing properties will mean that there
are no shading issues to properties in Old Christchurch Road. Given the town centre
location it is considered that the level of amenity for residents here is acceptable.
P a g e 18
102

92.

93.

Verulam Place
Verulam Place is located to the south east side of the car park site. The proposed
development is a sufficient distance away and with a strong degree of tree screening to not
have any impact to occupants of properties here.
Richmond Gate
This block of flats is a landmark building at the top of Richmond Hill on the opposite side of
the road to the application site. This building is a minimum of over 70 metres from the
closest corner of proposed Block A1 on the western side of the site. Flats in Richmond Gate
are generally arranged on this side with south or south east facing views. The proposed
development will be visible to the east but will not affect their main southerly views. In
addition, the distance is sufficient to mean that the proposed development would not be
overbearing or visually intrusive to occupants of this block.

94.

Residential properties do not have a right to a view and given the town centre location and
the spacing it is not considered that there would be a loss of residential amenity in this
case.

95.

It is noted that there were no issues of residential amenity to any properties arising in the
Inspector’s decision on the student accommodation scheme, either in terms of loss of light
or outlook, or noise and disturbance from an increased intensity of use of the site. Overall it
is considered that the impact on neighbouring properties would not be materially harmful
and the proposal in this respect would accord with the provisions of the NPPF and relevant
local policies including CS21 and CS41 of the Bournemouth Core Strategy, 6.10 of the
District Wide Local Plan, and D4 of the Town Centre AAP.

Living conditions for future occupants
96.

The site is an area of land around the existing car park. In terms of the constraints and
resultant environment living conditions need to be carefully considered. The development
includes 211 flats with a mix of studio, 1, 2 and 3 bed units as noted at paragraph 26. Policy
U2 of the TCAAP seeks a mixture of unit sizes in residential developments. It would have
been beneficial to see more of a balance of sizes with more 3 bed homes to support the
aims of this policy, but overall there are a good number of 2 bedroom units. The proposed
flats are designed to meet the minimum space standards of the Government’s ‘Technical
Housing Standards – Nationally Described Space Standard’ (March 2015). The Council
does not have locally adopted space standards, but to fall some way below these standards
would indicate that there is an insufficient level of space and poor living standards but that
is not considered to be the case here.

97.

There are a number of single aspect flats, including some that are only north facing, but
overall it is considered that they have an acceptable level of light and outlook. Some flats
have access to balconies for amenity space, and there are additional communal roof
gardens and a ground floor courtyard between Blocks B and C.

98.

A ventilation report has been provided to demonstrate that there would be sufficient
ventilation to the car park. An air quality assessment also indicates that the residents of the
development would have acceptable air quality despite proximity to the car park and other
road traffic.

99.

The gap to the car park has been increased as far as possible. There will be a separation
distance of approximately 6 metres from the south facing windows of Blocks A1 and A2 to
the car park. This is a little low, but only affects a small proportion of units which are on
P a g e 19
103

levels 1 and 2 of the development. The flats on these levels are accessed by an open
walkway on the southern side, which provides some more defensible space but also limits
light and outlook to a degree at the rear, with perhaps the weakest units in terms of amenity
being the studio units on Level 1 of Blocks A1 and A2. However, these are studio units with
a dual outlook to the front and rear, and in the overall mix of units it is not considered that
there would be a conflict with relevant policies including U2, D4, 6.10 and CS41, and living
conditions to these blocks are considered acceptable overall. The appearance of the car
park is also to be enhanced with landscaping, and the car park is not overly tall on the
northern side of the site so there will be sufficient light to rooms here.
100.

To the eastern side Blocks B and C are also close to the side of the car park and its eastern
ramp in places. Block B is approximately 4.3 metres from the side and Block C 6.6m to
7.1m. There are habitable rooms facing at this close distance, but flats are not single aspect
so also benefit from another outlook.

101.

Due to the residential nature of the development in an area subject to potentially high noise
levels (from the car park, the Wessex Way and noise/plant associated with the shopping
centre for example), the Environmental Health Officer recommends the use of various
planning conditions to ensure the bedrooms and living rooms within the development
achieve the British Standard for acoustic attenuation. In addition, conditions are
recommended to control the noise levels of any plant/ machinery associated with the
development, to safeguard future occupants of the development and nearby existing
residents.

102.

The main area of concern is the shopping centre delivery area which also has plant
equipment associated with the shopping centre, which is to remain in place. There is also
noise from a nearby bar (Slug and Lettuce), the existing car park and the Wessex Way. The
applicant’s Noise Impact Assessment has looked at all potential sources of noise and has
made recommendations in terms of glazing type and ventilation that will mean acceptable
noise levels for occupants of the development. Overall it is considered that living conditions
for occupants would be acceptable and the proposal would therefore accord with the
relevant provisions of the NPPF and local policies including CS21 and CS41 of the
Bournemouth Core Strategy, 6.10 of the District Wide Local Plan, and D4 of the Town
Centre AAP.

Safety/security
103.

The area around Richmond Gardens and Dalkeith Lane is not currently perceived as a safe
and secure place. There is a lack of natural surveillance to many places including the
Dalkeith Lane footpath and the private service road to the shopping centre. This is worse at
night as the office uses around the site are vacated and lighting is poor. The proposed
development would therefore offer opportunities to improve the safety and security of the
area through increased use of the site and natural surveillance from the many windows
around the site. Improved lighting, landscaping, and CCTV around the site will also assist in
improving safety, including a financial contribution of £60,000 towards adding a number of
new CCTV cameras around the site in public locations to the Council’s CCTV network.

104.

Changes to the shopping centre loading area will make it more secure and gated, and lower
risk to pedestrians in this location. Adding footpaths to the south side of Richmond Gardens
and a cycle path will improve pedestrian safety around the site and across the car park
entrance. The proposed development is therefore positive in terms of safety and security
and accords with the relevant provisions of the NPPF and local policies.
P a g e 20
104

Parking/Traffic/Highway Safety
105.

106.

107.

108.

The Local Highway Authority (LHA) have assessed the proposals in terms of all aspects of
highway and parking considerations.
Policy considerations – public parking provision
TCAAP Policy A19 (bullet point 2) states: ‘Proposals must: provide a 969-space public car
park.’ The existing car park currently provides 875 public spaces. The number of spaces
has reduced over time (from 935 spaces) because of various improvements e.g. the
provision of disabled parking bays, creation of central walkways etc. Theoretically, an
additional 94 spaces are now required to meet the policy requirement of 969 spaces.
However, the applicant considers that 935 spaces is the baseline figure (para. 7.27 of the
Planning Statement) so 34 spaces would be required under this scenario. Given that Figure
4.5 of the TCAAP states that the car park has 935 spaces, the LHA agrees that 935 spaces
should be considered as the baseline figure.
No additional public car parking is proposed here, which is a concern of the LHA based on
the policy requirement, and leading to a sustained objection. However, this is the same
situation as the previous student accommodation scheme, where the Inspector considered
that “As the car park is rarely full and the additional 34 spaces would comprise less than a
percent of overall town centre provision, it appears unlikely that there would be any harm to
public car parking provision if 34 additional spaces were not provided. Therefore, in light of
the Inspector’s determination that it is only a small additional provision that would not be
materially significant to parking in the town centre overall, it is not considered reasonable to
sustain an objection to this element, although it represents a departure from the adopted
TCAAP policies (T8 and A19). Following the adoption of the new BCP Parking SPD (2021)
there is no longer a requirement for private parking associated with the development, so the
situation is now comparable with the approved student scheme in this regard.
Car Parking
The parking requirements of the proposal are now subject to the recently adopted BCP
Parking Standards SPD. The 142m² of flexible retail uses would have a requirement of zero
on site provision with an expectation to use public car parking. The 211 flats would also be
expected to provide zero parking spaces according to Table 9 C3 flats of the Parking
Standards SPD. The application proposes no private parking except for one disabled space
adjacent to the service road which has been retained. This is reduced from the 7 previously
provided, in order to accommodate the required level of cycle storage. Appendix A of the
Parking Standards SPD requires 5% disabled parking provision, with a minimum of one
space. The Highway Officer has confirmed that the development is therefore acceptable in
this regard.

109.

In terms of the Equality Act it is not considered that the proposed development on this
site would impact or discriminate upon any persons in protected groups. Access to the
public car park will remain as existing. The proposed development itself is designed to
be accessible, with lifts and ramps, and easy access. Only one disabled parking
space is to be provided, but this is in line with the requirements of the adopted Parking
SPD (2021), which has also been subject to an EQIA screening exercise prior to
adoption. A full EQIA was not required, which was confirmed by the Policy and
Performance team.

110.

Surrounding streets are restricted with no waiting/no loading so are not legally usable
for disabled drivers to park, but there is a very large public car park adjacent to the
P a g e 21
105

development with a new lift access. Disabled drivers are also only a small subsect of
those with a mobility impairment and fair greater numbers of people with disabilities
make use of public transport or cycling as a means of getting around.
111.

For developments of more than 50 units the LPA’s Parking Standards SPD expects the
provision of ‘at least’ two on site car club bays open to public usage. The applicant is to
provide financial contributions to offsite provision of three car club vehicles in the proximity
of Richmond Hill, which is considered an acceptable solution on this site.

112.

The Parking Standards SPD has a requirement that loading and servicing is
adequately provided for in new developments. Thereby catering for any operational parking
demand generated on site. The proposal makes use of the service access road
leading to the existing service entrance for the Richmond Gardens Shopping Centre and
the shopping centre’s service area. This is considered acceptable by the LHA subject to the
use of an appropriately worded condition. The proposed development therefore accords
with the provisions of Policy CS16 and the Parking Standards SPD (2021).

113.

114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

Access
Access is proposed from Richmond Gardens, with a realigned service road. The applicant
has confirmed that all parking spaces along the private service road and within the service
yard will be removed. The LHA consider this acceptable and necessary.
Access to multi-storey car park
The applicant proposes to reduce the number of car park entry and exit lanes from 6 to 4.
The applicant has revised the proposed car park access, which is acceptable from a
highways and transport perspective. The applicant will need to seek separate permission
from the Council as leaseholder of the car park.
Richmond Gardens public car park ventilation
The submitted car park ventilation report indicates that the proposed development will not
have an adverse effect on the existing car park ventilation because the proposed blocks are
set a sufficient distance from the car park to not have an impact.
Proposed Richmond Gardens shared use path.
The applicant proposes a 3.5m wide segregated cycle and footpath path along the south
side of Richmond Gardens, which is welcomed. A shared use path continues westwards to
Richmond Hill (linking to a new shared crossing on Richmond Hill) and the segregated
paths also continue north eastwards to Dean Park Crescent. These elements are to be
provided through a S278 agreement.
Richmond Gardens footway
A new pedestrian footpath is provided to the north of Blocks A2 and B, which is a minimum
of 2 metres in width, meeting highway requirements. The land is to be dedicated to the
Council through a legal agreement and is shown clearly marked in colour on a separate
plan.
Lighting/CCTV
New and improved lighting & CCTV on pedestrian routes surrounding the site, including
Dalkeith Lane, will be required to support additional pedestrian trips. CCTV will be secured
through a financial contribution to add to the Council’s centralised CCTV network, and a
lighting plan can be conditioned.
Cycle parking provision and layout
P a g e 22
106

119.

120.

121.

122.

The cycle provision has been improved during the application process, to reflect the
requirements of the new Parking Standards SPD. 338 resident spaces and 24 visitor
spaces are shown. Within the 338 resident spaces 16 of these have been designed as
oversized spaces representing a 4.7% provision, this is just shy of the 5% required by the
Parking Standards SPD. The very minor shortfall would not represent a material conflict
with relevant policies overall. Additional changes to the internal access to the cycle stores,
including the removal of stairs and doorway widening to 1.2m have improved the usability of
the cycle stores. This is welcomed. The proposal in this regard accords with the provisions
of the Parking Standards SPD and Policy CS18.
Travel Plan
Given this is a full application, the Good Practice Guidelines: Delivering Travel Plans
through the Planning Process (DfT: 2009) advises that a full travel plan should be submitted
for the residential part of the development (211 units). The commercial unit (142sqm) is
below a reasonable threshold for a travel plan. A draft travel plan has been provided and a
will form the basis of a full travel plan to be submitted (condition 12).
Planning Obligations
To make the proposal acceptable in highway terms the proposal would require contributions
in the form of:


A Contribution to car club spaces to be delivered on Richmond Hill, to mitigate in part
the shortfall in parking in part. The Car Club operator in Bournemouth, Co Wheels, has
advised that the cost per vehicle is £9,360pa. Three years would be £28,080 per
vehicle. Three vehicles would be a total of £84,240.



Proportional increase in pedestrian trips on Old Christchurch Road: the applicant has
calculated that there will be a 1.1% increase in pedestrian trips on Old Christchurch
Road. The Council is proposing further enhancements to the public realm in this area,
costed at £1.2m which will promote walking. A proportional contribution to these works
equates to £13,200.

Highway works
The applicant also agrees to undertake a series of highway mitigation works under section
278 of the Highway Act 1980. These works are primarily focused on pedestrian and cycles
facilities to accommodate additional trips generated by the development. The highway
works agreement will need to be entered into prior to construction of level 1 of the building
as set out in the approved plans, and will include:







Pedestrian/cycle crossing on Richmond Hill;
A raised light segregated cycle track contraflow at least 2m wide on Richmond Gardens
and Dean Park Crescent from Richmond Hill to the three arm Dean Park Crescent
junction adjacent to the A338 off slip, to enable eastbound cycling;
A raised 2m wide footway on Richmond Gardens and Dean Park Crescent from
Richmond Hill to the three arm Dean Park Crescent junction adjacent to the A338 off
slip;
Alterations to street lighting as necessary;
Alterations to highway drainage as necessary; and
Alterations to road marking and road signage as necessary.

Plus the following highway works and dedication of land:

P a g e 23
107








The widening and resurfacing of the footway on Richmond Gardens to 2m and
dedicated at public highway.
The resurfacing of Dalkeith Lane, with adequate street lighting and CCTV coverage
along its length;
Dedication by the Owner of the private land shown in pink on drawing number
73554-CUR-00-XX-DR-TP-06003 Rev P1, including Richmond Gardens and
Dalkeith Lane widening, immediately upon Commencement of Development as
publicly maintained highway;
a zebra crossing on Dean Park Crescent; and
improvements to pedestrian environment at Richmond Hill roundabout, including
CCTV improved lighting and mirrors at corners.

123. The highway works shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority
prior to the Occupation of the Development. Overall it is considered that the proposed
highway impacts are considered acceptable, subject to the above mitigation, and would
accord with the relevant provisions of the NPPF and local policies including CS16 and
CS18. There is a public parking shortfall, but this is weighed up in the overall balance of the
proposals.
Energy and sustainable construction
124.

Policies CS2 and CS3 of the Core Strategy require developments to be sustainable and to
embrace the use of renewable/low carbon energy generations. The Applicant has provided
an energy statement stating that the development construction will exceed Building
Regulation requirements, mainly through the use of highly efficient air source heat pumps
(ASHP) to all buildings. The ASHP would provide all domestic and commercial heating and
hot water, which means that a significant 92% of the total energy demand of the whole
development would come from decentralised and low carbon sources, and a 37.7%
reduction in CO2 emissions.

125.

The Energy Statement suggests that PV Panels are possible on roof areas, though no
detail has been provided for these. The applicant states that they will be explored at a later
date, but the other measures will in any case meet the requirements of policy CS2. A
condition has been added to ensure that the requirements are met (condition 16).

Ecology/biodiversity
126.

The perimeter of the car park site where development is proposed is heavily treed, and
many of these would be removed to facilitate development. A comprehensive ecological
appraisal and protected species assessment have been provided as part of the application.
The report concludes that the site is poor in floristic diversity with no rare plants recorded
and only four common species of bird observed. No old or in-use birds’ nests were found,
and no other rare or protected species discovered, including bats. The site was concluded
to be of low wildlife interest.

127.

Landscaping proposals include tree planting and roof garden areas, but do not completely
replace the amount of vegetation cover previously seen on the site. However, consistent
with Natural England advice, the applicant is willing to provide a contribution towards local
biodiversity initiatives at the rate of £50 per flat (211 flats x £50 = £10,550), as well as
provide swift bricks built into the structure of the development. The proposal would accord
with the relevant provisions of the NPPF in this respect.

P a g e 24
108

Contaminated Land
128.

The applicants have submitted a Contaminated Land Risk Assessment. The history of the
site (detached residential housing with gardens pre-1980, asphalt car parking area since
that date) indicates it has a very low contamination potential.

129.

Detailed reports have been submitted including ground gas monitoring (Phase 2 Ground
Investigation). Low gas concentrations were found, but further monitoring is required in
some parts of the site where there were access constraints, with a further condition in the
same manner as the student accommodation development.

Drainage/Flooding
130.

The submitted Drainage Report suggests that the surface water network around the site
detains to the north where it most likely discharges into the existing public surface water
sewer in the north western corner of the site. The site is constrained by the development
proposed which means that soakaways would be difficult. The applicant is proposing to
dispose of surface water runoff from the proposed development to the existing public
surface water sewer. This is subject to Wessex Water’s agreement and will require some
degree of attenuation and flow control. More detail can be provided by condition, and even
if there is limited space for soakaways on site there are other sustainable drainage
measures that could potentially be employed (attenuation tanks, green roofs).

131.

The site is not in an area that is known to be at risk from surface water flooding in extreme
rainfall events and is not close to an existing water course, so no Flood Risk Assessment is
required. The proposal is acceptable in terms of Policy CS4.

Heathland Mitigation
132.

The site is within 5km of a designated Dorset Heathlands SPA (Special Protection Area)
and Ramsar Site, and part of the Dorset Heaths candidate SAC (Special Area of
Conservation) which covers the whole of Bournemouth. As such, the determination of any
application for an additional dwelling(s) resulting in increased population and domestic
animals should be undertaken with regard to the requirements of the Habitat Regulations.
It is considered that an appropriate assessment could not clearly demonstrate that there
would not be an adverse effect on the integrity of the sites, particularly its effect upon bird
and reptile habitats within the SSSI.

133.

Following a European Court ruling relating to the need or otherwise for appropriate
assessments, Natural England require an appropriate assessment to be undertaken for all
new residential schemes proposing a net gain of units. As such following advice from
ecological consultants and Natural England a standard Appropriate Assessment proforma
has been developed. The proforma concludes that in order to mitigate the likely impacts of
the additional residential units provided by major development schemes such as this one
where there are greater than 50 units provided, a Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace
(SANG) will be required as well as the required financial contribution towards Strategic
Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) measures towards the designated sites. As
such it is proposed that should the application be granted, a suitably worded condition is
applied requiring the provision of a SANG. It is stressed that such an approach is now
required for all residential schemes of a certain scale and a strategic SANG will be required
to accommodate the associated impacts. The Parks Section have confirmed an ambition to
provide the required SANG at Hicks Farm in the Stour Valley which is a key area identified
in the adopted Heathlands SPD and Local Plan to provide for improved access. An earlier
P a g e 25
109

application was refused by the planning committee, but a revised application has now been
submitted. Condition 26 has been added to secure the required SANG mitigation either in
the form of Hicks Farm or an alternative suitable site.
134.

A capital contribution is required for the SAMM contribution, which in this instance is £269 x
211 = £56,759, plus a £1,000 administration fee. A signed legal agreement is required to
secure this contribution.

Affordable Housing
135.

All applications proposing residential development in excess of 10 units net will be
subject to the Council’s adopted affordable housing policy. The affordable housing
DPD sets out an approach to achieving contributions towards the delivery of affordable
housing in Bournemouth. Policy AH1 contained within DPD requires all residential
development to contribute towards meeting the target of 40% affordable housing.
When considering residential development the Council will seek a 40% contribution
except where it is proven to not be financially viable. The DPD was revised in
November 2011 and sets out in greater detail how the DPD will be implemented as
well as including an indicative contribution table which applicants can agree to rather
than submit viability information.

136.

In this case the applicants submitted a viability assessment which has been assessed
by the Council’s independent verifier, the District Valuation Service. The report
concludes that the proposed development is not viable to make an Affordable Housing
contribution in this case. The proposal does not therefore provide a benefit in this
regard.

Community Infrastructure Levy
137.

The proposed development is not liable for a CIL charge, as residential development in the
town centre area is exempt in the charging schedule.

Summary
138.

It is considered that:






A proposed residential led scheme is acceptable in principle on this site and in keeping
with the site-specific policy
The proposed development would not be harmful to the character and appearance of
the area.
The proposed development would not have a materially harmful impact on the living
conditions of neighbouring residents.
Living conditions for future occupants will be acceptable
The proposal does not raise any parking, traffic or highway safety concerns.

Planning Balance
139.

In terms of the overall planning balance, it is recognised that there are some minor impacts
in terms of the change to the character of Richmond Gardens, significant tree loss, and a
lack of additional public parking provision, which conflicts with Policy A19. The proposal
also would not make a contribution towards affordable housing. However, the principle of
these various aspects has already been considered broadly acceptable in the previous
P a g e 26
110

consents on the site, and the recent Inspector’s decision in particular forms a significant
material consideration in these matters.
140.

A fresh approach has been taken with the design, which has some limitations in terms of
the articulation of some elements, but overall, it is considered that it would provide a
sufficiently high-quality scheme and would accord with relevant development plan policies.
Living conditions are considered acceptable overall, with the provision of some private and
communal amenity space for future occupants. There are also significant benefits in terms
of making use of an under-utilised and difficult to develop site, improving the activity, vitality,
and viability of the town centre, making contributions towards highway improvement
schemes, and improved safety and security in the area.

141.

Highway and parking matters have been assessed in detail in respect of the relevant
policies including the recently adopted Parking Standards SPD, and are considered
acceptable overall with some planning gain in terms of highway and public realm
improvements.

142.

The proposal provides residential development in a highly sustainable town centre location,
and the 211 flats will contribute significantly towards local housing supply. The Council is
not currently in a position to demonstrate a 5-year housing supply in the Bournemouth area.
This means that Paragraph 11 of the NPPF applies. This confirms that permission should
be granted unless applying the guidance in the Framework provides a clear reason for
refusing the development proposed. In this regard, in consideration of the ‘tilted balance’ of
NPPF Paragraph 11(d), the proposed adverse effects of granting permission are not
considered to ‘significantly and demonstrably’ outweigh the benefits.

143.

Therefore, having considered the appropriate development plan policy and other material
considerations, including the NPPF, it is considered that, subject to compliance with the
conditions attached to this permission, the development would generally be in accordance
with the Development Plan as a whole, would not materially harm the character or
appearance of the area or the amenities of neighbouring and proposed occupiers and
would be acceptable in terms of traffic safety and convenience. The Development Plan
Policies considered in reaching this decision are set out above.

Recommendation
144.

GRANT permission with the following conditions, which are subject to
alteration/addition by the Head of Planning Services provided any alteration/addition
does not go to the core of the decision and the completion of a Section 106
agreement with the following terms:
Section 106 terms
Heathland Mitigation measures (SAMM): £56,759 (plus £1,000 administration fee)
Proportional contribution to public realm improvements in Old Christchurch Road: £13,200
CCTV contribution £60,000
Local biodiversity contribution £10,550
Car club contribution £84,240
A S278 Agreement should be entered into for the highway and public realm works to be
implemented by the applicant (outlined in paragraph 122), and these works shall be
completed prior to occupation of any part of the development.
P a g e 27
111

Conditions
1. Development to be carried out in accordance with plans as listed:
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plans:
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-001 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-002 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-003 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-004 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-005 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-006 Rev. P02
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-007 Rev. P02
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-009 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-010 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-011 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-012 Rev. P09
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-013 Rev. P12
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-014 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-015 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-016 Rev. P10
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-017 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-018 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-019 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-020 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-021 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-022 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-023 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-024 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-025 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-026 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-027 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-028 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-040 Rev. P09
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-041 Rev. P10
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-042 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-043 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-044 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-045 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-046 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-047 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-048 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-049 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-050 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-051 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-052 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-053 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-054 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-055 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-060 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-061 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-062 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-063 Rev. P05
P a g e 28
112

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-064 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-065 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-066 Rev. P03
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-070 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-071 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-072 Rev. P09
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-073 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-074 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-075 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-076 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-077 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-078 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-079 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-080 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-081 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-082 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-083 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-084 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-085 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-086 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-087 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-090 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-091 Rev. P07
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-092 Rev. P08
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-093 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-094 Rev. P02
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-095 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-096 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-097 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-098 Rev. P06
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-099 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-100 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-101 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-102 Rev. P05
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-103 Rev. P04
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-104 Rev. P03
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-105 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-106 Rev. P02
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-107 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-108 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-109 Rev. P01
(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-110 Rev. P04
P19-0659 02_B
P19-0659 03_D
P19-0659 04_F
P19-0659 05_F
P19-0659 06_A
P19-0659 07_B
P19-0659 08_A
P19-0659 09_A
P19-0659 10
P19-0659 11
P19-0659 12_A
P a g e 29
113

P19-0659 13_A
P19-0659 14
P19-0659 15
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
2. Phasing of development to be agreed
No development shall take place until a scheme for the phasing of the development to
be carried out in successive stages, has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved phasing scheme, and each stage shall be substantially completed
before the next stage of the development is commenced unless previously agreed in
writing with the LPA. The scheme shall ensure that no site clearance is undertaken
unless it can be demonstrated to the LPA that it is essential to allow the detailed
construction to progress and that adequate site screening and hoardings are in place
and this has been agreed with the LPA.
Reason: To secure the proper development of the site and in accordance with Policy
CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).
3. On site working hours limited when implementing permission
All on-site working, including demolition and deliveries to and from the site, associated
with the implementation of this planning permission shall only be carried out between
the hours of 0800 and 1800 Monday - Friday, 0800 and 1300 Saturday and not at all on
Sunday, Public and Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
and in accordance with Policies CS14 and CS38 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core
Strategy (October 2012).
4. Construction management plan
No site clearance or development shall commence until a Construction Method
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The Construction Method Statement should include the following measures:
a) parking arrangements for operatives and construction vehicles working on-site;
b) arrangements for safe access to the site for deliveries, loading and unloading of plant
and materials and wheel cleansing of vehicles prior to egress from the site onto the
public highway;
c) noise reduction measures (including times of piling operations);
d) details and siting of equipment, machinery and surplus materials on the site;
e) development timetable including any road or car park closure times or necessary
periods of longer working hours.
The approved Construction Method Statement shall be implemented and adhered to
throughout the construction phase of the development.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
and in the interest of highway safety in accordance with Policies CS38, CS41 and CS14
of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).
5. SUDs
No development shall take place until a scheme for the whole site providing for the
disposal of surface water run-off and incorporating sustainable urban drainage systems
P a g e 30
114

(SUDS), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The drainage works shall be completed in accordance with the approved details prior to
occupation of the development in accordance with the phasing strategy. The scheme
shall include the following as appropriate:
a) A scaled plan indicating the extent, position and type of all proposed hard surfacing
(e.g. drives, parking areas, paths, patios) and roofed areas;
b) Details of the method of disposal for all areas including means of treatment or
interception for potentially polluted run off;
c) Scaled drawings including cross sections, to illustrate the construction method and
materials to be used for the hard surfacing (sample materials and literature
demonstrating permeability may be required);
d) Implementation of alternative sustainable drainage initiatives.
Reason: To provide satisfactory drainage for the development in accordance with
Policy CS4 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012) and in order
to achieve the objectives set out in the Local Planning Authority’s Planning Guidance
Note on Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems.
6. Contaminated Land
No development shall take place until a remediation scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation scheme shall
include:
a) A ‘desk study’ report documenting the site history;
b) A site investigation report documenting the ground conditions of the site and
incorporating a ‘conceptual model’ of all potential pollutant linkages, detailing the
identified sources, pathways and receptors and basis of risk assessment;
c) A detailed scheme for remedial works and measures to be taken to avoid risk from
contaminants/or gases when the site is developed (if appropriate);
d) A detailed phasing scheme for the development and remedial works, which shall be
in accordance with the phasis scheme for development under condition 2.
Any variation of the scheme shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
advance of works being undertaken. The development shall not be occupied until any
previously approved remediation scheme have been carried out and a validation report
confirming completion of these works for the relevant phase of development has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out safely in the public interest and
in accordance with best practice and with Policy 3.20 of the Bournemouth District Wide
Local Plan (February 2002).
7. Samples of materials
Prior to the commencement of any superstructure works on site, details and samples of
the materials to be used in the development; including the render, cladding, brickwork,
balcony finishes, glazing, window/doors, window reveal detail, and the detailed design of
these components and any other materials or architectural detailing to be used in the
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To maintain the character and appearance of the building and to ensure a
satisfactory visual relationship between the existing and the new development in
accordance with Policy CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October
2012).
P a g e 31
115

8. Scheme for external pipework
Prior to the commencement of any superstructure works on site, a scheme for external
pipe work and flues shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved scheme
and unless shown on the approved elevation drawings any pipe work (with the
exception of rainwater down-pipes) shall be internal to the buildings.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and in accordance with
Policy CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).
9. Hard Landscaping
Within six months of the date of commencement of the development, or such other time
period as might otherwise be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, full
details of hard landscape works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Hard landscape details shall follow the design principles set
out in the approved drawings and shall include:
a) Lighting;
b) Bollards;
c) Seating;
d) Tree grills;
e) Other street furniture;
f) construction and services details in proximity to trees;
g) proposed finished levels and contours;
h) boundary treatments;
i) surfacing materials; and
j) a timetable for implementation.
The approved hard landscape scheme shall be implemented in full prior to any
occupation of the development commencing and retained thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development includes a properly designed
scheme of landscaping in the interests of visual amenity and to accord with Policy 4.25 of
the Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan (February 2002) and Policy CS41 of the
Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).
10. Soft Landscaping
Within six months of the date of commencement of the development, or such other time
period as might otherwise be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, full
details of soft landscape works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Soft landscaping details shall follow the design principles set
out in the approved drawings and shall include:
a) Planting plans;
b) Existing trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained;
c) Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with
plant and grass establishment);
d) Schedules of plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed numbers/densities;
e) Programme of implementation; and
f) Maintenance plan for a minimum period of 5 years.
The approved soft landscape scheme shall be implemented in full, including all tree
planting, within the first planting season after the first date of any occupation/use of the
development commencing and retained thereafter.
P a g e 32
116

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development includes a properly designed
scheme of landscaping in the interests of visual amenity and to accord with Policy 4.25 of
the Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan (February 2002) and Policy CS41 of the
Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).
11. Biodiversity enhancements
Within six months of the commencement of the development, details of biodiversity
enhancements to include approximately 40 swift bricks built into the development shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the first
occupation of any of the residential units hereby approved, and retained thereafter.
Reason: To mitigate for the loss of trees and biodiversity habitat on the site, in
accordance with policies CS35 and CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy
(2012).
12. Travel Plan
Prior to any occupation of the development hereby permitted, a detailed Travel Plan
which accords with current best practice and guidance existing at the time of submission
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved Travel Plan and obligations therein shall be implemented and complied with
upon occupation of the development and at all times thereafter unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and promoting sustainable modes of
transport, in accordance with Policy CS15 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy
(October 2012).
13. Cycle Store
Before the occupation of any part of the development hereby approved, 24 visitor cycle
parking spaces and a cycle store(s) for 338 cycles (including 16 oversized spaces),
which must include 1200mm (min) wide access doors, and step free access to the public
highway, shall be erected as shown on the approved plans and thereafter be retained,
maintained and kept available for the occupants and visitors of the development at all
times.
Reason: To promote the cycling mode of transport and in accordance with Policy CS18
of the Bournemouth Local Plan Core Strategy (October 2012) and BCP Parking
Standards SPD (January 2021).
14. Provision of a Servicing and Refuse Management Plan:
Prior to first occupation of any of the residential units hereby approved, a Servicing and
Refuse Management Plan (SRMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The SRMP shall include:
a) details of how banksmen will be employed to ensure public safety when servicing
vehicles are reversing;
b) details of the type and size of vehicles used;
c) details of the management company to be set up;
d) the employment of a private contractor to collect the refuse;
e) measures to be taken if no private contractor is available at any time in the future
(such as the employment of a person or persons to ensure bins are wheeled to the
collection point); and
P a g e 33
117

f) that bins will not be stored in the open or at the collection point apart from on the day of
collection. The SRMP shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior
to the occupation of the development and complied with at all times thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development includes a long-term management
plan for servicing and the collection of refuse in the interests of highway safety and
residential amenity, and to accord with Policy CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core
Strategy (October 2012).
15. Use of the service road
No vehicular parking shall be permitted on or adjacent to the private service road.
Reason: In the interest of safety and to accord with Policy CS41 of the Bournemouth
Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).
16. Sustainable energy
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the sustainability and energy
measures set out in the Energy Statement prepared by GWPS dated 25/11/19 (ref.
(415)1921-SB-GR-RichmondGarden_Rev03) prior to the first residential occupation of
the development and retained and maintained thereafter. Within six months of first
occupation of any of the development, written confirmation that the implemented
measures set out in the Energy Statement achieve the minimum standards of Policy
CS2, and/or details of any additional measures required, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any additional measures shall be
implemented within a further six months of approval and residential occupation levels
shall not exceed 80% until the additional measures have been implemented.
Reason: In the interests of encouraging the provision of sustainable homes, premises
and the provision of renewable and low carbon energy sources and infrastructure in
accordance with the aims of Policies CS2 & CS3 of the Core Strategy (2012).
17. Noise specifications
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the
development has been completed in accordance with the recommendations of 24Acoustics Technical Report: R6848-2 Rev 2 Date: 25th November 2019, including in
particular:
(a) the recommended glazing types and ventilation specifications for habitable rooms
described in Table 5 of the 24-Acoustics Technical Report: R6848-2 Rev 2 Date: 25th
November 2019 and associated Zones in Figure 4;
(b) the external wall constructions to apartments shall be designed and specified to
achieve the minimum sound insulation performance described in Table 6 of the 24Acoustics Technical Report: R6848-2 Rev 2 Date: 25th November 2019, and shall be
constructed to accord with such design and specification;
(c) the glazing configurations shall be provided as outlined in paragraph 5.9; and
(d) the required sound insulation performance for each ventilation type shall be provided
as described in Table 8 of the 24-Acoustics Technical Report: R6848-2 Rev 2 Date: 25th
November 2019.
Following completion of construction and prior to occupation of any of the residential
units of the development hereby permitted, a noise assessment shall be carried out and
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The noise
assessment, together with any additional mitigation measures shall demonstrate that the
noise criteria for the various noise sources outlined in paragraph 3.25 of the report are
P a g e 34
118

met to all areas of the development and no part of the development shall be occupied
until the noise criteria outlined in paragraph 3.25 have been met.
Reason: The implementation of the development without meeting the above
specifications is likely to result in an unacceptable scheme which would be detrimental to
the amenities of residents occupying the proposed properties.
18. Tree Protection
The tree protection measures as detailed in the arboricultural method statement dated 25
November 2019 (Ref 17093-AA4-PB and associated plans TS17-114L\1 Rev P, P190659_02B and P19-0659_03D) prepared by Barrell Tree Consultancy shall be
implemented in full and in accordance with the approved timetable and maintained and
supervised until completion of the development.
Reason: To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged
during construction works and to accord with Policy 4.25 of the Bournemouth District
Wide Local Plan (February 2002).
19. Drainage hard surfaced areas
Any new or replacement hard surfaced area(s) shall either be made of porous materials,
or provision shall be made to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or
porous area or surface within the curtilage of the development.
Reason: To provide satisfactory drainage for the development in accordance with Policy
CS4 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012) and in order to
achieve the objectives set out in the Local Planning Authority's Planning Guidance Note
on Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems.

20. Hours of use – commercial unit
The flexible Class A1/A3 commercial unit measuring 145sqm on the ground floor of Block
A hereby permitted shall only be open to customers between 0700 and 2300.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties and
in accordance with Policies CS38 and CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core
Strategy (October 2012).
21. Hot food limitation – commercial unit
Any food served within a Class A3 use of the ground floor commercial unit shall be
limited to that which does not require primary cooking on the premises, unless a detailed
scheme for extraction including specification for odour control and noise mitigation has
been first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and then
implemented on site.
Reason: Due to the absence of detail in relation to the proposed extraction equipment
and to safeguard the interests of occupiers of adjoining and nearby residential properties
in accordance with Policies CS38 and CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core
Strategy.
22. No additional louvres or grills
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development Order) 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
P a g e 35
119

without modification), there shall be no louvres, grills or canopies installed to windows or
the façade of the buildings except as shown on the approved plans.
Reason: To maintain the character and appearance of the building and to ensure a
satisfactory visual relationship between the existing and the new development in
accordance with Policy CS41 of the Bournemouth Local Plan: Core Strategy (October
2012).
23. No pedestrian access to service yard area
The door to the rear (southern side) of Block C on level B3 between the substation and
cycle store shall be used for maintenance and emergency access only and not for
general use by occupants as an access to/from the development.
Reason: In the interests of security and highway safety.
24. Security gate to car park
A secure gate operated system shall be implemented at the access to the car park
beneath the residential block C prior to the first occupation of Blocks B or C, in
accordance with design details to be first submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The secure gate shall be retained and maintained thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of security and safety and in particular to provide secure cycle
storage in accordance with Policy 8.37 of the Bournemouth District Wide Local Plan
25. Provision of a SANG
No part of the development hereby approved shall be commenced until there has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority a Protected Habitats
Mitigation Scheme. The Protected Habitats Mitigation Scheme shall only be acceptable if
it in particular includes the following:
(i) Details of all mitigation measures including a timetable for delivery proposed for the
purposes of preventing the development hereby permitted from adversely affecting
the integrity of any European Site alone or in combination;
(ii) Evidence sufficient to clearly demonstrate to a level where no reasonable scientific
doubt remains as at the time of approval of the Protected Habitats Mitigation
Scheme that as a result of the proposed mitigation measures the development
hereby permitted will not adversely affect the integrity of any European Site;
(iii) to such extent as the mitigation measures seek to rely in whole or part upon the
proposed SANG at Hicks Farm (“the Hicks Farm SANG”), then provisions that no
part of the development hereby permitted is first occupied until:
a. the Hicks Farm SANG has been granted planning permission for a change of use
to a SANG;
b. that the public at large have been given general access to the Hicks Farm
SANG; and
c. arrangements are in place to secure that the Hicks Farm SANG (or any SANG
that may at any time replace it) will be maintained and managed as a SANG for
the lifetime of the development hereby permitted;

P a g e 36
120

(iv) in the event of any proposed mitigation measures including the provision of a SANG
[other than the Hicks Farm SANG] then provisions that no part of the development
hereby permitted is first occupied until:
a. the SANG meets all the requirements of the most up-to-date version of the Site
Quality Checklist currently set out in Appendix D of The Dorset Heathlands
Planning Framework 2020-2025 and any associated guidance;
b. the SANG is available and freely accessible for use by all the residents of the
development hereby permitted; and
c. arrangements are in place to secure the maintenance and management of the
SANG as a SANG for the lifetime of the development hereby permitted; and
(v) arrangements to ensure:
a. consultation with Natural England on all aspects of the proposed mitigation
measures prior to any approval of the Protected Habitats Mitigation Scheme; and
b. in the event of any concerns being raised by Natural England regarding any part
of the proposed mitigation measures that these are brought to the express
attention of the Local Planning Authority prior to any approval of the Protected
Habitats Mitigation Scheme.
No part of the residential element of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied
until the Protected Habitats Mitigation Scheme has been implemented in accordance with
its requirements and the Protected Habitats Mitigation Scheme shall thereafter at all
times be complied with in accordance within its requirements.
Reason: In order to mitigate the impacts of the development on the Dorset Heathlands
international designations in accordance with Policy CS33 of the Bournemouth Local
Plan: Core Strategy (October 2012).

145.

Statement required by National Planning Policy Framework
In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF the Council takes a positive and proactive
approach to development proposals focused on solutions. The Council work with
applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by:
•
offering a pre-application advice service,
•
as appropriate updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the
processing of their application and where possible suggesting solutions,
In this instance:
the applicant was provided with pre-application advice,
the applicant/agent was updated of any issues after the initial site visit,
the applicant was provided the opportunity to submit amendments to the scheme/ address
issues.

Background Documents:
Case File – ref 7-2019-1179-BG
NB
A selection of relevant plans are included with this report below. For full details of all
papers submitted with this application please refer to the relevant Public Access pages on
the council’s website.
Background Documents
P a g e 37
121

P a g e 38
122

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them
and the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced,
retained, or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without
the consent in writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project
health and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

Wessex Way

AN

Do not scale oﬀ drawing.
Do not take digital dimensions from this drawing.

Horseshoe Common

DE

Written dimensions should be taken.

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0
PA

RK

CR

ES

CE

NT

10m

20

30

40

50

Scale - 1:1250 @A3

y
wa
su b

Dean Park Crescent
N

R IC
HM
ON
D H
IL L

El Sub Sta

El

Su

bS

ta

Key:
Site Development Boundary

Richmond Gardens

R IC HMOND GAR DENS

Site Ownership Boundary
Existing Car Parking
Entrance Car Parking - Vehicular

Richmond Hill

Exit Car Parking - Vehicular

35.1m

28.72

ND

HI

LL

E

A
D G
ON
HM
R IC

IV

28.32

DR

27.69

O

27.32

RI
CH
M

20.4m

E
RD
NS

Richmond Gardens
Multi-Storey Car Park
wn
p do
ram

123
C

H

U

R

04

h
stc
hr i
dC
l
O

19.8m
Sta

an
hL
u rc

JA

BP

FG

RT

FG

RT

FG
Dr

RT
Ch

Old Christchurch Road

Dalkeith steps

PL

AC

E

BM
22.8
2m

26.11.19 Planning issue.

07.11.19 Updated Site Development
Boundary
02 05.11.19 Updated Site Development
& Ownership Boundary
01 23.08.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

e

F IR

ub

D

03

El
Sub Sta

El S

A

D

CR

LD

R

TC

O

RO
A

O

Lane
Dalkeith

H

IS

R

LE

steps

H

VA

El Sub Sta

25.6m

C

El Sub Sta

LV

ER

TO

N

RO
A

D

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

............................................
GWP Job Reference

Gr

YE

anv
ille
Pla
ce

VE

RU
L

AM

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

(415)1918

Job Title

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

St. Peter's Road
Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

T

RO

A

El Sub Sta

D

El S

ub

Sta

BM
15.1
4m

ER

Lan

LB

Adelaide

A

e

16.5m

Location Plan
St. Peter's Church
20.7m

Name (415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-001

OS Location Map - Scale 1:1250@A3

Scale

1:1250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG/RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P04
23.08.19

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

10
This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them
and the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced,
retained, or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without
the consent in writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project
health and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken.

4

Do not scale oﬀ drawing.

35.39

35.83
36.22
36.5

43

36

mo
Rich

nd

36.5

35.37

0

10m

36.54

36.53

Scale - 1:500 @A3
+36.050

+36.300

+36.000

Piazza

N
+36.250

BUILDING A2

6
6 .5
+36.650

4

+36.720

+36.285

Key:

1280

+36.300

BUILDING B

1280
1280
1280

+36.785

1280

Site Development Boundary

1100
1100

1100

1100

+36.700

36.3

+36.300

+36.285

+36.735

ed
on
siti ad
po Ro
Re cess
Ac

36.29

1280

+36.430

1100

1100

+36.750

+36.800

1100
1280

1

1280
1280
1280

36.

1280

07

36.2

1280

BUILDING A1

+36.735

0

Void

1280

1280

1280

Site Ownership Boundary
Entrance Car Parking - Vehicular
Exit Car Parking - Vehicular
Existing Tree

1280

+36.750

5

+36.750

1280
1280
1280

1280

36.1

20

+35.985

0
.6

+36.600
.6 0
36

3

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

2

+36.550

ns
rde
Ga

Do not take digital dimensions from this drawing.

Existing Access
Road Service Area

Richmond Gardens

1100
1100

Entrance building

1100
1100
1100
1100

Car Park Lift

1100
1100

+36.485

1100

Ramp

Existing Levels

27.82

Void

+36.250

28.7

+36.235

2

Proposed Levels

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels
Proposed Tree

28.3

+36.120

+30.285

2

+

0
36.0

0

Refer to the following drawings:

+36.300

+36

.00

0

Landscape Design ref:
P19-0659-05A

BUILDING C

36.000

Shared Cycle Way ref:
73554-CUR-00-XX-DR-TP-06001

Void

Existing
Service
Area

ND
MO

124

RICH

Richmond Gardens
Multi-Storey Car Park

Revised car park entrance ref:
73554-CUR-00-XX-DR-TP-06002

GAR
DEN

36.450

Ramp

S

Ramp

05

17.04.20 Entrance Block C &
Landscape Updated

FG

RT

04

17.03.20 Updated Car Park Access/ FG
Egress

RT

10.03.20 Omit pick-up point
(refuse) & bollards
02 26.11.19 Planning issue.
Rev Date
Comment

18

12

03

FG

RT

JA
Dr

BP
Ch

14 to

36.000

Posts

11

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

1 to

10

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

31.1

Mount

.GWP
. . .Job. .Reference
......................................

VP

3

(415)1918

Job Title

Heatherbank

Client

ULC

3
10

97

Lane

to

10

Summix RGB Development Ltd

5

Proposed Site Plan

95
a

95

ad
Ro
h
urc
ch
rist
h
dC
Ol

12

ESS

6

Dalkeith

Stair

10

El Sub Sta

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Name (415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-009
Scale

1:500@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

BP/RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P05
15.11.19

/Users/FabioHome/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XXM3-A-Richmond-P05.pln

98

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them
and the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced,
retained, or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without
the consent in writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project
health and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken.
Do not scale oﬀ drawing.
Do not take digital dimensions from this drawing.

BUILDING A2

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

10m
Scale - 1:500 @A3

45.700
45.075

S

BUILDING A1
L

20

BUILDING B

Key Plan

M
S

FL st

M

st S

+46.500

E

FL
L

S

S
M

S

L

FL

N

st

Key:
28.7
2

+33.375

BUILDING C

Proposed Floor Levels

28.3
2

+45.075

M

st S

E

FL
L

S

125

41.310

08

04.09.20 New Car Park Floor
SI
Omitted
30.07.20 Car Park Size Updated FG
94 spaces
17.04.20 Block B Smoke Shaft Added FG

07
06
05
04
Rev

26.11.19
18.11.19
25.10.19
30.09.19
Date

10

EXISTING CAR PARK LEVEL 05
41.660

09

JA
BP
BP
FG
Dr

Planning issue.
Issued for comment
General Update
General Update
Comment

RT
RT
RT
BP
DT
DT
DT
Ch

41.310

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

.GWP
. . .Job. .Reference
......................................
(415)1918

Job Title

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Development Overview Level 03
Name (415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-016
Scale

1:500@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

SI/RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P10
23.08.19

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XXM3-A-Richmond-P06.pln

4

Setback Brick Detail

11

73.375
11

4

1

+36,025
Roof Plan

+33,100
Floor 11

Accessible Roof Terrace
67.525
66.725
9

+30,175
Floor 10

+27.250
Floor 09

3

Accessible Roof Terrace

4

60.873

8

+24.325
Floor 08

+21.400
Floor 07

Site Boundary

6

6

+18.475
Floor 06

9

+15.550
Floor 05

9
+12.625
Floor 04

4

126

+9.700
Floor 03

+6.775
Floor 02

+3.850
Floor 01

RETAIL UNIT

RETAIL

RETAIL

Car Park Exit
(Proposed)

Car Park Entrance
(Proposed)

Residents lounge
+0.000
Floor 00

A1 Retail
8

4

Residential Entrance

8

Fire Exit

Car Park Fire Egress

New Trees

4

Proposed Building A2

8

Residential Entrance
Existing Trees

1

Proposed Building A1

Newly conﬁgured entrance to
existing car park

Proposed Elevation 01
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.
Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.

8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.
12. Personal & Vehicular Full Height Vertical Bar Metal Gates.
13. Evergreen climber ‘green’ screen panels as Pegaus P19-0659.
14. PPC aluminium windows with spandrel panels in light gold colour.

Material Key:

1

2

3

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

01

A1

06
05

A2

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

17.04.20 Landscape Updated
26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
02 13.11.19 General update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

FG
JA

RT
BP

CT
SI
BP
FG
Dr

BP
DT
RT
RT
Ch

/Users/FabioHome/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P02.pln

Job Title

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Elevation 01
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-060

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

Height Marshall Point circa 77.875

11
4

4

11

Accessible Roof Terrace
67.525
66.725

9

Existing Trees

Accessible Roof Terrace
60.875
3

8

6

4

Site Boundary

9
6

6

Set back brick detail
Set back
brick detail

127

4
New Carpark Level
(Set back)

Existing Carpark

Car Park Exit
(Proposed)

Car Park Entrance
(Proposed)

Louvred screen

10

Louvred screen

10

10

Fire exit
Fire Egress From
Car Park

Proposed Elevation 02

Newly conﬁgured entrance to
existing car park

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

7. Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.
8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.

Fire Egress From
Car Park

Existing Fire egress

Existing Fire egress

Proposed Building A1

Proposed Building A2

Material Key:

1

2

3

4

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

A1

A2

05

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

B
02

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
02 13.11.19 General update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

JA

BP

CT
SI
BP
FG
Dr

BP
DT
RT
RT
Ch

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

Job Title

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Elevation 02
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-061

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P05
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

+36,025
Roof Plan

+33,100
Floor 11

+33,100
Floor 11

67.525

11

+30,175
Floor 10

+30,175
Floor 10

+27.250
Floor 09

+27.250
Floor 09

11

60.875

+24.325
Floor 08

+24.325
Floor 08

9

+21.400
Floor 07

+21.400
Floor 07

6
+18.475
Floor 06

7

+18.475
Floor 06

+15.550
Floor 05

7

+15.550
Floor 05

+12.625
Floor 04

+12.625
Floor 04

128

+9.700
Floor 03

+9.700
Floor 03

3

6

+6.775
Floor 02

+6.775
Floor 02

1
+3.850
Floor 01

1
+3.850
Floor 01

Site Boundary

8

Glass canopy

9

Site Boundary

+0.000
Floor 00

+0.000
Floor 00

-3.000
Floor B1

Proposed Building A1

New private lift from Richmond
Gardens Car Park

Newly conﬁgured entrance
to existing car park

Proposed Elevation 03
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.

Proposed Building A2

Proposed Elevation 04

7. Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.
8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.

Material Key:

1

2

3

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
GWP Job Reference

Key Plan
03

(415)1918

04

A1

A2

05

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

04
03
02
01
Rev

26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
18.11.19 Issued for comment
15.11.19 Material Key Added
13.11.19 General update
18.09.19 First Issue
Date
Comment

JA

BP

CT
SI
BP
FG
Dr

BP
DT
RT
RT
Ch

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

Job Title

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Elevations 03 & 04
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-062

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P05
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

11

73.375
+36,025
Roof Plan

4

9

+33,100
Floor 11

7
3

11

66.725

+30,175
Floor 10

4
6

+27.250
Floor 09

7
9

+24.325
Floor 08

1

+21.400
Floor 07

+18.475
Floor 06

6

+15.550
Floor 05

+12.625
Floor 04

9

+9.700
Floor 03

129

+6.775
Floor 02

Set back
brick detail

5
1
8

+3.850
Floor 01

5

RETAIL UNIT

Car Park

Resident's
Lounge

Proposed Building A1

Fire Egress From
Car Park

Metal louvre
doors

Proposed Building A2

Proposed Elevation 05
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Site Boundary

New feature
entrance
canopy

Metal louvre
doors

Site Boundary

+0.000
Floor 00

8

Fire Egress From
Car Park

Car Park

Proposed Elevation 06

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.

7. Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.
8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.

Material Key:

1

2

3

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

06

A1

A2

05

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

05

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
02 13.11.19 General update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

JA

BP

CT
SI
BP
FG
Dr

BP
DT
RT
RT
Ch

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

Job Title

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Elevations 05 & 06
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-063

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P05
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

13

4

69.175
Accessible
roof terrace

9

1

66.250
Accessible
roof terrace

2

4

63.290

63.290

9

4

+26.325
Floor 09

9

3

Set back
wall
detail

60.364

+23.400
Floor 08

+23.400
Floor 08

7
6

3

+20.475
Floor 07

9

+20.475
Floor 07

6
+17.550
Floor 06

6

+17.550
Floor 06

6
9

+14.625
Floor 05

New Lift
brickwork to
match existing
carpark
brickwork

9

+11.700
Floor 04

+14.625
Floor 05

9

+11.700
Floor 04

+8.775
Floor 03

+8.775
Floor 03

+5.850
Floor 02

+5.850
Floor 02

2

+2.925
Floor 01

7

9

+2.925
Floor 01

130

5

7

4

+0.000
Floor 00

+0.000
Floor 00

33.375 (1st Reference Level)

-2.925
Floor B1

-2.925
Floor B1

Residential Entrance

New Canopy

-5.850
Floor B2

Landscape Roof Terrace

-5.850
Floor B2

Proposed Building C

New private lift from
Richmond Gardens
Car Park

Proposed Building B

Metal
louvred
door

RETAIL SERVICE
ACCESS

-9.075
Floor B3

Proposed Building B
Retail Service Yard

Proposed Elevation 07
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Cycle Storage & DDA Car Park

Proposed Elevation 08

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.
Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.

8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.
12. Personal & Vehicular Full Height Vertical Bar Metal Gates.
13. Evergreen climber ‘green’ screen panels as Pegaus P19-0659.
14. PPC aluminium windows with spandrel panels in light gold colour.

Material Key:

1

2

3

4

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

5

6

7

8

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

Site Development Boundary

08
10m

12

Key

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

1m

11

07

Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

10

13

14

GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.

0

9

08
07

08.09.20 New Car Park Floor Omitted.
07.05.20 Totem omitted
Entrance Block B Amended.
06 08.04.20 Balconies, Landscape and
Entrance Block B Updated.
05 26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
Rev Date
Comment

SI
FG

RT
RT

FG

RT

JA

BP

Job Title

(415)1918

Client

CT
SI
Dr

BP
DT
Ch

/Volumes/Data/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/A_Architects_(GWP)/
Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P06.pln

Proposed Building B & C Elevations 07 & 08

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-090

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P08
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

2

13

4

69.175
Accessible
roof terrace
66.250
9

+29.250
Floor 10

2

63.290
+26.325
Floor 09

4
6
14

13

4
9

+23.400
Floor 08

7
1

57.440
+20.475
Floor 07

9

3

3

Accessible
roof terrace

+17.550
Floor 06

9
9

3

51.575
+14.625
Floor 05

7

1

48.700
9

+11.700
Floor 04

3
+8.775
Floor 03

7

9

+5.850
Floor 02

7

131

6
6
+2.925
Floor 01

5

+0.000
Floor 00

Site Boundary

-2.925
Floor B1

-5.850
Floor B2

12

Proposed Elevation 11
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.
Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.

3

9

Proposed Building C

Proposed Building B

8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.
12. Personal & Vehicular Full Height Vertical Bar Metal Gates.
13. Evergreen climber ‘green’ screen panels as Pegaus P19-0659.
14. PPC aluminium windows with spandrel panels in light gold colour.

Material Key:

1

2

3

4

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.

5

6

7

8

9

Key Plan

Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

1m

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

12

13

14

GWP Job Reference

Site Development Boundary

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.

0

11

Key

All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

10

11

08 04.09.20 New Car Park Floor Omitted
07 07.04.20 Balcony size Update.
Green Screen Added.
06 19.03.20 Block C Metal Gates Added.

SI
FG

RT
BP

FG

RT

05

JA

BP

26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
Rev Date
Comment

Job Title

(415)1918

Client

CT
SI
Dr

BP
DT
Ch

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P06.pln

Proposed Building B & CElevation 11

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-092

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P08
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

4

11

69.175

+29.250
Floor 10

Accessible
roof terrace

+26.325
Floor 09

9

60.364

11

+23.400
Floor 08

4

2

57.440

+20.475
Floor 07

Accessible
roof terrace

3
+17.550
Floor 06

9
9

51.575
+14.625
Floor 05

7
1

+11.700
Floor 04

6

6

+8.775
Floor 03

9

7

9

+5.850
Floor 02

7

+2.925
Floor 01

5
6

132

+0.000
Floor 00

-2.925
Floor B1
Landscape Roof Terrace

Site Boundary

-5.850
Floor B2

-9.075
Floor B3

Retail Service Yard
Proposed Building B

Proposed Building C

Proposed Elevation 12
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.
Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.

8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.
12. Personal & Vehicular Full Height Vertical Bar Metal Gates.
13. Evergreen climber ‘green’ screen panels as Pegaus P19-0659.
14. PPC aluminium windows with spandrel panels in light gold colour.

Material Key:

1

2

3

4

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

5

6

7

8

9

Key Plan

A1

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

1m

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

Ex. Car Park
10m

12

13

14

GWP Job Reference

Site Development Boundary

A2

Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

11

Key

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.

0

10

12

C

06

17.04.20 Omit Entrance Block B
Balcony size Update.
05 26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
02 13.11.19 General update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

FG

BP

JA

BP

CT
SI
BP
FG
Dr

BP
DT
RT
RT
Ch

/Users/FabioHome/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P02.pln

Job Title

(415)1918

Proposed Building B & C Elevation 12

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-093

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

13

4

13

57.440
+20.475
Floor 07

4

57.440
+20.475
Floor 07

Accessible
roof terrace

Accessible
roof terrace

3
9

+17.550
Floor 06

14

9

+17.550
Floor 06

3

51.590

51.575

+14.625
Floor 05

+14.625
Floor 05

1

1

+11.700
Floor 04

+11.700
Floor 04

7
6

+8.775
Floor 03

+8.775
Floor 03

7

6
+5.850
Floor 02

+5.850
Floor 02

Car Park
Level 05

9

6
+2.925
Floor 01

+2.925
Floor 01

5

Car Park
Level 04

9

133

Car Park
Level 03
+0.000
Floor 00

+0.000
Floor 00

-2.925
Floor B1

-2.925
Floor B1

Car Park
Level 02

Car Park
Level 01
Landscape Roof Terrace

-5.850
Floor B2

-5.850
Floor B2

RETAIL SERVICE ACCESS
-9.075
Floor B3

-9.075
Floor B3
-10.200
Floor B4

Louvred
metal doors

DDA Car Park

Retail
Level 02

Louvred
metal doors

Retail Service Yard
Retail Service Yard

Existing Retail/Car Park

Proposed Building C

Proposed Building C

Proposed Elevation 10

Proposed Elevation 09
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Mid Brown.
Red brick.
Light Buﬀ brick.
Sawtooth brick detail.
Portland wetcast.
PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.
Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour.

8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour.
9. Painted metal rails in light gold colour.
10. White render.
11. Acoustic screening louvres.
12. Personal & Vehicular Full Height Vertical Bar Metal Gates.
13. Evergreen climber ‘green’ screen panels as Pegaus P19-0659.
14. PPC aluminium windows with spandrel panels in light gold colour.

Material Key:

1

2

3

4

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.

5

6

7

8

Key Plan

Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

1m

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

11

12

09
10m

10

13

14

04.09.20 New Car Park Floor Omitted
07.04.20 Balcony size Update.
Green Screen Added.
05 26.11.19 Planning issue.
Notes Added.
04 18.11.19 Issued for comment
03 15.11.19 Material Key Added
02 13.11.19 General update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment
07
06

Site Development Boundary

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

10

Key

All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

0

9

SI
FG

RT
BP

JA

BP

CT
SI
BP
FG
Dr

BP
DT
RT
RT
Ch

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P06.pln

GWP Job Reference

Job Title

(415)1918

Proposed Building B & C Elevations 09 & 10

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-091

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P07
21.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them
and the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced,
retained, or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without
the consent in writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project
health and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken.
Do not scale oﬀ drawing.
Do not take digital dimensions from this drawing.

+79.600 Max height application Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

+73.275 Parapet height - Building A1

10m

20

Scale - 1:500 @A3

Key Plan
+69.125 Parapet height - Building B

01

01

02

02

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

+67.125 Parapet height - Building A2

Key:
Site Boundary
Existing Car Park
Proposed building
Outline of previous PBSH refused
application: Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

Proposed Building B

Context

Proposed Buildings A1 & A2

Context

Entrance Car Park

134

Site Section 01
+79.600 Max height application Ref 7-2018-1179-BE
SI

RT

SI

RT

04

24.09.20 Updated Layout
New Car Park Floor
04.09.20
Omitted
26.11.19 Planning issue.

FG

BP

03

18.11.19 Issued for comment

BP

DT

FG

DT

FG
Dr

RT
Ch

06

+73.275 Parapet height - Building A1

05

+69.125 Parapet height - Building B

30.09.19 General Update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment
02

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

+67.125 Parapet height - Building A2

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

.GWP
. . .Job. .Reference
......................................
(415)1918

Existing Car Park level 05

Job Title

Existing Car Park level 04

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Existing Car Park level 03
Existing Car Park level 02

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Existing Car Park level 01

Level B1
Retail Service Yard

Level B2

Proposed Development Overview Sections 01 & 02

Existing Retail level 02

Existing Retail level 01
Name (415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-026
Scale

Context

Site Section 02

Proposed Building A1 & A2

Proposed Building B

Context

1:500@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG/RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
21.08.19

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XXM3-A-Richmond-P06.pln

+79.600 Max height application Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them
and the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced,
retained, or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without
the consent in writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project
health and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.

+73.275 Parapet height - Building A1

Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken.
Do not scale oﬀ drawing.

+69.125 Parapet height - Building B

Level 11

Do not take digital dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

Level 10

0

10m

20

Level 09
Scale - 1:500 @A3
Level 08

+57.425 Parapet height - Building C

03

04

03

04

Level 06

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

Level 07

Level 05
Level 04
Level 03
Level 02

Key:
Existing Car Park level 05

Level 01

Site Boundary

Existing Car Park level 04

Existing Car Park

Level 00

Existing Car Park level 03

Level B1

Proposed building

Existing Car Park level 02

Outline of previous PBSH refused

Existing Car Park level 01

application: Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

Existing Retail level 02

Existing Retail level 01

Proposed Building A1

Richmond Gardens

Dailkeith Arcade

Proposed Buildings B & C

Old
Christchurch
rd

135

Site Section 03
+79.600 Max height application Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

SI

04

24.09.20 Updated Layout
New Car Park Floor
04.09.20
Omitted
26.11.19 Planning issue.

03

18.11.19 Issued for comment

06

+73.275 Parapet height - Building A1

05

+69.125 Parapet height - Building B

30.09.19 General Update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

+57.425 Parapet height - Building C

RT

FG

BP

BP

DT

FG

DT

FG
Dr

RT
Ch

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

02

RT

SI

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

.GWP
. . .Job. .Reference
......................................
(415)1918

Job Title

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Development Overview Sections 03 & 04
Name (415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-027

Old Ch. rd

Site Section 04

Dailkeith Arcade

Proposed Building B & C

Scale

Richmond Gardens

Vitality - Insurance Company

1:500@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG/RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
21.08.19

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XXM3-A-Richmond-P06.pln

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them
and the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced,
retained, or disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without
the consent in writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project
health and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

+79.600 Max height application Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken.

+73.275 Parapet height - Building A1

Do not scale oﬀ drawing.
Do not take digital dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

+69.125 Parapet height - Building B

0

10m

20

+67.125 Parapet height - Building A2
Scale - 1:500 @A3

+57.425 Parapet height - Building C

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

Key Plan
06

05
Key:
Site Boundary
Existing Car Park
Proposed building
Outline of previous PBSH refused
application: Ref 7-2018-1179-BE

Proposed Buildings A1 & A2

Context

Proposed Buildings B & C

Context

136

Site Section 05

+79.600 Max height application Ref 7-2018-1179-BE
SI

RT

SI

RT

04

24.09.20 Updated Layout
New Car Park Floor
04.09.20
Omitted
26.11.19 Planning issue.

FG

BP

03

18.11.19 Issued for comment

BP

DT

FG

DT

FG
Dr

RT
Ch

06
05

+73.275 Parapet height - Building A1

30.09.19 General Update
01 18.09.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

02

+69.125 Parapet height - Building B

+57.425 Parapet height - Building C

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

Site Boundary

Site Boundary

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

.GWP
. . .Job. .Reference
......................................
(415)1918

Job Title

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Development Overview Sections 05 & 06
Name (415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-028
Scale

Richmond Gardens

Site Section 06

Access Car Park

Proposed Buildings A1

Proposed Buildings B & C

Context

1:500@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG/RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
21.08.19

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XXM3-A-Richmond-P06.pln

RICHMOND GARDENS - BOURNEMOUTH | D&A | PAGE 49
5.20
Material & Elevation Concept - Elevation B
5.20 Material & Elevation Concept - Elevation B

KEY
KEY

7
7
2
2
5
5

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

1. 1.Mid/brown brick
2.
3.
4.
2. Buff brick/sawtooth brick
1.
Mid/brown
1. Mid/Brown
brick. brick
Buﬀ brick/sawtooth
brick.
3. 2. Portland
wetcast
2.
Buff brick/sawtooth
brick
3. Portland
wetcast.
4. 4. PPC
aluminium
windows
in light
PPC aluminium
windows
in light gold
colour.gold colour
3.
Portland
wetcast
5. Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour
5. 6.Painted
Glass metal
spandrel
panels
dark grey colour
rails in light
gold in
colour
4.
PPC aluminium
windows
in light gold colour
7. Acoustic screening louvres.
6. 8.PPC
Painted
metal
rails
in
light
gold
colour
aluminium
curtain
wall
in
light
gold
colour.
5. Glass spandrel panels in dark
grey colour
7. Acoustic screening louvres
6. Painted metal rails in light gold colour
8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour
7. Acoustic screening louvres
8. PPC aluminium curtain walls in light gold colour
1

2
1

6.
5.

8
2

7.
6.

7.

3
8

8.

5
3

8.

6
5

6

2
2

137
6
6

1
1

Block A1 Elevation
Block A1 Elevation

Block A1 ‘Civic Base’
Block A1 ‘Civic Base’
GWP Job Reference

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

Job Title

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

01 26.11.19 First issue.
Rev Date
Comment

JA
Dr

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

BP
Ch

© gwparchitecture 2019

(415)1918

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Material & Elevation concept Elevation A
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-064

Scale

NA

Revision

Drawn/Checked

CT / RT

Drawing Status

SO - WIP

First Issue

P01
22.11.19

© gwparchitecture 201
CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

E L E VA T I O N C
8

KEY

3

1

2.
3.
4.
1.
1.
Mid/brown
1. Mid/Brown
brick. brick.
2. Buﬀ brick/sawtooth brick.
2.
Buff
brick/Sawtooth brick.
3. Red
brick.
4. Portland
wetcast.
3.
Red brick
5. PPC aluminium windows in light gold colour.
4.
Portland
6. Glass
spandrel wetcast
panels in dark grey colour
7.Painted
gold colourin light gold colour
5.
PPCmetal
aluminium
windows
1 rails in light
8. Acoustic screening louvres.
6. Glass spandrel panels in dark grey colour
7. Painted metal rails in light gold colourA
8. Acoustic screening louvres

5

2

2

5.

5

6.

6

7.

4

1

8.

7

6

138

7

4

GWP Job Reference

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

Job Title

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

02

15.09.20 New Car Park Floor Omitted.

01

26.11.19 First issue.

JA

BP

Rev

Date

Dr

Ch

Comment

SI

RT

/Volumes/Data-1/CAD/(415)1918 Richmond Gardens - Bournemouth/
A_Architects_(GWP)/Model/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P06.pln

© gwparchitecture 2019

(415)1918

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Material & Elevation concept Elevation C
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-094

Scale

NA

Revision

Drawn/Checked

SI / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P02
22.11.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

Refer to Highways Engineer DWG:
73554-CUR-00-XX-DR-TP-06002

Refer to Highways Engineer Cycleway DWG:
73554-CUR-00-XX-DR-TP-06001

Refer to Landscape Architect DWG:
P19–0659_05

S-04
(PA)046

(PA)046
S-11
S-03

(PA)046
S-02

Continuous 2m foot path

3 6 .6

0

+36.600
36.60

36.54

36

36.53

36.07
(PA)050
E-01

+36.430

2

36.56

36.22

36.54
+36.550

+36.720

35.83

.2 9

+36.700

3 5 .3

36

36.20
36.31

2m
+36.650

+36.750

1100

1280

1100

Retail
Bin Store

1280

Store

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

+36.300

2m

Car Park
Egress

(PA)045
S-01

+36.285
1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

Reception

1280

1100

1100

1100

1100

1100

1100

1100

1100

1100

1280

+36.300
Blocks A1/2 Bin
Store

+36.750

Block A1 Bin Store
Plant

Car Park Exit
(Proposed)

Foyer

+36.750

+36.250
Car Park Entrance
(Proposed)

7

+36.285

Lobby
Ticket
Oﬃce

3 5 .3

+36.000

(PA)053
E-06

(PA)045
S-01

2m

Residents
Lounge

+36.800

Retail
145m2

Reception/
Foyer

+36.485

+35.985

+36.050

+36.250
E-05
(PA)053

(PA)052
E-03

+36.785

+36.735

Building
Above

+36.735

9

1280

1100

1280
1280

1100

1100

E-04
(PA)052

36.15

(PA)052
E-37

.5

Lobby
Parcels
1100

1100

+36.235

139
VOID

+36.120

VOID

+36.000

(PA)046
S-11
S-03

(PA)046
S-02

+36.000

S-04
(PA)046

Lift

E-02
(PA)051

Richmond Gardens
Multi-Storey Car Park

Proposed Building A1

Proposed Building A2

Key
Existing Levels

Retail

To be removed

+30.285

Proposed Levels

Studio

Entrance Car Parking - Vehicular

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels

Flat 1b/2p

Exit Car Parking - Vehicular

Cantilever

Flat 2b/3p

Entrance building

Floor above

Flat 2b/4p

Extent of building above

Flat 3b/5p

Site Development Boundary

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

27.82

GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

A1

A2
N

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

10

17.04.20 Landscape Updated

FG

RT

09

17.03.20 Updated Car Park Access/
Egress

FG

RT

08

26.11.19 Planning issue.

JA

BP

07 18.11.19 Issued for comment

BP

DT

BP
Dr

DT
Ch

06 07.11.19 Car Park Entrance Updated
Rev Date
Comment

/Users/FabioHome/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P02.pln

Job Title

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Level 00
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-041

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P10
23.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

S-04
(PA)046

(PA)046
S-11
S-03

(PA)046
S-02

(PA)050
E-01

(PA)052
E-03

E-05
(PA)053

+43.575

(PA)053
E-06

+42.775
(PA)045
S-01

E-04
(PA)052

(PA)045
S-01

S-04
(PA)046

(PA)046
S-11
S-03

(PA)046
S-02

140
E-02
(PA)051

Richmond Gardens
Multi-Storey Car Park

Proposed Building A1

Proposed Building A2

Key
Existing Levels

Retail

+30.285

Proposed Levels

Studio

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels

Flat 1b/2p

27.82

Cantilever
Floor above

Flat 2b/3p
Flat 2b/4p
Flat 3b/5p

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

A1

06 26.11.19 Planning issue.
05 18.11.19 Issued for comment

A2
N

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

JA
BP

BP
DT

04 25.10.19 General Update

BP

DT

03 18.09.19 General Update

FG

JM

02 11.09.19 General Update

CT

DT

01 23.08.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

FG
Dr

RT
Ch

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

Job Title

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Level 02
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-043

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
23.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

S-04
(PA)046

(PA)046
S-11
S-03

(PA)046
S-02

(PA)050
E-01

E-05
(PA)053

54.475

(PA)053
E-06

(PA)052
E-03

+55.275

(PA)045
S-01

E-04
(PA)052

(PA)045
S-01

S-04
(PA)046

(PA)046
S-11
S-03

(PA)046
S-02

141
E-02
(PA)051

Proposed Building A1

Proposed Building A2

Key
Existing Levels

Retail

+30.285

Proposed Levels

Studio

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels

Flat 1b/2p

27.82

Cantilever
Floor above

Flat 2b/3p
Flat 2b/4p
Flat 3b/5p

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

GWP Job Reference

Key Plan

A1

06 26.11.19 Planning issue.
05 18.11.19 Issued for comment

A2
N

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.

B

Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Ex. Car Park

1m

C
Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

JA
BP

BP
DT

04 25.10.19 General Update

BP

DT

03 18.09.19 General Update

FG

JM

02 11.09.19 General Update

CT

DT

01 23.08.19 First Issue
Rev Date
Comment

FG
Dr

RT
Ch

BIMcloud: BIMServer-HP - BIMcloud Basic for ARCHICAD 22/RichmondGardens (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-A-Richmond-P01

Job Title

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB Development Ltd

Proposed Building A1 & A2 Level 06
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-047

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P06
23.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

(PA)076
S-06

(PA)075
S-05
E-04
(PA)052

(PA)045
S-01

BUILDING A1

Line

BUILDING B

of B
uild
in

gA
bov

e

Relocated
Access Road

+27.225
S-07
(PA)077

S-07
(PA)077

Comms
>30m2

Water Tanks
>12.5 x 5.5m
Existing Plant
E-42
(PA)051

Vent
Existing
Sub Station
TBC

+29.200

TERRACE OVER

26.
03

DDA CAR PARK
/ DROP OFF

26.
23

CYCLE
PARK

27.
68

26.
24

26.
07

gA
bov

e

26.
51

gC
ant
ile

26.
54

Switch
12m2
CYCLE
PARK
Sub. St
20m2

Total Bikes : 54
Sheﬃeld Hoops 28
27
.0
4

+26.500
26.
27 +26.485

26.
14

S-08
(PA)077

Continuous 2m foot path

+27.000

+27.000

26.
47

+26.400

BUILDING C

E-10
(PA)081

+26.220

(PA)075
S-05

Turning / Access Yard
26.
32

(PA)076
S-06

RETAIL
SERVICE
YARD

Cycle
Entrance

Buil
din

Building Cantilevered Above

+27.200

+27.500

27.
82

S-08
(PA)077

Car Park Entrance
Sliding Gate

28.32

+27.225

Existing Plant

e

28.72

of B
uild
in

28.53

Line

Abo
v

25.
990

ver
ed

Access

+29.870

Total Bikes 144
Sheﬃeld Hoops 72

29.15

EXISTING
CAR PARK

E-08
(PA)080

Terrace / Screening Cantilevered Above

Car Park Vent
System Over

(PA)081
E-09

E-11
(PA)082

(PA)083
E-12

Generator & Life Safety
(External to Envelope & Fully Vented)

26.
12

Existing Car Park

Proposed Buildings B & C

Key Plan

Existing Context

Key

A2

A1

Existing Levels

Retail

To be removed

+30.285

Proposed Levels

Studio

Entrance Car Parking - Vehicular

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels

Flat 1b/2p

Site Development Boundary

B
Ex. Car Park

C

27.82

Exit Car Parking - Vehicular

Cantilever

Entrance building

Floor above

Flat 2b/3p
Flat 2b/4p
Flat 3b/5p

GWP Job Reference

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.

Job Title

All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

1m

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

08

26.02.21 Cycle Park updated

07

15.09.20 Cycle Park updated

SI

RT

Rev

Date

Dr

Ch

Comment

SI

RT

/Users/silviuionescu/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P09.pln

Summix RGB 142
Development Ltd

Proposed Building B & C - Level
B3
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-070

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P08
23.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

(PA)076
S-06

(PA)075
S-05
E-04
(PA)052

(PA)045
S-01

BUILDING A1

1280

1280

1280

1280
1280

1280

1280

1280

+31.500

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

1280

Lift

1100

1280

1280

31.

1280

1280

+30.640

1100

1280

1100

1100

1100

Bin Store
Blocks B & C

1100

1100
1100

+30.640

50

1100

1100

1280

1100

1100

1100

1100
1100

31

1,200

0
24
1,

+31.000

.0 1
S-07
(PA)077

S-07
(PA)077

30
.4 7

30
.3 6

BUILDING B
E-42
(PA)051
(PA)081
E-09
(PA)083
E-12

+30.450

+29.750

E-08
(PA)080

Landscaped Roof Terrace
Refer to Landscape Architect DWG:
P19–0659_05A

E-11
(PA)082

Shared Surface /
Refuse Collection
Zone

+29.870

Continuous 2m foot path
EXISTING
CAR PARK

2m Wide Path
30.
640

+30.450

28.72

28.32
S-08
(PA)077

S-08
(PA)077

BUILDING C

(PA)075
S-05

(PA)076
S-06

E-10
(PA)081

Existing Car Park

Proposed Buildings B & C

Key Plan

Key

A2

A1

Existing Levels

Retail

To be removed

+30.285

Proposed Levels

Studio

Entrance Car Parking - Vehicular

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels

Flat 1b/2p

Site Development Boundary

B
Ex. Car Park

C

27.82

Exit Car Parking - Vehicular

Cantilever

Entrance building

Floor above

Extent of building above
GWP Job Reference

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.
Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.
Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

0

Existing Context

1m

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

08 06.04.20 Issued for comment
07 26.11.19 Planning issue.
06 18.11.19 Issued for comment

BP
JA
BP

RT
BP
DT

05 31.10.19 Fire consultant core & ﬁnal exit
comments to studios
incorporated
Rev Date
Comment

BP

DT

Dr

Ch

/Users/FabioHome/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P05.pln

Job Title

Flat 2b/3p
Flat 2b/4p
Flat 3b/5p

(415)1918

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB 143
Development Ltd

Proposed Building B & C- Level
B2
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-071

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P08
23.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

(PA)076
S-06

34.

(PA)075
S-05

+34.720

60

33.

(PA)045
S-01

92

33.

27

+34.050

33.

E-04
(PA)052

BUILDING A1

+33.000

+33.680

29

+33.290

+33.310

2m Wide Path
31.

32.

+33.600

31

+33

54

+32.000

+33.375

.54 +33.525
0

+31.500

+33.540

31.

50

Lift

Proposed pedestrian gate & fence.
Refer to Landscape Architect DWG:
P19-0659_05C

+33.360

S-07
(PA)077

S-07
(PA)077

BUILDING B
E-42
(PA)051

E-11
(PA)082

(PA)083
E-12

(PA)081
E-09

E-08
(PA)080

Landscaped Roof Terrace
Below
Refer to Landscape Architect DWG:
P19–0659_05C

EXISTING
CAR PARK

33.
375

+33.375

28.72

Service Yard
Reduced
28.32

S-08
(PA)077

S-08
(PA)077

BUILDING C

(PA)075
S-05

(PA)076
S-06

E-10
(PA)081

Existing Car Park

Proposed Buildings B & C

Key Plan

Existing Context

Key

A2

A1

Existing Levels

Retail

To be removed

+30.285

Proposed Levels

Studio

Entrance Car Parking - Vehicular

+33.375

Proposed Floor Levels

Flat 1b/2p

Site Development Boundary

B
Ex. Car Park

C

27.82

Exit Car Parking - Vehicular

Cantilever

Entrance building

Floor above

Flat 2b/3p
Flat 2b/4p
Flat 3b/5p

This drawing is the property of GWP Architecture. Copyright is reserved by them and
the drawing is issued on the condition that it is not copied, reproduced, retained, or
disclosed to any unauthorised person, either wholly or in part, without the consent in
writing of GWP Architecture.
All drawings and speciﬁcations should be read in conjunction with the project health
and safety plan, any possible conﬂicts should be presented to the Planning
Coordinator.
All work to be carried out in accordance with current Building Regulations.

GWP Job Reference

09
08

Contractors must verify all dimensions at the job before commencing any work or
making shop drawings.
Written dimensions should be taken. Do not scale oﬀ drawing. Do not take digital
dimensions from this drawing.

07

Any discrepancies to be reported to the Architect.

06

0

1m

Scale - 1:250 @A3

5m

10m

28.04.20 Position Gate &
Flat Block B Amended
08.04.20 Landscape and Entrance
Block B Updated.
20.03.20 Issued for comment

FG

(415)1918

RT
Job Title

FG

RT

BP

RT

26.11.19 Planning issue.

JA

BP

05 18.11.19 Issued for comment
Rev Date
Comment

BP
Dr

DT
Ch

/Users/FabioHome/Desktop/AC 22 RichmondGardens - (415)1918-GWP-01-XX-M3-ARichmond-P05.pln

Richmond Gardens Bournemouth

Client

Summix RGB 144
Development Ltd

Proposed Building B & C - Level
B1
Name

(415)1918-GWP-XX-00-DR-A-(PA)-072

Scale

1:250@A3

Revision

Drawn/Checked

FG / RT

Drawing Status

D0 - Planning

First Issue

P09
23.08.19

CHARTERED ARCHITECTS
INTERIOR DESIGNERS
SPACE PLANNERS
PROJECT MANAGERS
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS

Bracken House, Lidgett Lane. Leeds LS8 1PQ
+44(0)113 266 6044 (t) | +44(0)113 268 1859 (f)
architecture@gwp-arch.com | www.gwp-arch.com

+66.975
+60.325

Roof terrace 1: Block A1- level 10

Roof terrace 2: Block A2- level 8

+62.625

+59.700

Roof terrace 3: Block B- level 9

Roof terrace 4: Block B- level 8

+48.000

Roof terrace 6: Block
C- level 5

Roof terrace 7: Block C- level 4

Roof terrace 5: Block C- level 5

2

'Allotment' planter
Planter with shrub planting
Wildflower meadow

4

1

6
5 7

Roof Terrace Locations

Agapanthus Africanus Blue
Buxus Sempervirens
Berberis Thunbergii F Atropurpurea Harlequin
Fargesia Simba Bamboo
Festuca Glauca
Hebe Rakaiensis
Hebe Wiri Mist
Lavandula Intermedia Grosso
Lavendula Angustifolia
Laurus Nobilis
Lonicera Nitida Baggesens Gold
Mahonia x Media Charity
Miscanthus Sinensis Strictus
Miscanthus sinensis Zebrinus (screening)
Phormium Yellow Wave
Photinia Fraseri Little Red Robin
Pinus Nigra Green Rocket
Prunus Lusitanica

145
PLANNING | DESIGN | ENVIRONMENT | ECONOMICS
Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. Crown copyright, All rights reserved. 2015 Emapsite Licence number 0100031673. Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence number 100042093. Promap Licence number 100020449 .
Pegasus accepts no liability for any use of this document other than for its original purpose, or by the original client, or following Pegasus' express agreement to such use. T 01285641717
www.pegasuspg.co.uk

3

A- (20/03/2020 WM) Updated to LPA comments.

Revisions:

Richmond Gardens,
Bournemouth
Roof Terrace Landscape
Proposals
Drawing Ref: P19-0659_06A
Client: Summix RGB Developments Ltd.
Date
Drawn by
Checked by
Scale

: 21/11/2019
: WM
: JEP
: 1 : 150 @ A1

14

Marshall Point

8
10
10

Existing trees to be retained
Pond
4
4

Existing trees to be removed

D GARDENS

ON
RICHM
43
43

+36.350

G48

G49

G49
+36.550

Extra trees to be retained on
currcent scheme
(Net gain of trees on current
scheme 10No.)

+36.300

+36.000

G49

T51
+36.700
+36.450
+36.300

Note:
This drawing is produced based on Barrell

+36.800

35.1m

Tree Consultancy Tree Protection Plan (drawing
ref: 17093-BT4)

G54

2

28.7

T105

T104

2

28.3

T103
T102
+36.300

41

T100
T99

T55
36.000

T101

RIC

RIC

G56

ND

HMO

T98
G97

36.450

S

DEN

HMO

GAR

Multistorey Car Park

ND

T57

T96

GAR

2
112

DEN

T58
36.000

T59

mp
a
mp
R
Ra

G94

S

to 18
o14 18
14 t

T95

T60

Posts
Posts
1111
10
1 to10
1 to

146

Heliting
House

G61
T62
31.1

G61

ULC
ULC

El
Sub Sta
El Sub Sta
T/G 69-93

Dalkeith

T67&68

1122

89

83

VE

RU

LA

M

1

CE
PL
A

6

19.8m

h

10

t

is

98

d

Ol
6

a

CH

r
Ch

u
ch

La

ne

rc

4

St

D
OL

6
10

a
a5
9
95
9955

b

10

9977

e

Su

to

TC

G64

ad
rc
eAith

ESS
ESS

Lane

3to 10
11003

Dalk

e
h Lan
Dalkeit

T65 G64

S
RI

5

G63

5

T66

RO

R
HU

Mount

Heatherbank

El

CH

VP

3

Mount
Heatherbank

AD

1
11

B- (19/11/2019 WM) Updated to Barrell's Tree
Protection Plan (drawing ref: 17093-BT4)
A- (13/11/2019 WM) Updated to latest layout.

Revisions:

Richmond Gardens,
Bournemouth
Tree Retention and
Removal Plan
Drawing Ref: P19-0659_02B
Client:

PLANNING | DESIGN | ENVIRONMENT | ECONOMICS
Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. Crown copyright, All rights reserved. 2015 Emapsite Licence number 0100031673. Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence number 100042093. Promap Licence number 100020449 .
Pegasus accepts no liability for any use of this document other than for its original purpose, or by the original client, or following Pegasus' express agreement to such use. T 01285641717 www.pegasuspg.co.uk

Date
: 19/09/2019
Drawn by : WM
Checked by : JEP
Scale
: 1:750 @ A3

147

148

